STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
5/16/2017 10:00 A.M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA

MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
JACK MCGUFFEY

VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board and the Storey County Liquor and Gaming Board and during this
meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or a separately posted agenda.

All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine, and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Pursuant to
NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine
two or more agenda items for consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the
agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. Any member of the Board
or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed, and acted
upon separately during this meeting. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the time
allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the agenda for May 16, 2017




DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the minutes for April 4, 2017.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of the minutes for April 12, 2017.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Approval of minutes for April 18, 2017.

CONSENT AGENDA

I For possible action: Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $695,362.68 and

accounts payable claims in the amount of $332,153.19.

II  For possible action: Approval of the Treasurer's Report for April 2017.

III

IV

For possible action: Approval of the Intrastate Interlocal Contract between DMV
and the Storey County Assessor, the contract term effective upon approval to June
30, 2019.

For possible action: Approval of Business Licnese First Readings:

A. ALL THINGS ELECTRIC - Contractor / 4632 Sommerville Way ~ Reno
(Contractor)

B. TUFF WRAP INSTALLATIONS, INC. - Contractor / 2080 Detwiler Road ~
Harleysville, PA (Contractor)

C. SUPREME CONCRETE, LLC - Contractor / 5295 Coggins Road ~ Reno
(Contractor)

D.SOUTH ATLANTIC CONTROLS, INC. - Contractor / 10226 Governor Blvd ~
Williamsport, MD (Cont.)

E. ROCKWELL AUTOMATION - Contractor / 3000 Executive Pkwy ~ San Ramon,
CA (Professional)

F. PRO-BEAM USA, INC. - Contractor / 3909 75th Street ~ Aurora, IL (Contractor)
G. HAS CONSULTING, LLC - Professional / 3450 Madison Road ~ Cincinnati, OH
(Software Developer)

H. ROSENBERGER HFT GMBH & CO KG - Contractor / PO Box 1260 Tittmoning,
Germany (Contractor)

L. LJS SOLUTIONS - Contractor / PO Box 969 ~ Sumter, SC (Contractor)

J. CC CLEANING SERVICE, LLC - General / 9115 Hummer Drive ~ Reno
(General)

K. MEMORY LANE JEWELRY - Home Business / 340 Cartwright Rd ~ Reno
(online sales)

L. PALETTI USA, LLC - Contractor / 145 Keystone Drive ~ Montgomeryville, PA
(Contractor)




M. BAYSIDE INTERIORS, INC. - Contractor / 3220 Darby Common ~ Fremont, CA
(Contractor)

N. JAPAN SYSTEMS CO., LTD - Professional / 1-5-17 Dojima, Kita-ku, Osaka
JAPAN (Professional)

O. HERO CO,, LTD - Professional / 6-6-6 Nishinakajima Yodogawa-ku, Osaka
JAPAN (Professional)

P. PROMTEC INDUSTRIEMONTAGE GMBH - Contractor / Benzstrasse 2,
GERMANY (installer)

Q. GO GREEN CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Contractor / PO Box 956 ~ Crystal Bay,
NV (roofing contractor)

R. TK SYSTEMS, INC. - Contractor / 6949 Buckeye Street ~ Chino, CA (Contractor-
pallet racking)

S. BBS AUTOMATION PENANG SDN.BHD - Contractor / Plot 313 Pulau Pinang,
Malaysia (Contractor) |

T. STERICYCLE ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS, INC. - General / 28161 N Keith
~ Lake Forest, IL (labor)

U. CENTIMARK CORPORATION - Contractor / 5380 South Watt ~ Sacramento
(roofing contractor)

V. BRIDGE CRANE SPECIALISTS, LLC - Contractor / PO Box 940 ~ Kiefer, OK
(Contractor)

W. PLAN B CONSULTANCY, INC. - Professional / 696 McVey Avenue ~ Lake
Oswego, OR (consultant)

X. AUTOMATION NTH, LLC - Professional / 491 Waldron ~ Lavergne, TN
(Engineer)

Y. EATON CORPORATION - Professional / 1000 Moon Township, PA (Engineer)
7. AMADOR STATELINES, INC. - Transportation / 1331 C Street ~ Sacramento,
CA (bus transportation)

AA. ATS ASSEMBLY AND TEST, INC. - Contractor / One ATS Drive ~ Nixom, MI
(Contractor)

BB. KYZEN CORPORATION - Contractor / 430 Harding Industries ~ Nashville,
TN (Contractor)

CC. MEI RIGGING & CRATING, LLC - Contractor / 3838 Western Way NE ~
Albany, OR (Contractor)

DD. INNOVATIVE MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS, INC. - Professional / 825
Watters Creek ~ Allen, TX (prof)

8. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports

9. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

10.  DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action):
Discussion and direction to staff regarding legislation or legislative issues proposed
by legislators or by other entities permitted by the Nevada State Legislature to submit

bill draft requests, or such legislative issues as may be deemed by the Chairman or the
Board to be of critical significance to Storey County. Specific bills will include SB 57




11.

12.

13.

14.

15

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

which staff has expressed full support and bills SB176, SB244, SB314, AB289, SB271,
AB290, SB356, SB469 AND AB384.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
Authorize the County Manager to execute contract(s) as needed with JBA Consulting
Engineers to provide engineering, general consulting and 3rd party review services in
an amount not to exceed $50,000.00.

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review and possible approval of the 2017-2018 General Fund Final Budget for
submission to the Department of Taxation

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY WATER AND SEWER BOARD
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review and possible approval of the 2017-2018 Water-Sewer Final Budget for
submission to the Department of Taxation

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review and possible approval of the 2017-2018 General Fund Final Budget for
submission to the Department of Taxation

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review and possible approval of the 2017-2018 474 Fire District Final Budget for
submission to the Department of Taxation

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review and possible approval of the 2017-2018 General Fund Final Budget for
submission to the Department of Taxation

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:




Amendment to the Liquor Licnese for Lance Gilman, from Mustang Ranch
Steakhouse and Red Light Lounge to Virginia City Bar & Grill.

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Parcel Map 2017-011 by Nancy Krushke. The Applicant requests approval of a Parcel
Map dividing one parcel into two parcels located at 20 South N Street, Virginia City,
Storey County, Nevada, Assessor Parcel Number (APN): 001-246-11).

DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Business License Second Readings:

A. SUNBELT RENTALS, INC. - General / 2341 Deerfield Dr ~ Fort Mill, SC (courier)
B. MBP ENTERPRISES - General / 631 Dunn Circle ~ Sparks (party rentals)

C. JOANNE PANTALEO - Professional / 16002 Legacy Rd ~ Tustin, CA (consulting)
D. SIR AMERICA, LLC - Contractor / 1300 Triad Blvd ~ Saginaw, TX (contractor)
E. INDUSTRIAS REVIRIEGO - Contractor / Torrejon de Ardoz SPAIN (contractor)
F. BARN DOOR, LLC - Home Business / 1910 Empire Road ~ Reno (handyman)

G. ACCENT FOOD SERVICES, LLC - General / 16209 Central Commerce ~
Pflugerville, TX (vending mach)

H. BLACKBURN AND SON, LLC - Contractor / 2301 West 4th Street ~ Reno
(contractor)

I. KRATOS PUBLIC SAFETY & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC. - Contractor / 4820
Eastgate Mall ~ San Diego, CA (contractor)

J. MCKINSTRY ESSENTION, LLC - Contractor / 5005 3rd Ave ~ Seattle, WA
(contractor)

K. DYNAMIC CONTROLS SOLUTIONS, INC. - Contractor / 46998 Magellan ~
Wixom, MI (contractor)

L. WINSUPPLY RENO NV - Contractor / 755 Timber Way ~ Reno (contractor)

M. JABIL - Contractor / 6375 San Ignacia Avenue ~ San Jose, CA (electronics
manufacturing)

N. EXECUTIVE TOWING AND RECOVERY, LLC - Transportation / 20 Hwy 341 ~
Moundhouse (transp)

O. DMG MORI USA, INC. - Contractor / 2400 Huntington ~ Hoffman Estates, IL
(contractor)

P. VISTA SOLUTIONS (US), INC. - Contractor / 440 Burroughs St ~ Detroit, MI
(quality control)

Q. PENINGTON PAINTING COMPANY, LLC - Contractor / 6313 W
Commonwealth ~ Chandler, AZ (contr)

R. BATTLE BORN CONSULTING SERVICES - Home Business / 166 S Q St ~ VC
(consulting)




S.3S, SAFFLE SERVICE SUPPORT AB - Contractor / 5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno
(contractor)

T. JANSSONS ELEKTRO AKTIEBOLAG - Contractor / Boxholm SWEDEN
(contractor)

U. SWISSLOG-ACCALON AB - Contractor / Boxholm SWEDEN (contractor)

V. ENZELBERGER INDUSTRIEMONTAGEN GMBH - Contractor / Treuchtlingen
GERMANY (contractor)

W. ECLIPSE AUTOMATION SOUTHEAST, LLC - Contractor / 401 Ryland ~ Reno
(contractor)

X. AKAL CONSTRUCTION, INC. dba Ace Design, LLC - Cont. / 7455 Arroyo
Crossing ~ Las Vegas (const)

Y. SYNCREON TECHNOLOGY (AMERICA), INC. - General / 2555 USA Parkway
(logistics) TRI

26. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

27. ADJOURNMENT

28.  CLOSED SESSION
Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations
with the Storey County Firefighters Association IAFF Local 4227 and Storey County
Sheriff’s Oftice Employees Association NAPSO Local 9110. This meeting will
commence immediately following the regular commission meeting.

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and
institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all




bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ /www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Office of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
I, Vanessa Stephens , Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 5/10/2017; Virginia City Post
Office at 132 S C St, Virginia City, NV, the Storey County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City,
NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City
Highlands Fire Department located a 2610 Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire
Department located at 431 Canyon Way, Lockwood, NV.




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: | Estimate of Time Required: 0 -5
Agenda: Consent [x] ] Regular agenda [] | Public hearing required []
1. Title: Approval of the minutes for April 4, 2017.

7.

Recommended motion: Approval of the minutes as submitted.

Prepared by: VANESSA

Department: MANAGER Telephone: 847-1111

Staff Summary: Minutes attached.

Supporting M

aterials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 0

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:

@ Department Head Department Name: MANAGER
County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved

[ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied

[ | Continued




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, APRIL 4, 2017 9:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman McGuffey, Commissioner Gilman, Comptroller
Hugh Gallagher, County Manager Pat Whitten, Clerk & Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, District
Attorney Anne Langer, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Fire Chief Gary Hames, Director of Tourism Deny
Dotson, Communications Director Dave Ballard, Emergency Management Director Joe Curtis,
Director of Security Melanie Keener, IT Director James Deane, Management Analyst Jennifer
McCain, Fire Chief Appointee Jeff Nevin, Community Outreach Director Cherie Nevin,
Community Chest Director Shaun Griffin, Director of Economic Development Dean Haymore,
Public Works Director Jason VanHavel, Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 9:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman McBride at 9:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman McBride led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for April 4, 2017

Motion: Approve Agenda for April 4, 2017, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=2)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for February 21, 2017.

Motion: Approve Minutes for February 21, 2017, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=2)




5. CONSENT AGENDA

I For possible action: Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $587,369.85 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $1,279,171.02.

I For possible action, approval of contract renewal between The Aging and Disability
Services (ADSD) and Storey County. A renewal is required for provision of services
for children with intellectual disabilities within Storey County.

III For possible action, approval of Special Meeting of the Board of County
Commissioners on April 12, 2017 for the purpose of canvassing the April 11, 2017
Special Recall Election results and potential subsequent actions as may be
appropriate.

IV For possible action, business licenses first readings:
A. SOUL HOSPITALITY, LLC (THE) dba The Soul from Seoul - General / 2325 Kietzke
~ Reno (food)
B. BAXTER & SON MECHANICAL CO., INC. - Contractor / 35 Stokes Dr ~
Moundhouse (contractor)
C. DOS CO., LTD - Contractor / 1-15-27 Nishi-ku, Osaka City JAPAN (contractor)
D. SQUAW VALLEY SKI CORP - General / 1901 Chamonix Place ~ Olympic Valley, CA
(promos)
E. REP PLUMBING, LLC - Contractor / 2528 Business Pkwy ~ Minden (contractor)
F. MINO AUTOMATION USA, INC. - Professional / 1670 Harmon Rd ~ Auburn Hills,
MI (consulting)
G. PHOENIX INSTALLATION & MGMT CO, INC. - Contractor / 347 Have a Hill Rd ~
Shelbyville, KY (equipment installation)
H. NIKON METROLOGY, INC. - Professional / 12701 Grand River Rd ~ Brighton, MI
(consulting)
I. CARDINAL CONTRACTING, LLC - Contractor / 2300 S Tibbs Ave ~ Indianapolis, IN
(contractor)
J. EAST FORK ROOFING, LLC - Contractor / 260 Freeport Blvd ~ Sparks (contractor)
K. VARIATION REDUCTION SOLUTIONS - Professional / 14901 Galleon Ct ~
Plymouth, MI (engineer)
L. JS] VENTURES, INC. - Contractor / 1111 S Roop ~ Carson City (septic system
cleaning)
M. MERCIER ELECT & MECHANICAL, INC. - Contractor / 115 Mayhew St ~ W Point,
MS (contractor)
N. CSC SERVICEWORKS, INC. - General / 303 Sunnyside Blvd ~ Plainview, NY (coin
oper. machinery)
O. TEAMTECHNIK MASCHINEN UND ANLAGEN GMBH, LLC - Professional /
Planckstr 40, 71691 Freirergamneckar GERMANY (consulting)
P. ODAWARA AUTOMATION, INC. - Contractor / 4805 S County Rd ~ Tipp City, OH
(machinery)
Q. RSI INSTALLATIONS, INC. - General / 13524 Vintage Place ~ Chino, CA (staffing)

2




R. DERIK JONATHAN MURILLO-VAZQUEZ - Contractor / 1850 Selmi Dr ~ Reno
(contractor)

S. FULL OF HEART SPIRITUAL HEALING - General / 164A South C St (life coach) VC
T. SILVER SPOON EATERY, LLC dba Silver Spoon Eatery - General / 171 South C St
(restaurant) VC

U. PACIFIC INTEGRATED HANDLING, INC. - Contractor / 10215 Portland Ave ~
Tacoma, WA (contractor)

V. IMES GROUP, LLC - Professional / 6601 Vaught Ranch Rd ~ Austin, TX (engineer)
W. PENTA BUILDING GROUP, LLC (THE) - Contractor / 181 East Warm Springs ~ Las
Vegas (contractor)

X. KING BEE CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Contractor / 804 Mill Street ~ Reno (contractor)
Y. TEAMTECHNIK PRODUCTION TECHNOLOGY, LLC - Contractor / UL ZA GORA
23, PL 32-040 POLAND (contractor)

Public Comment:
County Manager Whitten: The Special Meeting on April 12, 2017 will be held at 10:00 AM.

Motion: Approve Consent Agenda for April 4, 2017 with the addition of 10:00 AM to item III,
Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

Commissioner Gilman joined the meeting,.

6. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
Community Chest Director Shaun Griffin:
o Thank you to Commissioner McGuffey for helping with water issues at the Community Chest.
o April 14t is the annual fundraiser featuring Rodney Crowell. This event is fully underwritten
with all ticket sale proceeds going to Community Chest.

Community Development Director, Dean Haymore:
e Groundbreaking took place yesterday in TRI for Studio 6 Hotel.
o Things are very busy in TRI, especially with Tesla and Switch.

Public Works Director Jason VanHavel:
o There has been a rash of water leaks over the winter. All of these issues are being addressed.
¢ The “to-do” list for Six Mile Canyon is getting shorter and there is optimism that the road will
open sooner rather than later.

County Manager Pat Whitten:
» Recognized County employee Janet Arnold, Office Manager in the Assessor’s Office, who is

retiring after 22 years. Ms. Arnold will be missed.
7. BOARD COMMENT (No action - No Public Comment)

Commissioner Gilman: Read a prepared statement: “The purpose of this memo is to recuse myself
from any agenda item concerning the appointment of an interim County Sheriff between April 11t%,
2017 and November 6%, 2018, if the “For Recall” side prevails in the election on April 11, 2017. Talso

3




ask to be excluded from any interview process of applicants for the position of Sheriff during that
same time frame.

While there is no conflict of interest present which precludes me by law from participating in the
appointment process, I hope my recusal will provide reassurance to the public that any appointment
of an interim Sheriff in the event the Recall succeeds will be done by the County administration and
Board of Commissioners using arms-length vetting and appointment procedures without favor or
prejudice to any purported private interest.”

Vice Chairman McGuffey:

e NACO news: President Trump signed an Executive Order to repeal BLM's Planning 2.0
Initiative, intended to bring counties together with BLM to be part of the process in decision
making in the counties. It was clear that BLM would do what BLM wanted to do. NACO
jumped on this to “kill it” - which the Executive Order does.

o With the help of Jay Carmona and James Hoyt of the Highlands HOA's, the first steps towards
building a community center have been taken. A lot of groundwork still needs to be
completed.

e Parking and speeding issues near the school bus stop in the Highlands have been discussed.

e A meeting will be held once a month to talk about issues in the Highlands.

8. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): Discussion and direction to staff regarding legislation or
legislative issues proposed by legislators or by other entities permitted by the Nevada State
Legislature to submit bill draft requests, or such legislative issues as may be deemed by the Chairman
or the Board to be of critical significance to Storey County. Specific bills will include SB 57 which
staff has expressed full support and bills AB 271, AB 350, AB 354, SB 88, SB 289, SB 314, SB 389, and
SB 477.

County Manager Whitten reviewed:

e SB439, the 5 cent diesel tax option has committee meeting today. This would allow each
County to institute a diesel-sales tax up to 5 cents. Diesel sales are currently tax-free.

e SB57is a bill that is in peril and is currently stalled in committee. This bill has been discussed
at previous meetings. Washoe and Douglas Counties have advised the Chair, Senator Parks,
they do not want to be on the Commission anymore. Attempt will be made to get this out of
committee and on to the floor.

Mr. Osborne reviewed:

e AB271- Re: Collective Bargaining Agreement. This bill would make the fact finder have the
final say in an arbitration. This bill would eliminate the opportunity for the parties to come to
an agreement prior to arbitration.

o AB350-Re: Employee Orientation. This bill requires a Union representative be present during
30 minutes of orientation to do union business. Mr. Osborne feels union business should be
conducted as has been done and not during the orientation period. This bill makes orientation
subject to collective bargaining.

e SB88 - Body camera fund. This bill is moving along - a State level fund allowing jurisdictions
to tap into to fund body cameras if the body camera program becomes a requirement.

¢ SB289 - Out-of-network. Currently under health benefit insurance, there are in-network and
out-of-network doctors. This bill requires the County/insurance companies pay for an out-of-
network doctor up to the 80% of other out-of-network doctors in the State.

4




SB314 - Wind energy bill. A county could not put height limitations on wind energy.

SB389 - Alien info bill. Prohibits local employer from providing certain information to the
Federal government regarding alien status of an employee. This does not appear to be getting
any traction.

SB477 - Residential-care zoning bill. Contains provisions for disabled persons, drug rehab
centers, halfway houses, and group homes, which would eliminate the counties’ decision to
eliminate or deny a Special Use Permit. This bill would also define these uses as “single
family, residential uses”. Potentially this bill could cause water issues in areas such as the
Highlands, as well as zoning implications.

SB244 - Historic digging bill. State tribal organizations are having issues when remains are
found in construction sites, or otherwise. Currently the State comes in and will shut down a
project and require permitting for archaeological dig. The State doesn’t report digs to the tribes
and remains are going to museums, storage, or places the tribes feel are inappropriate. There
are some issues with wording in this bill which need to be clarified.

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and Possible action to authorize Public
Works Department to commence proceedings to remove obstructions on Sutro Springs Road located
on property bearing APN 004-291-28 and having a street address of 269 Edith Lane in the Mark
Twain area of Storey County.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis presented this item regarding an obstruction at 269 Edith
Lane, an extension of Sutro Springs Road - a road existing since 1869 and still showing on a 1923

map.

A request was made in 1995 to divide the area north of Mark Twain into 40-acre parcels.
The tentative map shows Sutro Springs Road crossing the 40-acre parcels.

It was removed from the final map, except for a small portion in the northeast corner -
identifying it as a travel roadway.

Since then, it has been identified on-a number of maps, including USGS, as an existing road.
Two landowners have identified this roadway as access to their property.

The road has been used by a number of people to gain access to BLM lands before and after
1995.

The parcel at 269 Edith Lane was purchased in October 2016 by Mr. and Mrs. Thomas. The
owners began to exclude people from using the roadway where it crosses this 40-acre parcel.
The owners filed numerous complaints to the Sheriff of trespassers using this area.

The District Attorney’s office sent a letter to the Thomas’ advising that obstruction of a
roadway could potentially be a misdemeanor charge, requesting removal of the obstruction.
A letter was received from the Thomas’ attorney advising of their position.

The D.A. responded that people using that roadway would not be prosecuted for trespassing
as it is a public roadway.

There is provision under NRS 405 advising if the obstruction is not removed in five days the
Public Works Department has the authority to remove the obstruction. There is also
opportunity to recover costs for the Public Works Department as well as attorney’s fees and
costs incurred.

This item could result in litigation to determine whether or not this is a public roadway.
The District Attorney’s Office does not have the authority to tell Public Works what to do.
The Board is requested to authorize Public Works to remove the obstruction in concurrence
with the DA’s office.




The question is should a private landowner litigate this issue because it is access to certain
private parcels.

The road is used by a portion of the Mark Twain area and seems to be more of a community
issue than a private landowner issue.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Does the (Thomas’) attorney agree with this?

Mr. Loomis: No.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: What are the reasons?

Mr. Loomis: It seems because the large parcel map approved by the County does not show the
roadway except in a small, northeast corner of the map.

Does approval of that map eliminate the public roadway that existed? That will be the issue.
A statutory process for vacating a public roadway was not utilized in the course of approving
the 1995 map.

The roadway has been used consistently by the public after that map was approved.

There is a prescriptive right as well as a RS2477 roadway never properly vacated in the process
of approving the large parcel map.

Commissioner Gilman: How much damage might the opening of the road do to the 40-acre parcel?

Mr. Loomis: The landowners’ attorney has asked the title company to look at this to see if they will
get involved in any litigation.

Most Title Insurance policies do not insure items that are open and notorious on the ground.
The roadway has been there over 100 years - it is open and notorious.

If not covered by Title Insurance, it is not - by itself, a damage. It is an existing right-of-way.
The owners contend it is not an existing right-of-way - that it's private property. So re-
opening of the roadway out could affect value to the property.

Commissioner Gilman: Is there a picture of how the roadway affects the property?

Mr. Loomis showed a tentative map of the large parcels on the power point screen indicating a
roadway that has been there for some time, which would be considered an extension of the Sutro
Springs roadway.

This map was recorded in approximately 2002.

This was recorded by the Harpers to show that they had access to their parcel to the
northwest.

A similar map was recorded by Mr. Zachary showing access to his property further to the
northeast.

A record of survey recorded in 2002 or 2003 by Jack Randell shows the access road across the
40 acres down to Mark Twain.

Mr. Loomis continued showing pictures of the area including pictures of the obstructions on the
roadway which were placed in the last couple of months.




* This is not a maintained road. Itis a county access road as referenced in NRS 405 and 403 that
the RS2477 roadway goes back in history. In 1866, mining laws were passed stating any public
highways and open use are hereby conveyed by the federal government to the states.

o This is (a road) that can be traced back to 1869. Title to the property belonged to the federal
government at the time the roadway existed, making it a conveyance under the 1866 mining
law - later known as statute 2477.

¢ This (road) was conveyed from federal land to private ownership approximately in the 50’s.

* The road is used to this day.

Commissioner Gilman: Is litigation imminent on this roadway?

Mr. Loomis:
o The property owners have filed for temporary protective orders against three of the neighbors
requesting the neighbors be kept off the property.
o This will not establish title to the roadway.
* The process that may be initiated today is what Mr. Loomis would see as establishing title to
the roadway.

Commissioner Gilman: What is being requested today is to have the barriers removed?

Mzr. Loomis: To authorize Public Works Department to remove the barriers in conjunction with
request from the D.A.’s office. How to proceed is not clear, but the District Attorney would like to
have the authority to have those barriers removed if that looks like the best way to proceed.

Chair McBride: Is there any indication the most previous recorded map was an oversight that this
road was eliminated on it or was it deliberate that this road was eliminated?

Mr. Loomis: This was discussed with Mr. Haymore, Planning Director at the time.

e One of the conditions on the approval of the large parcel map was that there be cul-de-sacs at
the end of Sutro Springs Road and that the developer place “no trespassing” signs so the
people using the roadway would be residents of the 40-acre parcels.

e Mr. Haymore indicated he was unaware that Sutro Springs Road was a public road at the time.

e Looking at the maps, Mr. Haymore would agree that it looked like a public roadway.

Chair McBride: How far is the residence from the roadway?
Mr. Loomis: About 300 to 400 feet.

Commissioner Gilman: The County will be taking a position in this settlement forthcoming - is that
enhanced by removal of the obstructions or is the County doing, as Mr. Loomis sees it, our
responsibility under the requirements of County government?

Mr. Loomis: It's the interpretation of the District Attorney’s office that Sutro Springs Road is a public
roadway not subject to being blocked by the owners of the property with due process. We could
initiate it by leaving the barriers there, but (the owners) took the action to place the barriers rather
than seeking to get title to the property established. This has been a burden to people in the area.




This is why the (District Attorney’s office) thinks it should be removed and then have the title
established.

Commissioner Gilman: It appears there is NRS statute that directs the Commission to follow that
direction.

Mr. Loomis: Does not think it says you have to. It is the opinion of the District Attorney’s office that
this is a public roadway. There is authority within the statute to ask the Public Works Department to
remove the obstructions.

Vice Chair McGuffey: Has access been restricted to property owners beyond this property?

Mr. Loomis: The obstructions are on 269 Edith Lane. People are not prohibited from getting up to
the obstructions and then going back.

Vice Chair McGuffey: There are properties north of (the obstruction). Does closing this road
eliminate access to property owners to the north?

Mr. Loomis:; Yes.

Vice Chair McGuffey: That was the intent of the law in 1889, to allow miners access to their
mines/ property.

Mr. Loomis: Any public way it was being used, is conveyed.
Chair McBride: Are the Thomases here today? Anyone representing the Thomases?

Public Comment:
Tom Zachary, owner of 80 acres at Sutro Springs: Mr. Zachary has used this road over 44 years.
Looking at the power point map, Mr. Zachary indicated where the roads give access to his property
and Mr. Harper’s property.
o These roads are the only access to Mr. Harper’s property.
e Another access to Mr. Zachary’s property has been established, but this road was the only
access until 1973.
e Mr. Zachary has used this road a lot. If it is allowed to be blocked, you can’t get there.
e Mr. Zachary uses Pine Nut Road, a private road established by Baselite who bought the
easement. Baselite can stop use anytime.
e Houses were on those properties and the roads were being used before this courthouse was
built. Surveys were done in the late 1800’s. There were houses on both properties in 1875.
e Those roads were established to access our properties. The roads do not go through the
property, only to the properties.
e The roads are shown clearly on the 1923 map which is in County offices.

Jason Van Havel, Public Works Director: Whatever action is taken today, Mr. VanHavel wants to be
sure there are no unintended consequences to the County of having to maintain this road in the
future.




Mr. Loomis, referring to the map, pointed out areas that are BLM land - public land. A lot of people
use that road for access to that area, section 16. Section 17 is private land.

Looking at the map, Mr. Zachary pointed out where the obstruction is on the road.

Commissioner Gilman: The evidence suggests this is a public road and this Board would have the
authorization to have the barriers removed until such time as this road is identified in some formal
process.

Mr. Loomis: Agree.

Motion: I move to authorize the Public Works Department at the request of the District Attorney’s
Office to commence proceedings to remove obstructions from the Sutro Springs Road located at or
near 269 Edith Lane, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by:
Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Possible action to require first reading of an ordinance to
repeal chapter 8.32 of Storey County Code addressing hazardous materials and toxic substances.

Mr. Loomis stated this item came about as the result of a meeting with AUECC, a company
proposing to relocate in the old Alcoa building at TRI. This company intends to refine highly
hazardous materials. Mr. Loomis reviewed County ordinances and came up with chapter 8.32
dealing with hazardous materials and toxic waste. This chapter creates a Hazardous Materials Board,
including Fire Chief, Sheriff, Director of Public Works, Emergency Management coordinator, as well
as a couple of others.

Fire Chief Hames believed this ordinance had been repealed. After research, the Fire Chief’s office
found that it still exists.

The Board has the authority to issue permits for use of hazardous materials within the county and to
take policing, inspection, and regulatory actions and are authorized to adopt regulations to control
use and handling of hazardous materials within the county. The ordinance has apparently never
been utilized.

Emergency Management Director Joe Curtis indicated his office is in favor of repeal of the chapter as
is the Fire Chief’s Office.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Is there something in place to handle these issues?

Mr. Loomis: The State has the authority to address hazardous materials operations within the
County. The State was at the meeting with AUECC and explained the (State) process for issuing
hazardous materials permits.

There is authority within the State and Federal governments to regulate uses of hazardous materials.

Public Comment;
None.




Commissioner Gilman: This regulation appears to set a board within the County regulate the
County’s own environment with a certain level of control of what comes in to the County. Without
this chapter, the County will rely on the State to “oversee our destiny” with development.

Mr. Loomis: True to some extent. Under the International Fire Code, 2012 Edition, the Fire District
has additional authority over hazardous materials being utilized within the County.

Chief Hames: This ordinance was developed in 1989. There were a lot of issues with hazardous
materials in the ‘80s and there was rush to write ordinances and statutes.

e At the same time, the State started writing ordinances and implemented the permitting
processes. The County felt it was not fair for companies to come in and have to have two
permits.

e The Fire Department has direct input to the State and monitors the field inspections.

e Through Emergency Management, there is a board in place that functions well and
additionally there is a special use permit process. This is regulated through the 2012
International Fire Code with very specific regulations, which circumvent the existing policy
(ordinance). Instead of 8.32, modern fire codes have been adopted. This is controlled locally
with the State tracking on a statewide basis.

e The responsibility given to the local fire department through an interlocal agreement with the
State and the use of the International Fire Code.

Commissioner Gilman: In the event GOED and the State identified a company they would like to see
specifically in Storey County, would they have the ability to override and place that company in the
county?

Chief Hames: No. This is where the 2012 Fire Code comes in. It is strictly and solely in the County’s
control. The State approves through a SUP or if not required, once the Fire Department has given
approval the State tracks it.

Commissioner Gilman: Based on the County’s placement in the industrial world, there is a high
probability of having to deal with these kinds of elements. Just want to be certain that a control level
is not given up that would be important to health, safety, and welfare to the County and all of the
businesses.

Chief Hames: Agrees. This process is followed well as shown when fines and citations have been
issued, all through the 2012 International Fire Code. Chief Hames thought 8.32 had already been

dropped.

Austin Osborne: As part of the special use permit process and the list of uses, the State agencies are
going to regulate the use but not necessarily going to stop the use or place a use where appropriate
that’s going to be referred to the local jurisdiction. The local jurisdiction is going to use its ordinances
for that purpose.

Chief Hames: AEUCC has to go through the chemical use process through the State. The State will
not hear this matter until AEUCC has a special use permit issued by the County. This gives
reassurances the County is in control.

10




County Manager Whitten: Would tend to support repeal (of 8.32). A process is on the books that is
not being followed and is being addressed through the 2012 code and NDEP. The County is well
positioned to control its own destiny and allow NDEP to provide expertise to monitor that the
County does not have.

At the request of District Attorney Anne Langer, motion on this item is continued to the next Board
meeting as the Ordinance is not available to be read into the record.

11. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Liquor Board Second Reading:
a. Bonanza Saloon -Liquor License. Operating at 27 N C Street, Virginia City, NV. Tina Perkins,
lessee.

Chairman McBride: There was a procedural error at the last Commission meeting. This matter is on
the agenda for correction of that error.

Chairman McBride: I have a liquor license at an establishment in proximately to the Bonanza Saloon.
My vote on this item no more benefits myself or anyone else licensed in the same manner in that area.

Commissioner Gilman: Same disclosure, as [ own an establishment in proximately to the Bonanza
Saloon.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve Liquor License, Second Reading for the Bonanza Saloon operating by Tina Perkins,
lessee, at 27 N C Street, Virginia City, NV, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

13. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE THE STOREYCOUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

14. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Sheriff’s licensing board second readings:
a. Bonanza Saloon -General Business and Cabaret License. Operating at 27 N C Street, Virginia City,
NV. Tina Perkins, lessee.

Chairman McBride: I have a General Business and Cabaret License at an establishment in
proximately to the Bonanza Saloon. My vote on this item no more benefits myself or anyone else

licensed in the same manner in that area.

Commissioner Gilman: I also have a business in close proximately to the Bonanza Saloon and believe
I have a responsibility to vote on this issue.

Public Comment:
None

11




Motion: Approve second reading for the Bonanza Saloon General and Cabaret License operated by
Tina Perkins, lessee 27 N C Street, Virginia City, NV, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

Chairman McBride called for recess at 10:13 AM
Meeting reconvened at 10:25 AM

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Tentative Budget Hearings for FY 2017/18
Commissioner Gilman recused himself from any discussion or vote related to the Sheriff's budget.

Comptroller Hugh Gallagher presented and reviewed the 2017/18 Tentative Budget. This has been a
difficult budget which gives an indication of where the County is and what is being done.

e REVENUES: Total revenues are budgeted to decrease from the previous year. This is based
on a decline in Centrally Assessed compared to last year. In addition, Service Charges will
decrease due to a reclassification of Tesla Reimbursement payments from the General Fund to
the 474 Fire District.

e CLERK/TREASURER: Major increase in capital outlay for replacement of voting machines.

o DISTRICT COURT: Increase in expense based on anticipated increase in hearings and trials,
and the use of a Public Defender.

¢ GENETIC MARKER TESTING: Revenues from Justice and District Court fees. Expenditures
are for items such as analytical testing.

e« DRUG COURT: Revenue is received at the time of sentencing and passed through to the
Carson City Alternative Sentencing per Court order.

o RECORDER: Increase in services due to retirement of ADS, the main computer program, with
additional fees for migration.

e TECHNOLOGY FUND: Shared by the Recorder, Clerk/Treasurer, and Assessor who can
charge additional fees which can be used to improve technology in those departments.

e BUILDINGS & GROUNDS: There is a reduction created by the retirement of the Public Works
Director. Expenditures for streetlights and historical preservation adjusted to reflect current
projections.

e POOLS & PARK: Decrease due to elimination of Parks and Recreation line items picked up by
the Park Fund.

e SERVICE DEPARTMENT: Increase due to reallocation of all Public Works employees,
addition of Assistant Public Works Director, and increase in insurance premiums.

¢ ROADS: Revenue increase due to anticipated import tonnage fees, gas tax, and favorable
interest rates. Appropriations revenue decrease based on retirement of road projects and some
projects being completed this year rather than next.

16. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY WATER AND SEWER BOARD

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Tentative Budget Hearings for FY 2017/18 for the Water
and Sewer services in Virginia City, Gold Hill and Silver City.

Mr. Gallagher reviewed budgets for Water and Sewer services.

12




WATER SYSTEM: Revenue increase due to favorable interest rates. Appropriations will
increase slightly due to system maintenance agreements. There is possibility of paying off an
outstanding bond, saving approximately $100,000 in interest.

VIRGINIA DIVIDE SEWER SYSTEM: Revenue expected to increase slightly due to funds
received from USDA and anticipated interest rate increases. Little change to appropriations.

Public Comment:

None

Motion: Approve Tentative Budget FY 2017/18 for the Water and Sewer services in Virginia City,
Gold Hill and Silver City, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by:
Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

18. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Tentative Budget Hearings for FY 2017/18.
Mr. Gallagher continued:

USDA BOND FUND: Phases 2 through 5 of the Wastewater Treatment Plant to begin this
year. USDA has appropriated $6.1 million in bond proceeds, and $9 million in grant funds.
Bond payments will come from the Virginia Divide sewer.

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT: Mr. Gallagher suggests this budget be approved as
submitted due to changes in administration and operation brought on by the retirement of the
Director. The budget will be adjusted between the tentative and final when a new Director is
in place.

DISTRICT ATTORNEY: Expenditures increased due to reclassification of the Assistant
District Attorney.

JUSTICE COURT: Salaries increased due to reclassification and step increases.
Appropriations decreased due to a decrease in training.

JUSTICE COURT FUND: Authority for this fund created by NRS 176. There are two revenue
accounts that must stay in this fund until statutory time limit has expired. At that time, the
balance in the fund goes into the general.

COMMUNICATIONS: Salaries increased based on a salary study and CBA. Maintenance
agreement has been transferred to Service/Supplies from Capital Outlay.

IT DEPARTMENT: Wages increased - equipment maintenance and communications
decreased to reflect current trends.

COMPTROLLER: Salaries increased due to reclassifications and adjustments. Professional
services increased based on the retirement of the CPA that conducted the annual audit since
1972.

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT: Services and supplies increased for additional computer
equipment and professional services to inventory unreinforced masonry buildings.
EMERGENCY MITIGATION FUND: A special revenue fund created by Resolution 08-266 to
set aside to pay expenses incurred by local government to mitigate the effects of an emergency.
There is $100,000 in this fund. How to increase this amount is to be determined.
COMMUNITY RELATIONS: Salaries/benefits increased due to addition of directors for
Virginia City and Lockwood senior centers. The addition was necessary to have oversight of
the operations of the senior centers that are scheduled to receive $135,000 for operation.

13




Appropriations remain the same 7 of the 11 non-profits. Requesting more appropriation:
Community Chest $30,000; Library $10,000; St. Mary’s Art Center $14,000; and Health Care
Services $19,000. Request for more information from these non-profits will be made prior to
approval of the final budget.

e PARKFUND: As of June 30, 2016, the balance of the Park Funds total $121,888, broken down

as follows:
Virginia City $ 6,873
Virginia City Highlands $44,618
Mark Twain $33,433
Lockwood $36,953

e SHERIFF: The County Manager and BOC Chairman were included in the review of the
budget. The Sheriff’'s budget dramatically affects the General Fund. There are issues to be
resolved before the final.

Mr. Gallagher continued:

1. A review of incidents shows the lowest since 2012, indicating that 24/7 double coverage
may or may not be appropriate at this time. The budget committee would like to see
material relating to this issue.

2. There are 16 deputies available for duty. A person can work a maximum of 1,880 hours
per year. Double coverage requires 19 deputies; single coverage - 10; in between would
be 16. Correctional officers are different.

3. With inclusion of the BIA contract, double coverage is highly suggested.

4, InJanuary, the Sheriff adjusted schedules to have people on 12, and others on 10 -both
shifts used for public safety.

5. Going from 12 to 10 increases staff.

6. The budget committee listened to the Sheriff’s input which needs consideration.

7. Double coverage does not mean double “plus” coverage. Double coverage for a week is
336 hours. 10 hour shifts is 400 hours, making it double plus, requiring additional
funding for the extra 64 hours, with a potential yearly impact of ¥: million dollars.

8. The Commission needs to look at double coverage versus double “plus” coverage and
make the appropriate approval.

9. Scheduling is inconsistent and needs to be redirected.

10. The BIA contract for housing of Native American inmates needs to be analyzed.

11. Sheriff had requested 9 vehicles but has settled on 3.

12. The problem of deputies picking up vehicles in one sector and going to duty in another
still exists. This could be 30,000 miles per vehicle, per year. This needs to stop.

13. Sheriff has a plan to schedule by sector - a great idea.

Based on the above, Mr. Gallagher requests approval of the Sheriff's Tentative Budget. However,
documentation needs to be presented before the budget is finalized.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Has a problem with the 46.7% increase in services and supplies.
Mr. Gallagher: This includes increases in utilities, training, auto maintenance, computer equipment,
uniforms, and insurance deductible. There may be adjustment for public safety previously in capital

outlay, which is now in services and supplies.

Mr. Whitten: There will be other adjustments prior to the final.
14




Public Comment;

None

Motion: Approve the Sheriff’s tentative budget for 2017-18, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice
Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Chairman McBride, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=2)

20. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE 474 FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT BOARD

21. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Tentative Budget Hearings for FY 2017/18 for the NRS 474 Fire Protection District.

Mr. Gallagher continued.

474 FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT: Reclassification of Tesla reimbursements for TRI fire
services provides additional revenue. Appropriations budgeted to increase in training, auto
maintenance and tires. The Fire District is currently under collective bargaining which may
not be completed by the final budget.

FIRE EMERGENCY FUND: Created by Resolution 07-240. This fund must be used for
emergencies and not for operating expenses. There is a threshold of $1 million- anything over
must be credited to the Fire Operating Fund. This fund needs to be increased as much as it
can.

MUTUAL AID: Created by Resolution 12-356 to account for all deployments and billings
outside the 474 Fire District. [tems will not budgeted to this account this year due to
uncertainty of district deployment. This is basically and in-and-out account.

474 CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND: New this year, this fund was created under Resolution 16-
435 and is primarily used for purchase obligations within 474 Fire District, including
equipment acquisition, building additions, etc.

Public Comment:

Motion: Approve the 474 Fire Protection District tentative budget for 2017-18, Action: Approve,
Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried
by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

22. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

23. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Tentative Budget Hearings for FY 2017/18

Mr. Gallagher:

COMMISSIONERS BUDGET: Salaries increased based on step increases, adjustments and
NRS requirements governing longevity. Appropriations increased due to purchases of
computer equipment and require insurance deductibles.

ADMINISTRATIVE: Salaries increased due to step increases and adjustments. Benefits
projected to increase due to healthy insurance and retiree insurance subsidy.

15




HEALTH & HUMAN SERVICES: Salaries increased due to reclassification. Increases in
consumer health protection and rural child protective services are anticipated.

PLANNING: Salary and benefits increase is offset by a reduction in professional services.
INDIGENT MEDICAL: A special fund created by Resolution 97-26 under NRS 428, Indigent
Persons. Revenue is received from the 0.10 rate on ad valorem and centrally assessed taxes.
INDIGENT ACCIDENT: Directed by NRS 244.160 giving County Commissioners power and
jurisdiction in their county to take care of and provide for the 1nd1gent sick of the County in a
manner only as is for may be provided by law.

CAPITAL PROJECTS: This fund is used for pre-determined expenditures and emergency
operations - such as the Courthouse parking lot, sewer plant expansion, Sheriff vehicles and
office fence, and the Five Mile Reservoir. There is an anticipated balance this year of $2.5
million. Future projects include replacement of the ADS system - the County’s entire
accounting software, including the Assessor’s Office; communications infrastructure; and
body cameras including the effects of same.

INFRASTRUCTURE: A special revenue fund provided with funds from a % cent sales tax for
expenditures under NRS 377. The plan was finalized in 2016 and expenditures have drawn to
the ending fund balance. Projects still to be completed include Courthouse remodel, V&T
Restoration, Gold Hill Depot restoration, and community development projects for Mark
Twain and Lockwood.

STABILIZATION: Special revenue fund created by Resolution 05-218. Revenues accepted
from the General Fund; expenditures fall under NRS 354.6155 guidelines. Balance of the fund
must not exceed 10 percent of the expenditures from the general fund for the previous year.
TRIPAYBACK: Created in 2009 to help pay back the County’s public/ private partner, Tahoe
Reno Industrial Park. Funds collected from TRI businesses are dedicated for payback. Funds
include ad valorem, building permits, licensing fees, and other fees applied in the Park.
Stipulated expenses are deducted, and 35% is paid out.

V&T RAIL PROJECT: Operating under Resolution 11-322. Disposition of this fund has not yet
been determined and is attached to the liability of the purchase of the V&T Freight Depot.
Current bond debt liability will end December 2027 (year uncertain).

VIRGINIA CITY TOURISM COMMISSION: Revenues projected to increase due to room tax
revenue and % cent tourism sales tax. Currently, two or three hotels are projected for TRIC.
Additional funding is budgeted for special events. The Camel Races will have an additional
session this year. Appropriations increase due to salary reclassifications along with promoter
commissions and marketing.

FEDERAL & STATE GRANTS: Presently, the County is looking at the following grants:
Historical Preservation Fund for $9,700 with a $6,500 match; Victim Services for $20,000, with a
match of $6,667; Hazardous Materials (Emergency Management) for $3,900, no match; State
Emergency Response - $29,000, no match; and, United We Stand - $25,000, no match. Also,
Landscape Scale Restoration (474 Fire District) for $238,000, match of $125,000; Public Land
Management (474 Fire District) for $170,000, with match of $34,000.00.

Presentation of the Tentative Budget concluded.

Vice-Chairman McGuffey: Expressed concern with some of the hikes in the budget especially with
rate increases. Property taxes are anticipated to go up 5.2% but expense is way beyond. Property
taxes will not be making a big gain in the next several years.

16




Mr. Gallagher: Does not like the fact that the County is sitting at a negative percent for revenue and
appropriations are increasing. At some point in time, the number of employees will have to expand
due to the current level of business being created. It was decided to incentivize current “multi-
tasking” employees rather than hire new employees. Salary structures will be reviewed prior to the
final.

Mr. McGuffey is right, 5.2% on ad valorem is about the best the County is going to get. There may be
some help from centrally assessed. If not, it will be adjusted accordingly.

Chairman McBride: Looking at the percentages, although some seem high - some of the dollar
values are not that much and is confident the staff along with elected officials will be able to “whittle”
the budget down as in the past. As far as salaries and benefits, a lot is in the equation simply with
collective bargaining agreements that are already on the books. Health care keeps going up. There is
no control over some of these items. What has been negotiated is what has to be lived with.
Hopefully, property values will continue to rise.

Mr. Gallagher: The quarterly review helps tremendously. Department heads do not spend even
though it is in the budget.

Public Comment:

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: There is a flat to down revenue trend, increasing over the
years. Other than salaries and benefits, what are the “drivers” on expenses? How much of the
expenses are driven by services and supplies needed at TRI? And, to the extent the “big ones” - Tesla
and Switch - have abatements, what is the County doing to recoup the expense to the County of
having to support TRI? With the agreement with Tesla - are they paying what it is costing the
County to support them, with Switch, any of the ....

Chair McBride: Abated properties is not what is on the agenda.

Ms. Barde: Why are the expenses increasing? Where is the revenue to offset?

Chair McBride: You wanted to exclude payroll and benefits. This is where it starts. PERS, federal
and state unemployment, workers compensation insurance - based on payroll. As payroll goes up -

with collective bargaining agreements, longevity, state statute - everything tied to it goes up.

Ms. Barde: Understands this. What is the County paying to support TRI and is the County getting
what it should to support TRI?

Chair McBride: The County absolutely is getting what it should out of TRI for tax revenue.

Ms. Barde: Is the County not getting enough out of property tax revenue? Would that make it
better?

Chair McBride: The County’s ad valorem rates have been flat for the last several years. Without

additional revenue coming from increased value of real estate and the cost of salaries and benefits
going up - belts have to be tightened. That’s how to get a balanced budget.

17




Ms. Barde: So the County is getting what was contracted with Tesla from a revenue standpoint to
offset that. That’s in the budget.

Mr. Whitten: Absolutely.

Ms. Barde: It's that the County is not able to increase property taxes, centrally assessed, that keeps us
behind....

Chair McBride: Property taxes can be increased, but this is not what the County wants to do. The
County would like to collect more revenue by more businesses opening in TRI. As abatements expire
and the full share of the tax rate is paid, the County will benefit.

Mr. Whitten: To clarify, Tesla is performing according to it's agreement with the County. The
abatements are different with Switch - there are no abatements on real property taxes, 75%
abatements on personal property, and a similar amount to sales and use tax.

There are three levels of abatements: One that is processed through GOED, typically abating
personal property taxes up to 50% for 10 years. A list is being prepared by the Assessor to determine
which of the companies have these standard abatements and when they expire. There are protection
periods for companies that leave prior to the expiration of the abatement.

Under statute, the County is not authorized to generate abatements. The County can “weigh in” on
the decision.

Motion: Approve the filing of the 2017-18 All Tentative Budgets to the Department of Taxation, not
to include the 474 Fire Protection District Tentative Budget, the Water and Sewer Tentative Budget,
the Sheriff’s Tentative Budget, and the TRI Payback Tentative Budget, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

Commissioner Gilman recused himself from discussion and vote on the TRI Payback Tentative
Budget.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve the filing of the 2017-18 TRI Payback Tentative Budget to the Department of
Taxation, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Chair McBride
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=2)

24. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Licensing Board Second Readings:

A.R.F. MACDONALD COMPANY - Contractor / 25920 Eden Landing Rd ~ Hayward, CA (boilers)
B. DURR ECOCLEAN, INC. - Contractor / 26801 Northwestern Hwy ~ Southfield, MI (ind.
machinery)

C. EBZ SYSTEC, INC. - General / 22251 Diesel Dr ~ McCalla, AL (supplier)

D. WAX ON WAX OFF MOBILE DETAIL - General / 2225 Elcrest Dr. ~ Reno (mobile car wash)

E. W.W. CLYDE & CO. - Contractor / 869 North 1500 West ~ Orem, UT (contractor)

18




F. TRADESMEN INTERNATIONAL, LLC - General / 9760 Shepard Rd ~ Macedonia, OH (staffing)
G. AUTOMATION LOGISTICS CORP - Contractor / 331 Scarlet Blvd ~ Oldsmar, FL (machine
install.)

H. Keith Wallace dba A-SNAP - General / PO Box 3293 ~ Turlock, CA (mobile mechanic)

[. KING CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Contractor / 2040 Farm District Rd ~ Fernley (construction)

J. LADA CUBE, LLC - General / 101 Canary Lane ~ Grand Jet, CO (furniture delivery)

K. TEKNO, INC. - Contractor / One Wall Street ~ Cave City, KY (automation equip.)

L. BASTIAN AUTOMATION ENG., LLC - General / 10585 N. Meridian ~ Indianapolis, IN (equip
sales)

M. BANNER INDUSTRIES OF N.E,, INC. - General / 1 Industrial Drive ~ Danvers, MA
(distribution)

N. TRUMPYF, INC. - Contractor / 111 Hyde Rd ~ Farmington, CT (mfg equip)

O. NEVADA BARRICADE & SIGN CO., INC. / Contractor - PO Box 20459 ~ Reno (road const.)

P. CME PROFESSIONAL SVCS., LLC / General -- 7100 Cave Creek Rd ~ Cave Creek, AZ (staffing)
Q. INDUSTRIAL KINETICS, INC. - Professional / 2535 Curtiss St ~ Downers Grove, IL (matl handl
equip)

R. KDDI AMERICA, INC. - General / 21241 S. Western Ave ~ Torrance, CA (translation svcs.)

S. UL, LLC - General / 333 Pfingsten Road ~ Northbrook, IL (safety training)

T. BLACK GOLD INDUSTRIES dba BGII - Transportation / 527 North Rice Ave ~ Oxnard, CA
(hazardous waste transportation)

U. OUT WEST BUILDINGS, LLC - General / 7450 Reno Hwy ~ Fallon (deliver portable sheds)

V. HIRATA CORPORATION OF AMERICA - Contractor / 5625 Decatur Blvd ~ Indianapolis, IN
(equipment manufacturing)

On behalf of Community Development, Pat Whitten requested that all items A. through V. be
approved.

Motion: Approve all items A. through V., Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

25. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
Commissioner Gilman: There was a recent announcement stating Tesla has passed Ford becoming

the second largest company in stock market cap in the United States - second only to GM. However,
Reuters has announced that Tesla has passed GM as the most valuable U.S. car company today.

26. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned by the Chair at 11:50 AM

27. CLOSED SESSION

Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of conferring with

County management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the Storey County
Firefighters Association IAFF Local 4277 and Storey County Sheriff’s Office Employees Assocation

19




NAPSO Local 9110. This meeting will commence immediately following the regular- commission
meeting,.

Respectfully submitted,

By:W%:ﬂ}m

Vanessa Stephens Clerk} Treasurer

20




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report
Meeting date: | Estimate of Time Required: 0 -5
Agenda: Consent [X] | Regular agenda [] | Public hearing required []

1

2.

. Title: Approval of the minutes for April 12, 2017.

Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

Prepared by: VANESSA
Department: MANAGER Telephone: 847-1111

Staff Summary: Minutes are attached.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: O

Legal review required: No

Reviewed by:

_@L Department Head Department Name: MANAGER
County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ 1 Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
4/12/2017 10:00 A M.

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
JACK MCGUFFEY
VICE-CHAIRMAN
LANCE GILMAN VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman McBride,_Vice-Chairman McGuffey, Commissioner Gilman, Clerk &
Treasurer Vanessa Stephens, District Attorney Anne Langer, County Manager Pat Whitten, Sheriff
Gerald Antinoro, and Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.

2, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

County Manager Pat Whitten asked to remove Item 9 as it is not relevant to the
meeting,

McGuffey, Gilman
4, DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
None.
S BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)
None.

6. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:




10.

11.

The Board of County Commissioners will canvass the results of the Special Recall
Election held in and for Storey County, State of Nevada on April 11, 2017 and declare
the results of the election.

Chairman McBride read the results into the record:

For Recall: 601
Against Recall: 883

Recall fails.

McGuffey, Gilman
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:
The Board of County Commissioners, after the clerk has prepared an abstract of the votes
cast, shall cause the County Clerk to certify the abstract. The Board will then consider the
entry of an order in the minutes of the proceedings requiring that the County Clerk (1) make
a copy of the certified abstract and (2) make a mechanized report of the abstract in

compliance with the regulations of the Secretary of State, which will then be forthwith
transmitted to the Secretary of State.

McGuffey, Gilman
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Should the canvass results be against the recall the Board of County Commissioner will take
no further action.

Nicole Barde, thanked Chairman McBride for not signing the recall petition.
DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION:

Should the canvass result be in favor of the recall the Board of County Commissioners will
appoint an interim Sheriff.

Item Removed.
PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Karen Woodmansee requested that the Commissioners speak louder and into the
microphone.

ADJOURNMENT
10:08




Vanessa Stephens Clerk-Treasurer




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report
Meeting date: | Estimate of Time Required: 0 -5
Agenda: Consent [x] ] Regular agenda [] | Public hearing required []

. Title: Approval of minutes for April 18, 2017

. Recommended motion: Approve minutes as submitted.

. Prepared by: VANESSA

Department: MANAGER  Telephone: 847-1111

Staff Summary: Minutes are attached.

. Supporting Materials: See attached

. Fiscal Impact: 0

. Legal review required: No

. Reviewed by:

@ Department Head Department Name: MANAGER
County Manager Other Agency Review:
. Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING

TUESDAY, APRIL 18, 2017 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MINUTES
MARSHALL MCBRIDE ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
LANCE GILMAN
VICE-CHAIRMAN
JACK MCGUFFEY VANESSA STEPHENS
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

ROLL CALL: Chairman McBride, Vice-Chairman McGuffey, Commissioner Gilman, Comptroller
Hugh Gallagher, County Manager Pat Whitten, Deputy Clerk & Treasurer Wendy Bacus, Deputy
District Attorney Keith Loomis, Sheriff Gerald Antinoro, Fire Chief Gary Hames, Director of
Tourism Deny Dotson, Emergency Management Director Joe Curtis, Community Relations
Director Cherie Nevin, Director of Security Melanie Keener, Public Works Director Jason
VanHavel, Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne, Fire Prevention/ Life Safety
Officer Frederick Klinger

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
Meeting was called to order by Chairman McBride at 10:00 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Chairman McBride led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Agenda for April 18, 2017

Public Comment:
Mark Joseph Phillips, Virginia City Resident: To be clear, he is looking for a motion on Item #9 that
Six Mile Canyon is open as of yesterday.

Chairman McBride: This will be addressed when Item #9 is heard.

Motion: Approve Agenda for April 18, 2017, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Minutes for March 21, 2017.

1




Motion: Approve Minutes for March 21, 2017, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3

5. CONSENT AGENDA

I For possible action, approval of interlocal agreement between Storey County, Nevada and the
State of Nevada Department of Transportation for the purpose of defining the maintenance
responsibilities and repair service required for the landscaped island areas at the intersections of SR-
439 (USA Parkway) and Electric Avenue SR-439 (USA Parkway) and Sydney Drive.

IT For possible action, approval of the 3rd quarter Virginia Township Justice Court Report.
III For possible action, approval of the Treasurer Report for March 2017.

IV For possible action: Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $732,057.16 and accounts
payable claims in the amount of $254,929.12.

V For possible action, approval of Business Licenses First Readings:

A. SWISSLOG EVOMATIC GmbH - Contractor / Gewerbepark Ost 6, 4621 Sipbachzel ~ AUSTRIA
(equipment)
AGILENT TECHNOLOGIES, INC. — General / 5301 Stevens Creek ~ Santa Clara, CA (equipment)
H2MORGAN - Professional / 3008 NE 4 Place ~ Hillsboro, OR (consultant)
NK AMERICA, INC. — Contractor / 777 South Kutner Rd ~ Sydney, OH (millwright)
AERIAL IMAGING — General / 1160 Pineridge Dr ~ Reno (aerial photography)
FS-ELLIOTT CO., LLC - Contractor / 5710 Mellon Rd ~ Export, PA (equipment)
VIATECHNIK, LLC — Professional / 343 West Erie ~ Chicago (consultant)
SONOSCAN, INC. — Contractor / 2149 East Pratt Blvd ~ Elk Grove, IL (service provider)
NICHOLAS & CO. RENO, LL.C dba C & M Food Distributing — General / 7935 Sugar Pine ~ Reno
(food)
ROBERT HALF NEVADA STAFF, INC. dba Accountemps — General / 5190 Neil Rd ~ Reno (staffing)
PEACHY FROG, LLC dba Nothing But Skulls — General / 11 North C (retail) vC
GREG GRANT dba Silver Sadies Old Time Photos — General / 116 South C (retail) \ &
. SIERRA INDUSTRIAL, LLC - Contractor / 858 Daniel Drive ~ Reno (rigging contractor)
GLOBAL RETOOL AMERICA, LLC — Contractor / 4793 Colt Rd ~ Rockford, IL (tooling company)
BALANCE TECHNOLOGY, INC. — Contractor / 7035 Jomar Dr ~ Whitmore Lake, MI (equipment)
SYNCREON TECHNOLOGY (AMERICA), INC. — General / 2555 USA Parkway (logistics) TRI
ENGINUITY CONTROLS, LLC - Contractor / 1691 West Hamlin ~ Rochester Hills, MI (equipment)
THYSSENKRUPP SYSTEM ENG., INC. — Contractor / 901 Doris Rd ~ Auburn Hills, MI (equipment)
BIZLINK TECHNOLOGY, INC. — Contractor / 47211 Bayside Parkway ~ Fremont, CA (equipment)
ITC SERVICE GROUP - General / 7777 Greenback Ln ~ Citrus Heights, CA (staffing)
COMSTOCK PHOTOGRAPHY - Home Business / 1880 Empire Rd ~ VC Highlands (photo sales)
ODAWARA ENGINEERING CO., LTD. — Contractor / 4805 S County Rd ~ Tipp City, OH (equipment)
. ODAWARA AUTOMATION NAGAOKA CO., LTD - Contractor / 4805 S Co. Rd ~ Tipp City, OH
(equip)
TEKLUS, LLC - Contractor / 1 East First Street ~ Reno (construction)
ECLIPSE AUTOMATION SW, LLC — Contractor / 4117 Clipper Ct ~ Fremont, CA (equipment)
ECLIPSE AUTOMATION, LLC — Contractor / 4117 Clipper Ct ~ Fremont, CA (equipment)
CORE PERFORMANCE CENTER, LLC - General / 2629 E. Rose Garden Ln ~ Phoenix (yoga
instructor)

TEOTmEBUOAW

PNLIX E£<CHPAROTOZIT AR

>




BB. PROLOG AUTOMATION GMBH & CO, KG — Professional / Neckar, GERMANY (consultant)

CC. MARIA PILAR MARTIN RODRIGUEZ - Contractor / Soria SPAIN (equipment)

DD. DURR ECOCLEAN, GMBH - Contractor / Filderstadt, GERMANY (equipment)

EE. STATE GROUP INDUSTRIAL (USA) LTD. — Contractor / 13800 N Hwy 57 ~ Evansville, IN
(contractor)

FF. SHIN TECH LLC - Contractor / Nakahara, JAPAN (equipment)

GG. SEIYU, LIMITED- Contractor/Chigasaki City, JAPAN (equipment)

HH. KIMUDEN COMPANY, LTD. —Contractor/Hiraisuka City, JAPAN (equipment)

II. ASCO POWER SERVICES, INC.- Contractor/ 60 Park Ave — Fiorham Park, NJ (equipment)

JJ. NEMASYSTEMS AUTOMATION GMBH, LLC - Contractor/Bretzfeld GERMANY (equipment)

KK. SELWAY MACHINE TOOL CO., INC. - Contractor/29250 Union City Blvd — Union City, CA (equip)

Public Comment:
None

Mot

ion: Approve Consent Agenda for April 18, 2017, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice

Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous

vote

, (Summary: Yes=3)

6. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
Tourism Director Deny Dotson:

May 11t has been designated Ambassadors Day in Virginia City, coordinating with the
museum and other attractions to provide an opportunity for people who live and work here to
visit these properties and be informed - so that this information can be passed on to visitors.
Admission will be free on that day. Many exhibits have been updated.

USA Today has a contest for the “Most Popular Town in the Southwest”. Virginia City is
currently 3td place. Go online to vote.

Everything is ready for the Grand Prix motorcycle races. Notifications will be sent out
regarding street closures, no parking areas, and such.

Community Relations Director Cherie Nevin:

Waste Management and Storey County host the annual residential clean-up days, Thursday
May 4th through Saturday May 6th. Open 8am to 4pm. Items that can be accepted are listed on
the Storey County website.

Work continues with FEMA on the disaster process - progress is being made. This is a long
process, taking a lot of hands to get through it.

Working with St. Mary’s Art Center and the Comstock Cemetery Foundation to secure grant
funds for those organizations for needed improvements. This is a grant through the State
Historic Preservation Office.

Kudos to Shaun Griffin and the Community Chest for an excellent concert Friday night. This
event featured Rodney Crowell and was sold out.

May 31st, 5PM to 7PM an Open House will be held for the County Museum. Light snacks and
refreshments will be served.

IT Director James Deane:

As of yesterday all County network links that were down have been fully replaced with 100%
service restoration and significant speed increases. This was a major accomplishment.




Fire Chief Appointee Jeff Nevin:

There was a minor spill at Tesla facility yesterday. The problem was mitigated and posed no
threat to public health.

Public Works Director Jason VanHavel:

Six Mile Canyon is open with several areas of gravel still in need of pavement.

Federal Highways has requested more information regarding a permanent fix of the canyon.
Work is being done to fix flood damage issues on Lousetown Road and Cartwright, including
shoulder reconstruction.

Summer roads program will be focused in Mark Twain this year.

Work is set to begin in dismantling the remainder of the Black & Howell building.

The sewer project is out to bid. This project is the comprehensive new sewer lines in Virginia
City and Gold Hill.

Groundbreaking of the sewer project should take place this summer. There will be adverse
impact on roads during this project. Contractors will be instructed to “button up” during
events.

Looking at a small chlorine system for the water system near Silver City in order to meet
Federal regulations. The current system contains higher chlorine levels for Virginia City so
when the water reaches Silver City the level meets the Federal regulations.

Issues with the pond and culvert off of Lousetown Road are being addressed to see if there is a
way to get the culvert lower.

Bids are being obtained for the repair of chimneys.

Administrative Officer/Planning Director Austin Osborne:

Planning Commission meets Thursday at the Courthouse. The agenda includes updates to
Title 17 Zoning, Sub-division and Development Standards, and multi-family complexes. This
is a workshop only.
New health benefits for employees are in place and become effective May 1st.
Over the last year or so, claim experiences have impacted income for insurance companies
and they are losing money, resulting in a claim increase for the County of approximately 30%
A committee was put together to review the insurance to create a competitive health benefit
for the County. A package was put together and presented to the insurance carrier to work on
getting the premium down.
A new plan was developed after long negotiation - still in the Hometown Health Insurance
Company.
In order to get premiums down, employees will have to participate more in the plan.
The County previously had PPO and HSA plans. The HSA is more of a self-management
plan, money can be added, there are tax deferments, and a lot of involvement by employee.
The County has created the HSA as the base plan. Every employee will be on a high
deductible plan and there will be an HSA account that the employee can have with the
County contributing money to that account. The County will also match up to $100 per
month for a family to put money into that account.
If an employee wants a more lucrative PPO or HSA plan, the employee must “buy up” to that
plan - paying a portion of the premium so that it is “cost neutral” to the County.
This plan resulted in a 6.7% increase rather than 30%. A substantial savings to the County, a
very reasonable health benefits plan for employees, and being fiscally responsible to the
budget and taxpayers.

4




Comptroller Hugh Gallagher:

e Department Heads have been working to address the budget deficit and the budget committee
will be meeting to see where adjustments can be made.

e A very different budget will be presented on May 16th.

» Looking at the Department of Taxation figures received after the last meeting, abatements for
the County are approximately $5 million. A great amount for a county this size.

e Working with the Assessor to see what makes up the $5 million.

e Selections for the new auditor will be made May 8th.

e 3rd quarter budget review will be May 2nd.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis:

e Litigation has been filed regarding the Sutro Springs Road issue. The complaint asks the
Federal Court to declare that roadway be part of Mrs. Thomas’ property rather than public
property.

e Supreme Court argument was heard on the Malfitano case last week. A decision is expected
within six months.

Chairman McBride: On Sutro Springs Road, with the court filing, does that stay any order to Public
Works to clear that road?

Mr. Loomis: A temporary restraining order and preliminary injunction has been requested to
prevent the County from taking any action towards the roadway. This has not yet been ruled on. At
this point there is nothing preventing action clearing the roadway. It is expected there will be a
hearing on this pretty quickly.

County Manager Pat Whitten:

e Brian Staples, Post Commander of the local VFW, has obtained a 12-passenger bus from Fred
Dutton. The County is going to work with Brian and Stacey Gilbert, Senior Center manager, to
use the van to get vets to and from appointments as well as for the Senior Center, where it will
be parked. There will be some sponsorships involved in the bus. The County along with other
businesses have signed up as sponsors.

¢ Dean Haymore would report that things are hopping at TRI. Within the last 10 days, over 18
plan submittals have been made. The team out there has done a great job keeping up under
inundated conditions.

7. BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

8. DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action): Discussion and direction to staff regarding legislation or
legislative issues proposed by legislators or by other entities permitted by the Nevada State
Legislature to submit bill draft requests, or such legislative issues as may be deemed by the Chairman
or the Board to be of critical significance to Storey County. Specific bills will include SB 57 which
staff has expressed full support and bills SB176, SB244, SB314, AB289, SB271, AB290, SB356, SB469,
and AB384.

County Manager Whitten reviewed the following bills:
e 5B57: Work session has been completed. This bill was heard, amended, recommended and
passed the Assembly and is on its way to the Senate.

5




e SB438: 5 cent diesel fuel tax bill is still under consideration. Concern has been expressed by
some residents. Note, this bill is not to pass this tax, but to enable local government to
consider an “up to” 5 cent tax. It could be, 1, 2, or 3 cents. Further, this tax impacts diesel fuel
sales only. In Storey County the bulk of diesel fuel is sold in the Tahoe Reno Industrial Center.
Washoe and Clark Counties have already established a diesel fuel tax.

e AB153: Economic impact study is “dead”, and hopetully stays.

e SB244: Addresses digging in historic/ pre-historic areas. Problematic wording has been taken
out.

e SB314: Windmills and wind farms. There were significant concerns in Virginia City and Gold
Hill relative to windmills being visible to the view-shed. An amendment by Clark County
saying, “so long as they conform to the area” is now in the bill.

e A number of bills continued to be tracked, including one regarding voting machines. The
current machines are 17 years old - it’s time to change machines, but it is also very expensive
to change on a statewide basis. Who pays and what changes are being looked at.

e There are two or three bills regarding body cameras. These are a foregone conclusion, the
questions are: will this be effective and how will it be paid for.

Mr. Osborne reviewed:

e AB211: Triple pay. If a mistake is made in overtime, the payback would be triple. This is for
willful violation only and has passed committee.

o AB267: Workers Compensation Bill. The County would award legal fees, costs, and other
items, to a person winning a worker’s compensation case. This has moved on.

e AB271: Fact finder-binding bill. This would make it where the “Fact Finder” was the ruling
party, nothing else. This is a huge concern and has passed out of committee. This bill has
been amended to general employees only, no police/ fire.

e AB384: Criminal history bill. The box indicating criminal history background is banned on
employment application. The bill would require that all applicants be heard and at the final
stage, or at a job offer letter, that person then has opportunity to state criminal history, leaving
it up to HR whether the crime was nexus to the job or not. The biggest problem with this bill
is if that person is not hired, an attachment is necessary stating why the person was not hired,
why the criminal history is a nexus to the job, and other supplementary materials. The person
also has the right to an appeal process. This is a very litigious position from an HR standpoint.
This has passed out of committee and applies to general employees only, not public safety
positions.

o 5SB289: Out-of-network bill. This would make counties to have to allow employees to go to
out-of-network doctors and subsidize the difference. This has passed out of committee. More
fiscal analysis is being done on this bill.

e SB477: Residential care bill. This removes a county’s ability to deny a special use permit in a
residential zone and to define these uses as residential uses for single family use, halfway
houses, drug and alcohol centers, and such, as well as disabled homes. This bill is for counties
of 100,000 or more. There have been changes to the number of persons in the homes and fire
sprinkler requirements.

e Water bills. A number of these bills have died and are being “morphed” into other bills.
More information should be available at the next meeting.




9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Regarding Six Mile Canyon Road action on actual opening
date, moneys borrowed to date, and ownership. Item requested by Mark Joseph Phillips.

County Manager Whitten stated this item request was submitted on April 10th, the same day Six Mile
Canyon Road was reopened later in the day, with advance warnings of some gravel areas.

e The amount of work done is stunning.

e The road will remain open until such time as the asphalt is done, when it will be closed for a
short time.

e Moneys borrowed: Zero. Work was funded through the roads budget. The County is hoping
for some relief from the Federal Highway Administration.

e Ownership: The County has “presumed” ownership saying the County will maintain
responsibility for the road - by practice, if not necessarily by legal ownership at this stage.
Research is being conducted regarding legal ownership.

e Mr. Whitten is happy to answer any other questions Mr. Phillips, or anyone else, may have.

Chairman McBride: Any follow-up Mr. Phillips?
Mark Joseph Phillips: Everyone is happy. No further comment.

Public Comment:
Mark Joseph Phillips, Virginia City Resident: Looking for a motion and a second that Six Mile
Canyon is open effective a week ago Monday. We're proceeding as if it were still closed.

Chairman McBride: There was no motion to close the road - don’t understand why a motion is
needed to open the road.

Mr. Phillips: You all can’t just agree that Six Mile - ah, you can’t put that on record? There’s nothing
on record that Six Mile is open. In fact, there’s nothing on record that Six Mile is closed.

Chairman McBride: Agrees that Six Mile is open, it's been posted that it's open. It was posted on the
County website.

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Opportunity to be added to Presidential Disaster
Declaration issued for the February 2017 winter storm and the potential Declaration of Emergency.

Emergency Management Director, Joe Curtis, presented this item and reviewed the issues and
problems in Storey County, as well as others, created by recent, significant storms.
e Mr. Curtis has attended a number of briefings which included persons from different agencies
dealing with all aspects of emergencies.
e A Declaration of Emergency for Storey County was issued, including the period in January
where there were significant losses to County infrastructure.
e In February, Storey County was able to get a little ahead in getting back to order. Other
counties did not and had to declare additional emergencies.
e Dry lake beds are filling.
¢ The concern now is spring runoff with the 250% of normal in water content in the snow pack
and is focused on the Truckee, Carson, and Walker river areas. The rivers are already high.
e The briefings are being conducted by State National Guard planning personnel.

7




o If Lahontan Lake was dry, the runoff could be expected to fill it three times over.

o Fallon is digging 3 canals for the runoff and has the potential of homes being inundated.
Carson City is preparing for water to cover golf courses. Douglas County is looking at
Highway 395 between Carson and Gardnerville being covered for up to 2 to 3 weeks - likely
between May 15t and July.

e Lyon County has declared a third emergency related to Wilson Canyon and Smith Valley as it
will be underwater.

e Churchill County has declare another emergency in dealing with Lahanton.

¢ Douglas County is, or has declared another emergency.

e There is potential (flooding) for Highways 580 in Washoe Lake , 95 in Fallon, and 395 in
Carson Valley and Gardnerville, along with other roads, that could isolate Northern Nevada.

e Storey County’s biggest concern would be Truckee River runoff in the Lockwood area. In
addition, with roads closed, there could be significant traffic in this area (Virginia City).

¢ The State is looking to Storey County as the last county in the group, to make a Declaration for
potentially anything that may happen along the Truckee or any other runoff problems.

e The impact of a Declaration of Emergency has to do with whether or not the County can get
funding from the Federal government to recoup help expenses.

e The Declaration gives Nevada the capability of obtaining a third Presidential Declaration -
bringing more resources to the area.

e The County may want to declare another emergency, possibly in early May, so that everything
is in place. The County cannot get Federal funding or resources for anything that occurs prior
to declaring the emergency.

e This is not something that has to be done today but will be watched very closely. The State is
actually requesting the County to do this fairly soon so that the County is not the one left out
of a Presidential Declaration.

Vice Chairman McGuffey: Would this include private properties?

Mr. Curtis: Yes. Similar to what happened in January. Review of properties would be made and
information gathered to present to FEMA for the time, effort and cost of the County helping people
survive.

Mr. Whitten: Without the Declaration, the County cannot go in and assist private property owners.
The Declaration in January is what allowed the County to go in and help in the Highlands.

Mr. Curtis: Essentially this states that the County may be facing a potential problem that it may not
be able to handle alone.

Vice Chair McGuffey: Would this cover re-establishment of a washed-out, private road?

Mr. Curtis: Not a private road/driveway. There are State laws stating the County cannot take
County equipment onto or benefit the private property. It does help private property owners by
providing the ability to obtain assistance through FEMA. The individual in the Highlands stated he
was evacuated. Only the Governor can declare evacuation - which was not done. The individual in
the Highlands requested evacuation.




Commissioner Gilman: The roads that are in question were repaired by TRI and its consultants
within the last month.

Mr. Curtis: Believes it was Commissioner Gilman that actually made this possible - helping this
gentleman out. There are very few resources up there and it is private property. The County has no
responsibility or legal standing to be of assistance.

Commissioner Gilman: The other road, the extension of Lousetown, TRI repaired as well.

Mr. Curtis: With this gentleman, Mr. Crouch, the decision was made that it was a “life safety” issue
and that’s why the County went in and got him.

After meeting with State Emergency Management, the County may be requested to do the
Declaration now. This information will be provided shortly.

Mr. Whitten: There is a proposed motion on the Staff Report to declare a State of Emergency for the
time period of February 5 through 22 - is that needed?

Cherie Nevin: This has been a confusing process - looking at three Presidential Declarations. The
County was on the first one - the one being dealt with now. The second, in February, was basically
for Washoe, Humbolt, and Elko counties. The State has come back to counties not included asking if
the counties had any damages during that time to be added to the Declaration. Basically, the County
is being added in after the fact. Emergency Management does not believe the County has met the
threshold in damages during that time. Everything is running together. Ms. Nevin feels that being
added to the February Declaration is “off”. The County needs to go with the potential spring runoff
(Declaration).

Mr. Whitten: Would a Declaration for the February period help residents, specifically Steve Musser,
that had significant runoff issues qualify for subsidized loans.

Ms. Nevin: It would - SBA. Probably because of all the snow during the January event. There is a
deadline to apply. Itis a process.

Mr. Curtis: As a County, the damages suffered were below the dollar threshold for the County to
receive anything (under the February Declaration). A Declaration can be made for the February
period in the event damages are found that would exceed the threshold. There is no penalty for
approving a Declaration.

Mr. Curtis suggests approving the February Declaration and entering into the Presidential
Declaration, even though it may not do anything for the County.

Mr. Whitten: “In the day” being indiscriminate in a declaration was viewed negatively. Is there any
potential for that in this case?

Mr. Curtis: The State is coming to the County asking to do this as an option after the fact.

Mr. Whitten: If the State is asking, the County should oblige.
9




Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to declare a State of Emergency in Storey County due to a severe weather event for
the time period of February 5 through the 22, 2017, and the potential of additional flooding due to the
projected Spring 2017 snowmelt runoff, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approval of Resolution #17-454 declaring May 2017 as
Wildfire Awareness Month in Storey County.

Fritz Klingler, Storey County Fire Marshal, introduced Jamie Roice-Gomes from UNR Cooperative
Extension-Community Outreach Program, and Patty Blakely, Storey County Fire. With all of the rain
this year, there will be an increase in cheat grass and flammable materials. Along with Cooperative
Extension with its funding and materials, declaring Wildfire Awareness Month and educating the
public provides information for reducing risk on properties.

Fire Marshal Klingler reminded Storey County residents of the Fire Department’s “you call, we haul”
program. Residents call and the Fire Department will drop the trailer off and pick it up when it’s full.
This program is for disposal of vegetation, not trash.

Patty Blakely read the Resolution:
Whereas, wildfire significantly impacts Nevada’s environmental, economic and social well-being,
and
Whereas, homeowners should ensure proper management of vegetation surrounding the home and
appropriate home construction and maintenance to resist ignition; and
Whereas, residents can save precious time in an evacuation by preparing a to-go bag and family
evacuation plan ahead of time; and
Whereas, communities should create well designed fuel breaks, ensure good access for emergency
vehicles and consider multiple evacuation routes; and
Whereas, residents should evacuate immediately when asked by emergency responders.
Therefore be it proclaimed, that the Storey County Board of County Commissioners supports the
month of May, 2017 as Nevada Wildfire Awareness Month and this year’s theme:
WILDFIRE!

Prepare, Anticipate, Evacuate
as a means for education and a call for residents of Storey County to take action to reduce the wildfire
threat and prepare their homes, families and community for wildfire, anticipate a possible evacuation
and to evacuate their homes when asked.

Ms. Roice-Gomes reviewed the theme for this May.
¢ Residents can prepare by creating defensible space, using fire resistant building materials, a
family evacuation plan, and provide access for emergency personnel.
e Inanticipation, residents should have “to-go” bags and disaster supply Kkits.
e Residents should evacuate quickly and safely when asked.
e Along with Storey County Fire, Cooperative Extension will be at Hillside Elementary on May
17t and Hugh Gallagher Elementary on May 25th.

10




Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve Resolution #17-454 declaring May 2017 as Wildfire Awareness Month in
Storey County, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by:
Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Amendment to the General Business License for Richard
Connell from Fire House Creamery to Fire House BBQ. Business is located at 171 South C Street,
Virginia City, Nevada.

Sheriff Gerald Antinoro presented this item. This is a re-structuring of Mr. Connell’s current business
license from Fire House Creamery to Fire House BBQ.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve amendment to the General Business License for Richard Connell, 171 S C
St., Virginia City, NV, from Fire House Creamery to Fire House BBQ, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve second reading for the general license for the
Gold Hill Hotel & Crown Point Restaurant, 1540 Main St., Gold Hill, Nevada.

Sheriff Antinoro said this is a standard general license for the Gold Hill Hotel & Crown Point
Restaurant.

Public Comment:
None

Motion: I move to approve Patrick McNamee, business owner, second reading of the General
Business License for the Gold Hill Hotel & Crown Point Restaurant, 1540 Main St., Gold Hill,
Nevada, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner
Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

14. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Amendment to the Liquor License for Richard Connell,
from Fire House Creamery to Fire House BBQ. Business is located at 171 South C Street, Virginia
City, Nevada.

Sheriff Antinoro stated there is no real change to this license, other than name and location.

Public Comment:
None

11




Motion: I move to approve amendment to the Liquor License for Richard Connell, 171 S C St.,
Virginia City, NV, from Fire House Creamery to Fire House BBQ, Action: Approve, Moved by:
Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by
unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Approve second reading for the liquor on-sale license &
cabaret license for the Gold Hill Hotel & Crown Point Restaurant, 1540 Main St., Gold Hill, Nevada.

Sheriff Antinoro: A background investigation of applicants has been completed. The background is
in business. Applicants seem to be interested in the community and will be living on-site. The
business will be operated under a lease of premises from Comstock Realty. There is nothing in the
background that would preclude applicants from having a business or liquor license. Approval is
recommended.

Public Comment;
None

Motion: I move to approve Patrick McNamee, business owner, second reading of the liquor on-sale
license and cabaret license for the Gold Hill Hotel & Crown Point Restaurant, 1540 Main St., Gold
Hill, Nevada, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey, Seconded by:
Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary: Yes=3)

17. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Possible action for first reading ordinance 17-274 to repeal
chapter 8.32 of Storey County Code addressing materials and toxic substances.

Deputy District Attorney Keith Loomis presented this item. This is a continuation from the last
Board meeting. At that time, Emergency Management Director Joe Curtis and Fire Chief Gary
Hames, concurred that this was an appropriate way of addressing chapter 8.32.

Mr. Loomis read the Title:
An ordinance deleting chapter 8.32 to the Storey County Code which addresses
the presence and use of hazardous and toxic materials in Storey County and providing
for other matters properly related thereto.

Public Comment;
None

Motion: I move to hear the first reading of Ordinance 17-274, and to require publishing and hearing
of the ordinance as required by statute, Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman McGuffey,
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote, (Summary:
Yes=3)

12




19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Licensing Board Second Readings:

A. SOUL HOSPITALITY, LLC (THE) dba The Soul from Seoul - General / 2325 Kietzke ~ Reno
(food)

B. BAXTER & SON MECHANICAL CO., INC. - Contractor / 35 Stokes Dr ~ Moundhouse
(contractor)

C. DOS CO., LTD - Contractor / 1-15-27 Nishi-ku, Osaka City JAPAN (contractor)

D. SQUAW VALLEY SKI CORP - General / 1901 Chamonix Place ~ Olympic Valley, CA (promos)
E. REP PLUMBING, LLC - Contractor / 2528 Business Pkwy ~ Minden (contractor)

F. MINO AUTOMATION USA, INC. - Professional / 1670 Harmon Rd ~ Auburn Hills, MI
(consulting)

G. PHOENIX INSTALL. & MGMT CO, INC. - Contractor / 347 Have a Hill Rd ~ Shelbyville, KY
(equip)

H. NIKON METROLOGY, INC. - Professional / 12701 Grand River Rd ~ Brighton, MI (consulting)
I. CARDINAL CONTRACTING, LLC - Contractor / 2300 S Tibbs Ave ~ Indianapolis, IN
(contractor)

J. EAST FORK ROOFING, LLC - Contractor / 260 Freeport Blvd ~ Sparks (contractor)

K. VARIATION REDUCTION SOLUTIONS - Professional / 14901 Galleon Ct ~ Plymouth, MI
(engineer)

L. JSJ VENTURES, INC. - Contractor / 1111 S Roop ~ Carson City (septic system cleaning)

M. MERCIER ELECT & MECHANICAL, INC. - Contractor / 115 Mayhew St ~ W Point, MS
(contractor)

N. CSC SERVICEWORKS, INC. - General / 303 Sunnyside Blvd ~ Plainview, NY (coin oper.
machinery)

O. TEAMTECHNIK MASCHINEN UND ANLAGEN GMBH, LLC - Prof. / Planckstr 40,
GERMANY

(consult)

P. ODAWARA AUTOMATION, INC. - Contractor / 4805 S County Rd ~ Tipp City, OH
(machinery)

Q. RSI INSTALLATIONS, INC. - General / 13524 Vintage Place ~ Chino, CA (staffing)

R. DERIK JONATHAN MURILLO-VAZQUEZ - Contractor / 1850 Selmi Dr ~ Reno (contractor)
S. FULL OF HEART SPIRITUAL HEALING - General / 164A South C St (life coach) VC*

T. SILVER SPOON EATERY, LLC dba Silver Spoon Eatery - General /171 South C St (restaurant)
VC

U. PACIFIC INTEGRATED HANDLING, INC. - Contractor / 10215 Portland Ave ~ Tacoma, WA
(cont)

V.IMES GROUP, LLC - Professional / 6601 Vaught Ranch Rd ~ Austin, TX (engineer)

W. PENTA BUILDING GROUP, LLC (THE) - Contractor / 181 East Warm Springs ~ Las Vegas
(cont)

X. KING BEE CONSTRUCTION, INC. - Contractor / 804 Mill Street ~ Reno (contractor)

Y. TEAMTECHNIK PRODUCTION TECHNOLOGY, LLC - Contractor / UL ZA GORA 23, PL 32-
040 POLAND (contractor)

On behalf of Community Development, Pat Whitten requested that items A. through Y. be approved.

13




Public Comment:
None

Motion: Approve all items A. through Y., Action: Approve, Moved by: Vice Chairman
McGuffey, Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote,
(Summary: Yes=3)

20. CORRESPONDENCE
I Agenda Request from Bobby Kittle.

Mr. Whitten: This was addressed in Item 9 regarding Six Mile Canyon closure. Mr. Kittle has been
advised that the road is open.

21. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

Sheriff Antinoro: To clarify the record, under Item 16, Gold Hill is actually operating under lease
from Comstock Realty, Inc.

Nicole Barde, Storey County Resident: Asked when details on the Google purchase would be public.

County Manager Whitten: From a County perspective, it cannot be confirmed that it is Google. Joe
Hart from Channel 4 is reporting that a representative from Google did say it was. Mr. Whitten
understands it would seem that what is in the press is somewhat accurate. There was a transaction
done in the Recorder’s office on Friday - there is a process for the Recorder to release those
documents. Whether it's Google or not, we'll see.

Ms. Barde: Whether Google or any other company - when do the abatements and deals go public
from the Governor’s Office?

Mr. Whitten: Whenever there is application or ability. If an EDD is created, that legislation is already
there. Again, it is speculative because it is not known what they’re going to do or what products or
processes might be eligible.

Ms. Barde: As of today, based on what is known, there is no abatement?
Mr. Whitten: Correct.

Commissioner Gilman: The sellers, and all associated consultants - including Storey County, are
under a non-disclosure agreement specifically requested by the buyers. All notifications are on hold
pending formal announcements from the Corporate Chair through the Governor’s Office. Until that
time there can be no discussion regarding the transaction.

Ms. Barde: Once it is announced, abatements given will be public record - right?

Commissioner Gilman: The transaction will be a private transaction between seller and buyer. All
transactional documents are in a “non-disclosed folder”. Items that will be available will be public
items that are recorded on behalf of the transaction. That will be the status of the transaction up to

14




and until the time of a formal announcement by the company. At this point there are no packages
submitted to the State, the buyer has asked for no offsets of any kind. The transaction at this point is
“on hold” from information in the public realm. It is a private transaction between buyer and seller
with the County. All public documents are available - there is no other information. Except for an
article written by RG], reportedly from an announcement by the Governor. The Governor’s Office
confirmed there had been no request for tax abatements.

22. ADJOURNMENT

The meeting was adjourned by the Chair at 11:45 AM

23. CLOSED SESSION

Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of conferring with
County management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the Storey County
Firefighters Association IAFF Local 4277 and Storey County Sheriff’s Office Employees Assocation

NAPSO Local 9110. This meeting will commence immediately following the regular commission
meeting.

Respectfully submitted,

15




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report
Meeting date: | Estimate of Time Required: 0 -5
Agenda: Consent [x] | Regular agenda [] | Public hearing required []

. Title: For possible action: Approval of payroll claims in the amount of $695,362.68 and
accounts payable claims in the amount of $332,153.19.

. Recommended motion: Approve claims as submitted in conjunction with approval of
the Consent Agenda.

. Prepared by: VANESSA

Department: MANAGER Telephone: 847-1111

. Staff Summary: A list of all claims is attached.

. Supporting Materials: See attached

. Fiscal Impact: 0

. Legal review required: No

. Reviewed by:

_@ Department Head Department Name: MANAGER
County Manager Other Agency Review:
. Board Action:
[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




YIANSYIIL

YATTOALAWOD

HINCISSIWWOD YANOISSINWOD NYWIIVYHD

$SIJUOTSSTWWO) JO paeog Ajunop Asaols a3yl Aq paasoxddy

BO"ESL PET 1S)DaYD I03ONPag T[BIOL
00" 1Sdldd I0J I3jsSueil IS5 T[EIOL
Junowy 23ked 4 Paa  # aQ
/# dud  /3o8yD
LT/82/%0 :33ed H0ayd z03onpaq :adAL TT1oxAed
TYUNTA I935T169y HoayD 6£:0%:80 LTI/8Z/%0 suny

4 abedq WELSAS TIOYAYd ALNNOD AFMOLS ¥0TS0¥d :3dew



TUYNIA
4

abeg

AFANSTIIL

AATTOALANOD

YINOISSIWWOD AINOISSINNOD

NYWIIVHO

$SISUOTSSTWWOD JFO paIereg Ajunop Aaxoas oy3z Aq paaoxddy

ST LBY 'YL

00°

Junowy

LT/82/%0 :33ed H22UD

x93sTb9y 30o89yD
WILSAS TTI0¥AVd AINNOD XHYOLS

1 §)09yD I030NpPad [BIOL

‘8d14d A0 ISFSUBIL IIS[) [BIOL

saked # pag # aa
/# dwg  /xdeud

Io03onpag :9dA1 TT0xfkeg

90:9%:80 LI/82/¥0 :uny
¥0T1S0¥d ;3day



TUNIA
S

abedq

ATINSYIAL

YITTOALAWOD
YIANOISSIWHWOD HINOISSTIWHWOD NYRAIVYHD
{SIPUOTSSTWWO) JO pIieog Ajuno) Aarols ayz Aq pasoaddy
SE"2ZZT1'98% : peBANgSTA
82 ¥HL'SE :I1030MpaQ 03 Iajsuel] x3sn
SZ2°1Z8°'%1 :971d dog ITQ uo pasix spag oakordum
€% 00T'¥9¢C :3Tsodaqg 3081t @akorduzm
887668 :e)osyD sadordug
0%-ZLO'9TT 1 9303Y) I030Npadg
IT 98% ‘%S i18d1dE 103 I9jsuey] Iasf
Junouy saked # p=a
/% dug
6 8 L 9 § ¥ € z T :sdnoxn [roiAeag
LT/0€/%0 :93BQ PUS-POTIAG LT/S0/S0 :93eQ Y0o8UD IeTnbey :edAl TTozhed

938163y 03D
WALSAS TTIOYAYd ALNNOD

T®30L

Te30L
Te3olL
Te30L
Te3on
Te3or

Te3oL

# aa
/309U

OE:BE:60 LI/E0/SO :uny
AJIOLS v0TS0dd :3dey



T

LL 02T
76°65S
00°60T
-¥8°82
86°21
66°%6
66 %2
6%°9
L ETZ
LL"SOT
85°2ZT
-96°6¢
BT TST 8T TST
8€°02¥% 8€°0C%
00°699 00°0LS
00°66
00'SET 00°SET
00°89T 007891
00°0€T 00°0ET
96°¥I1 96 PTIT
65" ¥V [0 44
00-szz 00°sze
§8°LZ ss"Lz
00" TO0T 00"TI0T
VLT E6S vLE€6S
08°'Sv¥ AN 4
v 18
¥Z IL
SZ 1
¥9 18
LS 6L
Z2S5°0T
25°91
LL'8
08" €T
SZ°LT 00°2CT
sZ'S
0S°LBL'T 0S5 L8L’'T
00°862'V 00°862°%
IYLOL LNOOWY
MADEHD
sbeg

vzeos LT/82/% YELIIA-L062€dd
$ZEOB LT/8BZ/% 1D MTd-dOHS
vZEOB LT/82/% JOWAIW B8SZPSII
¥ZE08 LT/82/% 'OFY ITOA-BS9E9 MA
$Z€08 L1/82/% ONILLIA -dOHS
vzeosg L1/82/% HOWAIW-8SZPSLI
$ZTEOB Lt/82/% NOD HSVAYO =dOHS
YZEOR L1/82/% ONILLIA-dOHS
YZEOB LT/82/% ISYIED ¥ SNOD
j2434:] L1/82/% SITHE -659€984d
j2420):] LT/82/% HIIHM 1d -¥8699Md
YZEDS LT/82/% SIIAE¥D dJdOHS
95€£08 L1/82/% WV¥d VAVAIN TIAVIL
€E€V08 LT/82/% AISANESIA INIWHSINAYD
SEEOB LT/8Z/% LTO0Z ‘61-9 T1I¥4Y
SEE0B Lt/8z/%

$6€08 L1/82/% ATAAOM 11104
60¥%08 L1/82/% YAAYET WYIL
86€£08 L1/82/% ENUOM TI0d
¥9%08 LT/8Z/%

z0v08 LT/82/% YATAN0D ATAYD VYNNAINY
zezeos LT/82/% YOLVYNYELTY 0L-D€
99€08 LT/82/% HDIA¥ES HONAYTINODITHL
0s€08 LT/82/% YOLOW 69559 -HD
PEEOR L1/82/% dOHS LAID Y04 M00€
1ZE08 L1/82/% HD
12208 L1/82/% dOHS
TZ€08 L1/8Z/% dOHS
TZ€08 L1/82/% HO
TZ€E0B LT/82/% dOHS
1Z€08 L1/82/% dOHS
5508 LT/82/% XMANNVT YL IS
¥Pv08 LT/82/% A¥ANNYT SL IS
yvv08 Lt/8e/% XAMANOVT 2L 1S
¥P¥08 LT/82/% X¥ANOYT TL IS
£2£08 LT/82/% SXIA
€ZE08 LI/82/% LATIT FINID JOd SKIX
06€08 L1/82/% SNOILVILODIAN VD
€8E08 L1/82/% TIIYd IVWZVH ALNNOD d¥nd
#SNVAL "IV # o/4d NOIXdI¥DSHA TDIOANI

L1/8C/v WHISIDAY MOITHD
ALNNOD AFIOLS

SII¥d OIAY ALID TVLIAWD
NVI¥d ‘MVHS

TYNOISSHI0Ed ¥ SSANISNG

SIMIT LIODS ‘TITNANH

ANNC HYAVS ‘ LANINE

ATTEA ‘'TTEMNMO¥H

QIId VIVHS ‘YIIANOLG

ALLVd ‘HIESTH

SHSTYdHALNT XJIHE
ONI‘DI¥IDATE MONAL 3 OILNV
IA¥MES FAONTUFTINODHETIL IZLV
ONI ONILNEIALSIA WASY

ONI ONIHSITENd VIAYDIY

ONI 0DS8TY

ONI MDOT INIATY

ail ‘dIZNINDVH ‘NOSITTIY

3 DNINIVAL JIId AVA'TD 1TV
HOANEA

LT/92/%0
STETEd

98588
S8588

vBsgs

£8588
ZBses
8988
08588
6L588
BLS8B8
LLSB8
9LS88
SLS88

vL588

£LSB8B

ZLSB8
TLs88
0LS88
ATENON
ADIHD

i 93eqg unyg
:oN 3xodsy



Z

00° 941
g0 c8
00°SET
00021
T0°S6T
0S°90€°1T

00°9€EC

8L ¥¥Z VT

0z v82

£0°826

00-2Z0¢

00°S6L°T¥

8E"B8HL’T

TW.LOL
JADHEHD

abeg

e TET
v6 ' tse
96799
TS 8%
€2°8E
0s-ev
90°9¢
0L %E
-26°20¢
0T T1IC
0L°89T
€9°66
00°TOT

00°9ST
€0°28

00" SET
007021
T0 S6T

0s°LzZZ
00°6L0°T

00°9¢ee

YT LE6
EE€ E€E8'TT
TEPIP’T

0Z %8¢

20°'S

TO" 0%
T0'0%
T0' 0%
2008

€0°02

T8 EZZ2C
0T 007
10°0%
10°0%

00°202

00°SL8°'ST
00°026°52

86°6¢EC
66" ¥2S
66°6ST
86°LZ
66°¢C

LNOOWY

LZtoR
LZg08
LZE08
LZ¢08
LZe08
LTt08
Lge08
LZe08
Lgeos
LTEOB
LTEOS
Lzeos
LZE08

0T%08
ogeog
T1iv08
LLY08B
T8t08

6E¥0B
Tet08

LELOB

SEPO8
SLEOB
SEY08

PEVOR

6LEOS
ZLY08
80%08
vo€08
85%08
9ZE08
9¢geos
LY¥08
LYv08
LZ%08

SZe08

L9€08
L9E0B

veeos
vZeos
v2Ze08
L4420 ]
vZeoe

#SNVIL

LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/BZ/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%

L1/82/%
LT/82/%
Lt/82/%v
L1/82/%
LT/8Z/%

LT/BZ/%
LT/8Z/v

LT/82/%

L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%

LT/82/%

L1/8e/%
L1/82/%
LI/82/%
L1/82/%
LI/82/%
LT/82/%
LT/82/%
Li/8z/v
LT/82/%
L1/82/%

L1/82/%

Li/82/%
LI/BE/Y

LT/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/8Z/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%

HILYa

SYELIIA -dOHS

€0H Md $Z20990S

ASSY LT TIVL ZTIE9S0S
Sa¥d Xy¥d -TE8L90S
SHUALIIA -SLS890S

SaAv¥d MAd-SZ0990S

aInid SNYIL $12290S
Sa¥d X¥d -¥12Z90S
SLIQHE¥D ¥ALIYIS-DSOA
SI¥¥d SNVAL -$8SSOATANOD
YOLVYNYALTVY -8SCHSLI

L35 INVKW‘MOSNHS B8SZ¥SLI
DdvE TIA £Z20990S

FAATAT WEIL
QOOMIDOT HONWY I¥Ad00B
FAAAOM T10d
SQYVYO ALNNOD
IVWZVH L1/2ZZ/% SdIT440S

II 1SSY Q¥ ‘l/d ‘a4 48
ONILIAW TYIDHAS

TILLOE ¥Hd NOILUNOQ T1$

LT0Z VYW INWVID TS4OLS NSA
L¥0ddNS WWVEDOEd LTOT AVKH
LT0Z €34 INVED TSd0LS NSA

qISANASTA LNIWHS INIVO

T0000-5600Z2S2L6 QUWDIUIV
HNOHd SHOSNH

YLYd av¥dl

NELLIHM d 208S-e%% SLL
SHWVL WIL SAQVdI LT

LNV'Id

av¥dI 10000-290t92ZZLL
T0000-LT9LS0Z%6 LODY
TO000-Z0BLEQZYE IDDV

AIM TI¥AV E£G9Z6EEBLE6H# ANI

z/T IY04ddNS AYN

(TT0Y-200S) LSEAELNI I%A
(0T0%-2005) LSTITLNT IRA

YHANIED HONAH

ST00L ¥IVY-JdOHS

ALNd WILXH -dOHS
TI9-¥1S 3906Z&8dd
HSHEA dIV -SO0¥99d0HS

NOILAI¥DSAA ADIOANI

L1/82/% WALSIODIE ADAHD

AINNOD AHIOLS

ONI ZX7d4d0S OLOY LLOITIE
NOJVHS 'NOXIA
NOILVYOd¥0D SHd HSIA

NNV HIIEVZITE ‘AVd
HSYIEWAN TTYSTTOHM ODIS0D

SNOILOTOS Snd DESH 0JLSO0D

(D7) FTIDINOMHD ADOISWOD

LYANNOS AIALAWID ADOLSHOD

ONI LSTHD ALINNWWOD

AGN A0 JDIAVIS NOILDITIOD

dIHSYANLAYd ODTI13D

ONI dTIESYO

dd00 ALIVIY dYSWNL

JOANIA

LT/92/%0
STETEd

66588

86988

L6588

96588

596588

ves8s

£6588

[43-1:1]

16588

06588

68988

88588

L8588

TAHWIN
ADEHD

23eg uny
:ON 3j10day



00° 052
TS°9TT €T
91°s2
00" TLT
00°0%T
6L°SLE’T
B6°L09

88 VTIL'T

00°0%2

00°0%¢

00°0€S

(AT A 44

65°%¥80°€
00°0ET
061?11

6L ZPTT

6€°89L
00°6%T
00°08¢
¥9° 16
ZL°BTIZ'T
TYLOL
ADHHD

€ abeg

00° 0S¢
IS 9TT'ET
9T1°Se
00°TLT
00°0%T
6L°SLE'Z
86°L09

PPLSE'T
PYILSE’'T
00°0%2
00°s9
00°SE
00°'SE
00°S¢€
00°St
00°00T
00°SE

0s°26c
0S°LEE

TE'TLT
0Z 1%

65°%80°€E
00°0€ET
06°T%T
8" 88
09" 18T
ZE"vEE
€E"89T
ELT6LE
6€£°89L
00°6%T
00082
$9°T6

8€°60T
00°T0T

LNNOWY

TEY08
LP%08
CEEDR
BEEOS
9T%08
95708
LEVOB

TEEOB
Tee08

50708
S8E08
S8€08
SBEOS
S8E08
SBE0B
s8e08
svvos

€LY08
ELVO8

0£€08
0E€08

0Zeo8
¥0%08
62%08
8¥¥08
87708
8%%08
8%%08
£%708
gze08
62¢08
Zeeoe
8LEOS

L2808
LZE08

#SNYAL

LI/82/%
LT/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
LT/8Z/%
LI/82/%

L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%

Lt/82/%
Lr/8ez/v

L1/82/%
Lt/8z/%

LI/8¢/%
L1/82/%
LI/82/%
LT/8Z/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/8Z/%
L1/82/%
LI/82/%

L1/82/%
LI/82/%

CAR-{a8

dTHSYOSNOGS
€5000-T%06009T

TTYLSNI YOLOVALXA SL° LS
LTOZ ‘6T-9 TIdAVY

JINIOM TT04

0672 AATTOULLIWOD

SLIY ISHL

Savoyd
Savod

VIAVET WAL

LSHd ATIELIVAD -DIDIW
LSHd-LNY'1d INIWLVAAL
LSEd -TI0L 00T

LSdd-0 § ZLE

Lsdd -D0dA

LSAJ-HD

TOYINOD 1S3d ATILLIVND

S¥X S§°9
SPX S°L

QIVANYT ‘SSANAVH
VY.L TIAY1

JINIOM TT0d

SOVII HD

ANVdOdd TL IS
FONIAISHA 2L IS
ANVdOdd 2ZLT IS

ENVdOdd 1L LS

AZd WWOD ¥ TT0L & 01T
LANTEYD-dOHS

S/M -¥12Z90S

dYW VYHIY ODNINNV'Id-€NS
YILINAD COOMMDOT -HIIAOD

YIALAVLS -PEZHS 2SDOA
Dd¥E TIA -AD0LS 0S

NOILATIIDSHd HIIOANI

LT/82/% WHLSIDIA ADTHD

ALNNOD ATIOLS

OTT dDIN0S TLI

ONI SIHOIN LSNONY ILOH
HLTVHH NMOLIWOH

DIAVAS LIAHED 1O043A FWOH
OHDS (AVM HIANO4 DIVOLSIH
HENHY NAFTHLIVA ‘XITDIH
SSENISNE VIAIIS HOIH

QLT INIYW TIOVd X1ddNS aH

all ‘LVH

3 dIAVA ‘LIVH

SHd 3 JLIWYAL NISVE LVEID
WOL 'XdFLISNVID

AADNITID
‘Y dY¥Mdd ‘ONIQAVID
g ESINZQ ‘NOLTIIH ¥ATINA

dHL-ONI AFN 40 HJOLS OV1d

dT SYDTIENIRA
ANVAWOD TYNILSVI

ONI SSVID LS¥d
ONI¥EANIONE LSHM dAVd

0D SO¥" ¥IAWIYA

JOaNIA

L1/92/%0
STETHA

02988
67988
8T988
L1988
91988
ST1988
v1988

€1988

cT988

11988

01988

60988

80988
L0988
90988

50988

vogee
£0988
20988
T0988

00988

ATENNN

ADFHD
: @3eqg uny
:oN 3jxoday



14

L6 0%
L9°999°1
LY 8%E‘T

TT€9€°T

05°0€6°9

00°S5¢2¢

00°582°'2
LO"TE?P’'T
0t ET

2L°L98°T

Z9-9¢
60°¢9T1
00°9ST
A2 24 AN

19°%89°2T

00°009

€V €TZE

TY.LOL
MDEHD

abed

6E°PT

L6 0%
L9°999°1
Ly 8ve‘e
00°00¢
00-0se
00" 0T
00°0¢
00°09
oo0°2
00°061
SS°LT
99°6¢
va'ZL

0S5°0€6°9

00°0S
00°sLz

0o-sez’e
LO"TEV'Z
OE"ET

(4 3% 24
08°€29'T

¢9°92
607 E9T
00°9SsT

1228 ZA NS

9L TLYV'ZT
00°00s
00°STI9°T
[ 441
1Z2°06%
26" €99

LNOOWY

6TEOB
S9e08
LLEOS
65¥%08

TL%08
TL708
TL%08
i2440):]
TL%08
Lv08
¥Zvos
TL%08
TLY08
TL%08
TLv08
yevos

9708

98E08
oLvo8

85¢08
6€££08
LP¥08

6¥¥%08
6¥%08

69708
TSE08
S6€08
sovos
£EL08
€EE08
£€€08
EEED8
EEEOR
SLY08
9LE08
LS¥%08
LSY08
LS708B
LS%08

H#SNTIL

LI/82/%
LT/82/%
LT1/82/%
L1/8e2/%

LT/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/92/%
LT/82/%
LT/82/%
LT/82/%
LT/82/%

L1/82/%

L1/82/%
L1/82/%

LT/82/%
Lt/8e/%
L1/82/%

L1/BT/%
LT/8Z/%

LI/82/%
Lt/82/%
LI/82/%
LT/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/8Z/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
HIVA

LT/82/%

# o0/d

SE3X0€d NOILONAL

LA04dNS WYID0dd LTI0Z AV
ATHLNOW ¥ZEI4 00TX00T
9102 ‘0T SAY¥08Z X100
9T0Z’'S 1D0-2Z d13S
9T0Z2'02-L TI¥dVY

LI0Z ‘6T-9 TIAAY

81/9-LT/L SANA dAIHSYTEWIW
oY

HATIT ATIILIA

SHITddNS SKWAE
SHITddNS SWdA

egLLOZ/

AMAIH DSIK

AIAYAT WYL

HOVIEAAQD FDIAA

HHOL -TSSZPud
NOLLNAE-L602€dA

ATIS ENIT TaNd -159529¥4
LIV £228YMd

dd ONEdS -659£9d4
LTAOOTAAN

YIDIAI0 HLTVHEH LTO0Z XVH
MS aMmIDVH I0S WIA¥AS SWIN
JALNAOY S/d HOVINHINI €D
SLLS ¥IANOL

SESNIDIT dANXOVH SVIIAIA

NOILAT¥DSEd AJIOANI

YIALSIDIA MDHHD
ALNNOD AHIOLS

NI SNOILNTOS HDIJJO OYLEAW
NOL ‘' REVHAODW
ALD ALINNWWOD NIVMI XIVH

¥SIT % LLODS ’‘NOSIAVI

WNESOW NOISNYW AWADVRW

JATIOULAWOD 0D NOXT

J0SSY SYADYNVH AOD TWDOT
OTT SINIAH F0TH AINOIT
OTT SINIAT ANTE AINDIT

HITT TYNOILVN NTIODNIT

ONI LSISSY-d4IT
NI SEDIAVIAS ANIT FOVNONVI
LSAMAIN TIVEWIN
T VAOVT ‘EINAEN

NOSNHOL ¥ addVMdE Ioane

OTT ddl

JddW NYNNITOW D SHWVL

JOaNIn

L1/92/%0
STeTEd

LE9BE
9€£988
se€9ee

ve96e8

€E9EB

2e988

€988
0£988
62988

82988

L2988
9z9es
SZ988
vZ988

£€2988

[44:1:1:1

12988

ATINON

ADEHD
ajeq uny
ON 3xoday



)

00" ¥%¥8T

00°0€ET
00°09T°2
00°9s

91°8TE

19°LL
00°SLT
00°0S
89°08%
0L "ESL'S
65°298°'%
00°00Z°1T
8%°9¢2
00°0%T
00891
00°9ST

2€°vL

00°z¢s
007291
¥8°STZ ¥

25°eeg

v6°99

6T1°602C

IYLOL
MDEHD

abeg

00°80T
00°9L

00°0¢€T
00°091°'2
00°98
TE€ BT
¥0 %2
I8°SLT
I9°LL
00°SLT
00° 08
89°08%
0L €SL’S
657298’V
0070021
8v 92
00°0%T
00°89T
00°9ST

8T°LE
81°LE

0o0-zgs
00°291
¥B°SICT’Y

9L 'TT
9L TT

s0"62
68°LE

09°%2
L %1
SE°L

[4*h4-]
0T "¥8

LNOOWY

ove08
0%e08

ZTv08
[4:22]
19%08
0LEOS
oLeOR
0LE0B
8BEOS
0s¥08
S¥vo8
£E6E0B
[4444°]
25208
T9¢08
¥Seos
ST%08
£€Tv08

Lee08

90%08
90%08

00%08
£0708
BEVOS

99¥%08
81%v08

£Se08
£S€08

89%08
£9¢€08
£9¢08
£€39€£08
6TEOB

#SNVIL

Lt/82/%
LT/82/%

LT/82/%
LT/82/%
LT/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/8Z/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%

L1/82/%
LT/82/%

LT/8Z/%
LT/82/%
LT/BZ/%

L1/82/%
L1/82/%

LI/82/%
L1/82/%

LT/BZ/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%

HILYa

LT/82/%

# o/d

LT0Z ‘6T-9 TI¥AY

YINIOM TI04

SAENWIHD HD SNV'Id ¥IVAEd
STIEY'T ONITIVIW
AAFAATITEQ/AOAD I ‘ SEXOE
LNINJOTIAZA ALINNWWOD
HEDIJJA0 MAHATD

AOVId 3 TIIA -dId
00T88TE I VIATONITI
HOUVW JJd TYLIOd ATHLNOW
TYIDHEAS SIOTIVE HTIWVS
OALO¥d HITVAH FIWNSNOD
HSYHOUNd WALYM HOAVW
LWNAd TYNIJ-O¥d HSNOHLANOD
SAFEA-DDDA

JIAIOM TT104

dAAVET WYAL

AIAYIT WYEL

6T/% XTIIW LVAWNI
ZI/% MAIIN HIVWNI

SHHOLVd IHDI¥UM ¥ ARALIYD
dIAVET WVYAL
LIJ0ELAY DIWSIHS HO

W
SONILIAIN NOISSIWWOD

LO¥LS -S20990S
LAN *3ANLS - S8 ESIATANOD

M ‘EYLS ¥LT¥IANIE

NOILATIDSAA FIDIOANT

SALSIDEA ADHHD
ALNNOD ATUOLS

ONI TOYINOD OISAHA

a OTIDNY ‘INIULAL
VYSAYAHL ‘VIIIZNVA
OTT1 DNILTASNOD A ® d

IS ¥ SOIHAVYD HAIS IHL NO

OT1 ‘1LOdEd ¥YI¥d ILISAA0
DTT ONILTINSNOD NOLION
Yd4N

(ONY) ar1 FINTHE VAYAIN
TEISNNOD HAILVISIDAT AAN
NYWNH-HITVEH 40 AIQ AIN
SANNO¥D ¥ HATE NIWAVY AIN
ATIAENIN ‘TYEN

HNTYA HNEL HSNOH ANNOW
NOAT YANOW ‘HIOOW
HVNOEEA ‘' TAOOW

T VIHIVNNY ‘E¥00W

OTT X¥IV¥A TIAOW
WAOJINN 3 SLAADYL STYATIIN
‘Y FETINEW “AHTIIN

NOILONALSNOD SHTINW

TIVAYL ‘NVOIW

0D ¥YOLOW THOH TAVHOIW

FOANTA

LT/92/%0
STETEd

09988

65988
85988
L9988

95988

55988
v5988
£5988
25988
15988
05988
6%¥988
87988
LY988
9%988
S%988

¥v988

£¥988
Zv988
T¥o88

0%988

6£988

gg98e

ATEWNON

JDHEHD
: 8j3eq uny
:oN 31o0dsy



9

oo°8

62°6LT

69° €S
v6°622°1T
00 €ELE

00"00T

25769

00°00¢

L0021
00°0¢ETL
00°006°T

07919

86°885°'2Z
9L° 15821
BE 9ES

BS°08L

00708

TYLOL
HADFHD

sbed

S0°

LB"8
Le L
6L° €

T0°2

o0°8

Sg°Lec
-9S°BTT

69° €9

v6°622°'T

Z5769

00°0LT
00°0€

LO 02T
00" 0€T
00°006°T

00" ¥%%T
0% 2Ly

86°885°C
9L°TS8'PCT
8E°9€ES

£8°SBT
SL°v6S

00°09

LNNOWY

8LY08
8L¥08
8LY¥08B
8L%08
8LV08
8L%08
BLYO08
8LY08
8L%08
8L708
8L¥08
8L708
8LY08
8LY08
8LY¥0B
8LYV08

£E¥€08

0St08
09¢€08

ZEV08
25%08
6S€08
LSEOS
L9%08
6T%08
€Z%08

66£08
66£08

09%08
T0%08
96t08

SSE08
SSE08

eLe0s
aLvo8
vLEOB

LOV08
L0v08

15708

#SNVILL

LT/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/8Z/%
LT/8Z/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
Lt/az/v
L1/82/%
L1/82/%

LT/8Z/%

LT/82/%
Lt/ee/v

LT/82/%
LT/82/%
LT/8Z/%
L1/92/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
LT/BC/%

L1/82/%
L1/82/%

L1/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%

L1/82/%
LT/82/%

L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LI/82/%

LT/82/%
LT/82/%

L1/82/%

IIVa

L1/82/%

wa

HOIVASIA TVALNID
HOSSASSY
INTWAOTEAIA ALINOAWNOD
(DA) FUIA
QOOMADOT/HATA
NIWAVY/JATIOELAROD
AATHIHS

ae

JATIIHS

SYJOM DITENA

(DA) =UIL

iclar (ool et

AFATD

I4L/HdI4

AEd WOD

LT0Z'61-9 TIdAY

SEITddNS dTaM
LNHNAYd HLYOITdNa

QIASINESIA LNAWHS INIYD
ONINIVIL TIISSNA AATONITI
TI¥dY INIVH -0¥3d SO0LT
¥dD-100d

SHAXOTAWE ALNNOD SMIVD
IDaNTIS -dLMM

SHHONAT NOILDATIE
TOOX JANVHL - dIL

OA FITA-LS96LPEBSLL L1ODV
YINAOM TT0d
8TS2L¥0000060008

SHYIL -T€B8LIOS
SHEIL-TEBLIOS

1L ‘VYOIddv
SYFIILNTOA HITA
dTZZON WOOo¥d awod

UTED TYNOILOWCAd TT6
AVID TYNOILOWOAA

SHITddNS SWA

NOILAI¥DSHA HOIOANT

JALSIDFIA XDAHD
ALNNOD ATAOLS

QT NI SIOIAYHES TVHOID DES

ONI ¥ALNEDOINY SXYYHW INIVS

ONI 0Dddnd
ONI HITAWINA
ONI ‘SWALSXS ONILIOdTE

NI ONIAVOSANYT NITID ONHA

LdH3d NOILYDNAHd YSHWIA

ONI ‘3ISNddy

SHIANYD §.dEy
(¥D) DONI 0D NVDIOW AWA
"0 NAYHLVY ‘AFTOHIND

TAMOd ISVHIANA

00 ¥aEEdNy ¥ HAIL TTIDAN
LNIWFYILAY ATdWd DITdNd
OILYSNIdWOD ADNEDY DITdNd

NYIddEM0d

ONI SNOIIOWOYWd ZHAILISO4

YOANTA

L1/92/%0
STETEd

LL988

9L988

sLo88
vL988
€L988

2L988

TL988

0L988

69988
89988
L9988

999868

s9988
¥9988
£9988

29988

19988

YTHWON

ADEHD
: @3eq uny
:oN 3xoday



L

00°SL
00°9TT
00°0SE‘Z

69°%1C'T

0S°6T
00°sSLe
00°SLS

0" ve

IVIOL
MDHIHO

abeg

00°9TT
00°0sg’e
LT TSE
ZS €90°T
007 02T
00°08
05°6T
00°SLe
00°sL8
v9'Le
SL”

L6"T
89°S

LNIIOWY

LB8€08
LBEOSB
LBeoR
LBEOS
LBE0B
LBEOS
L8E08
LBEOS
LBe08
LBE08
LBEOB
LBe08
L8808
L8EOB
LBEOB
L8¢€08
LBEOS
L8208
LBEODS
LBEOS
LBEOSE
LBEOB
LBEQOS
LBEOS
LBEOS
LBEOS
L8208
LBEO08
LBEOS
LBEOS
LBEDB
LBEOS
L8e08B
L8e08

0%%08
[4441:]
ZLeos
TLEOS
TLEOS
TLEOB
TLEOR
¥ve08
£Sv08
9¢Ee08
8LY08
8LVO8
B8LYV08
8L708

#SNVAL

LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
LT/8C/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/8z/v
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%

LT/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT1/BZ/Y
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%

dLYa

# o/d

Q¥ HONVY I¥dd 008
SIHDIT IS D § T€S
SIHDIT IS D § ZVHE

SIHDIT IS D N 9LT

ISNOHIINOD LS € § 92
NOANVYO dATIW XIS 0ZZZ
LOd3Ad HOD LINA IS NIVH
(ONINIVAL) IS D N T¥%T
SHEJIIA 1§ D N

AIV4TIVE LS NOSHVD

OA LINR 1§ D S

IHOIT T¥d/¥00dlno LS O §
LS D ZLE/DA LINN IS D S
HOVEYD 1S € § ¥0T

LG NOLLOS

MIvd DA 1S 3 N S02

ufAu Q4 EANIAYY TVINVYAS 00S

OWIS¥D IS O § 12

INTd ¥ILM LS HLNOS MOOT
d¥vd SNEWATO WYS 06¥
TIVL Tyt AMH SO T16

0§ LS O § soc

OS 1S 2 5§ t0¢

¥a Is O § 102

/1 dOHS @ TTOL 00T
Da1d ¥ TIOL 01T

Dd1d ad TIOL OfET
dOLSLSdY IS D N T8¢
LINQ IS D N S%T

SEY Q¥ IHOIAMIAVYD 2192
¥ 1S A¥YM NOANYD TEV
HSHAWNG IHOIVMLIYD 0152
LHOIT IS SYEANOISSIWWOD DS
SLHOIT LS ALID VINIDAIA

TYMINIA NOILAI¥DSHNS
INIVW dFHSINONILXE TYNNNY
AQTYO4dN dHMOd SdY ATIW S
“¥OTHD T

JOTHD 9

ANNAHY LISOddd €

aNNAdY LISCdHd 2

LT0Z ’6T1-9 TI¥AY

LINANISANANTEHT

oLoA
ONINNY'Id
(OA) TATA
AINOISSIWHWOD

NOILAI¥OSHAQ IDIOANT

L1/82/% WALSIDHIY ADHHD

ALNNOD AFIOLS

0D ¥HMOd JIJIDVd VIHdIS
ATAM SSANISNE AN NATHLAON
TT NOILDALO¥d IAIA VIIAIS

SHALSAS TOJYLNOD WIAAIS

ANVAHOD "TYOIWIHD YMEEIS
NATIV NVI¥NH ‘JYOHS
AVd ‘VWSES

‘L NILSNA ‘TIdIES

JOANEA

L1/92/%0
STETEd

S8988
78988
€£8988

28988

18988
08988
6L988

8L988

ATIANN

ADHHD
ajeqg uny
oN 3xoday



oo0°8 Lye08 Lt/82/v LT0Z '6T-9 TI¥AVY

ONI S¥NOL ALID VINIDVIA zZ0L88
0% SST SL°2T 8%E08 L1/82/%
00702 8%EOB L1/82/%
§9°L 8%€08 L1/82/% HTEVL ONHD LNAOW TIVMAAVH
00°ST 8%€£08 L1/82/% AODTOL S{NOSIOQ /M SNIKW
00°00T 8%£08 L1/82/% dNo¥d A€ ad FAMTIIOW 1T
JIDA TOLBR
80 BEV'T v9°¥8 0EY08 L1/82/% LSNODHI-ATINI
PZTESE’T YLPO8 L1/82/% NOILDNYLSNODHE IW 9
ONI ‘D008 1 ¥ A 00L88
00" ¥86 00786 L¥908 L1/82/% HONVENSNI TYINAQ
0D SNI FAVOHLIYAHAAILINA 66988
06" ZLL 06" ZLL 9E%08 L1/82/% QISANESIA INIAWHS INIVD
TYINLSAANT HIONUYNIS AELINA 86988
G5 8ZE S5°8CE 55708 Lt/82/% WAOJINN TYNOSVAS VIVDIT
D11 YAYAEN A0 ALIWIO4INA L6988
00°69T 00°S9T LTI¥08 L1/82/% AAQYIAT WYEL
SSINZQ ‘INIHOIOIA-UAMOVHL 96988
08" %06°€ §T°929°'T 0Z%08 L1/82/% S§€Z IS / 8T1S DAY Md
80°S8¢E 0zZv08 L1/82/% 0ST 7IN0 / 0§ 3™ -HOA
LS E6V'T 0Z%08 L1/82/% LT TISA /925 DAI M4
OT1 WNITOILAd SYWOHL S6988
00°S¥%T 00°S%T [4 40} L1/82/%
ISNOH ONILSVOd FHL 76988
¥0°S $0°S 1Z%08 L1/82/% WASNIASIA TYDIWIHD
S1ONAO¥d 1004 JOIAIANS £6988
00°0L8B 00°09 9%€08 L1/82/%
00" 86L 9%€08 LT/BZ/%
00°21T 9%€08 L1/82/% LT0Z ‘6T1-9 TI¥AY
SHSTYIYAING MV¥dd NOS 26988
v6°68 ¥8 €V £9¥%08 L1/82/%
0662 z9%08 L1/82/%
052 z9%08 L1/82/%
oL €T zZ9%08 L1/82/%
JATYTHS 0D IS 16988
00°2ST 00°2ST S%E08 L1/82/% LT0Z ‘6T1-9 TIddY
IDI¥LSIA TOOHIS OO IS 06988
00°00% 00°00% 68€08 L1/82/% HOUVK
ONI SHEDIAYES ALITILA €4S 68988
0L°2T¥ oL ZT? 6%€08 LT/82/% dOHS LJID ¥Od NID WHED
S % HENIM SYEZVID NIZHLNOS 88988
05°89 05°89 $I708 L1/82/% NOILAI¥DSEId HALVHNI
¥HINED DN¥A 3 004 SHLIWS L8988
0s°LZ 0s-LZ ¥Sv08 L1/82/% SAIVD Snd NIATID
¥Ed D77 SHINLSNANI ADITS 98988
9T TOL'6 T9°661 LBEOCS LT/82/% HSHAYIA JIHOTEMIAYD 0192
1s°¥%es LBEOS Lt1/82/% (NIVINAOJI) dZd q¥ TTOL 00T
L9 %6 LBEOB L1/82/% SIHOIT VLS HO A0 NMOL
SL"88 L8EDS L1/82/% ¥ 40 € /LS NOINN 09T
ZE"ZE LBEOB  LT/BZ/% M¥¥d Q¥ HONVY IdEd 000T
ZE'TE LBEOS L1/82/% M¥V¥d HOA QF FAIAWE T91Z
LE 09T LBEDS L1/82/% ¥ LINOD AM NOANYD 0C¥%
05° 26T LBEOB L1/82/% € LINN AYM NOANVD 0Z¥%
99°5§ LBEOS L1/82/% 1S D N S8T
SETLYT'T LBEOS L1/82/% qA OFEd SOLT
TY.LOL LNONOWY #SNVAL ALYA # 0/d NOILAI¥YDSEA ADIOANI J0aANIA ATEWAN
p:relci:zo) ADIHD
L1/82/% WIALSIDIE MITHD LT/92/%0 : @3eQ UNY
8 abeq AINACD AHIOLS STETHd :oN 3xodey



6

08°TE0‘TCE
S8 °89¢

00" Se6t

¥0-g8L

¥0°LZE'T
00°82Z%‘¢

¥9-s2c

00°260°T

TYLOL
ADHHD

26eg

TYLOL SADHHD
S8°89¢€

007061
00°s0¢2

097261
¥v 06S

%0 LZE'T

00°T9¢
00°L9T'2

¥9°5z¢

00°00T
00" 786

LNOOWY

8zvo08

92708
SZv08

SZv08
SZvo8

[4:121:]

89€08
89¢€08

Lv¥08

L¥EO0B
LPE0B

#SNVEL

L1/92/%

L1/82/%
L1/82/%

L1/82/%
L1/82/%

L1/82/%

LT/82/%
L1/982/%

LT/82/%

LT/82/%
LI/82/%

ZLVYA

aNvs

NOEIVD DJ0 'ITOD TLL'ITY
ALVIVHIHG SId

dWVY'T LHOIT LAZILS
ONIHSVM SL °LS

LT0Z HOYVW STVEW TOOMIDOT

LIDONN NOSIYD-HONNT
SEDIAYIS LSIZFH0T

ITATLIA TO000 L¥OBVO O€E

NOILATI¥UDSAAd IADIOANI

LT/82/% WHLSIODHY MDHTHD

ALNOOQD AHIOLS

ONI HALIADNOD dt

€Y1 TYINTANONIANT NITLSHM

ONI ODaEM

A¥IS WOINIS ALNNOD FOHSVM

SHLYIDOSSY 3 JAATVM

ONI ‘NVId ADIA¥IS NOISIA

YOANZEA

LT/92/%0
STeTHd

80L88

LoLeg

90L88

s0L88

voLee

£0L88

TIEAON

ADITHD
i 93eqg uny
:oN jxoday



YANOISSINWOD

LT/82/% HEI¥A ADEHD 08°T€0’'TCE TYLOL SADHHD

NOIIVZIYOHLAY (ONV MAIARN 40 LNIWIDATTMONADY



T

TYLOL
qavd

abeq

TT°%0T

verve
€EE"EP

LNNOWY

8%0T
8¥0T
0501
8%0T
8%0T
8%0T
090T
0901
090t
090T
0S0T
0980T
00T
6701
6%0T
8%0T
8%0T
8%0T
8%0T
1S0T
180T
TS0T
TS0T
TS0T
TS0
TS0T
TSOT
0901
080T
090T
090T
090T
0901
0901
090T
¥SOT
vS0T
¥S0T
¥S0T1
090T
090T
6%0T
6%0T
6701
60T
6%0T
6%0T
6%0T
0901
2901
00ST
00ST
00ST
2901
090T

#SNVAL

LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1I/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
LT/8Z/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
Lt/82/%
LT/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
Lt1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/%
L1/82/%
LT/82/%
LT/82/%
LT/8Z/%
LT/8Z/%
L1/82/%
LT/8Z/%
LT/82/%
L1/82/v
LT/82/%
L1/82/%

qLVd

‘Md ‘WW’dD‘'dl ~ SHIALLYW
qar

¥ INHAd ‘STIDNEJ ‘' SUHATOL
WNISNKW/JIWNYIS d0J
ONINIVIL - d4N0¥d

SENd dIHSYTENIN

SI¥Yd OIQWA

SEITA4NS ONILVIAJO

L Q¥¥ND JYONOH INVTANID
A¥EIOUENT a¥vVNd AONOH
NILIIW VWYD HONNT UNYL
LAID LNAWSIILIE STWYH
J00€ I ¥OLDFASNI NIITUD
AAYIVd YFLSAO SHOHMANS
D/A ONINVATD J0d dOW

L - DNINIVIL 9STd HATIJI
Y - ONINIVAL ¥STd HAAIA
NL - ONINIVIL ¥STd

OV - DNINIWAL ¥ST1d
daADEE ' LDYTH -104ddHd HD
TIV-Z0OS ‘SMEADS -DIDA
SIIE TIINA ‘TIMOUL

9XZ -0SDA

SHATYHLLVE

TYOTHIDATHE SL LS
LIN¥Ed TdD

ST00L

ONINIVAL OL TIAVIL
TIAVAL

WYX I ¥OLDIJSNI

SSYID I JOLDAJSNI

TYIN TIAVIL

TaNa

TVIN TIATAL

TVIN THAVAL

SLIDYVYL NOIIVOIAITYND
TEM ALNdAT SSVID FODNVA
AIVL 404 SHAOTD

qI¥D ODNIM JO0d ILVWNI
LHOIT OVId
NOILVELSIOHN ATOIHAA
ILIAW q¥d d0d SHITIANS
AZTIOEL TALLOX D/M 1AW
TIYMIEIA ALISEEM
TIVMIETd JLISHIM
6S°STT$ = ZX LITdS
65°STT$ = X 1ITdS
EANOD 00D T1ddNS IDIDLJ0
INIVA dIN0E

AAIND ONILIAUM

d0 DDd I1IN¥A DIOA-SXEA
ANOHd HLITTELVS
NENTHTA/TYNOSHIAd 'TYdAVd
SdSN FOVLSOd

INIVW DdT18

NOILAT¥DSHA

YALSIDIY AIYD FSVHOANG

ALNOOD XHIOLS

DFT FAYD FSIYNNS Md
ADYWEANA AN STINODIW Md
L0d3ad FDIA40

SIHOIT LOdHEd HWOH AW
INVLTIASNOD SISI¥D AW
UNOILYNJIINI SISY MK
WOD ¥d6% HDAOTTINDDW
SEMOT HONOTTINDIW
NOLAWVH HDONOTINDOW
SOTIHAWYID HONOTTINDOW
NVOIXHW VISIIS V1
d¥8d d571Nd YATONITH
00D TINI JdTONITH
NOIHSYA 710 Sadd ax
WOD " NOZVWY X

TELOH SNVATIO A
TILOH SNVITIO0 40
HIId ¥HLSIDHAZT 4L
J¥Id ¥HLSIDAAZHA Ar
LOdAd FWOH-HAJHL
LOd3d FWOH-HAJALC
LO4dAd AWOH-HAJAL
10dEd HWOH-HAJAL
L0dEd FWOH-HALAL
SHEMOT-MNOSYL
ARNA-MNOSYL

LOd2d AWOH-ANOQOSYL
ALIDOTIAVAL NITAD
VIV LSHMHLNOS NIIYD
HI0D0 TLNI SON NITAD
WYXH LSNOD NIIYD
HdODSITEL INVTINID
TaNd HLIWS INVTINID
IT3d IDO INVTANID
LSNa aT09 INYTINID
09%T0LTC -VANZAVD
810% -NISOQ
LT0ZT/ET/%0 -NESOQ
082620 -NISOQ

HIOLS DVIL S NOXIA
AW S NOXId

IAYHTYM dd
LINVINYISEY dDVIV¥d dd
AALISIA IdNDNS MO
ANSMOTIEDA IANDNS MO
LOdaa d0IJ40 MD
LOdAd dDIAA0 MD
HAOVIdIIN NOZWWY MD
dIL U0 ASYLI JTAOD
€0ZB966° " " # JINOD
ANTVAINAL-NIAIN D
LS0daV¥OA-NIAAN "D
aQIVITYd

£6SZS0# 1AN4AV

LOdEd EWOH SNINAVY
LNANAYA

# HDIOANI 1d43A-aNN4

QIVD TYIDYHTWWOD HNO STIaAM 90T
YOANIA YFEWON
od
LT/92/%0 : ®3eq uny
LS08%SHd :oN 3xoday



Z

IT°TT0'TT

IT°TII0°TT

TYLOL
advo

abeg

05" EL
00°0S9
9L°S8

SL"S6
S6°LeT
00661
S6°6cCT
8E°S6
65°9

65°9

00°88
S6°8S
S8 6ET
6T°9TT

LNNOWY

TLVa

YANOISSINWWOD

NOILVZINOHINV (ONY MEIIATI J0 INIWIDAATMONIDY

90T LI/82/%
€507 LT/82/%
T90T L1/82/%
T90T L1/82/%
6S0T LT/82/%
6S0T LT/82/%
90T L1/82/%
090T L1/82/%
6501 L1/82/%
650T L1/82/%
090T L1/82/%
TS0T L1/82/%
TS0T LT/82/%
090T Lt/82/%

H#SNVEL TIVA

FTYALLVE Dd¥ ALITAdI¥EL
ZT61 ¥Ad ‘SIWOOT HIIHEX
ISa D0oA

TSd AZAWOD

ODI STIVI¥HELYW THINIdd
Hd ISHEL ¥EANIWVXHT SNY'Id
1d3d II HOWIOLS DD
YOL¥YNIWYT SL IS

VSINN ¥LT L¥FD FDYLSOd
VSINN dLT L¥3D HOVLSOd
SYUIVIIY ¥L 1S

INIVd -78699Md

SOvHE TOOL

YIAAIYHS SL IS

NOIL4ATI¥DSHEd

YHLSIDIE QIVD dASVHOUNG

AINNOD XHIOLS

+TP30L PIED=

vZeLPE-0SE

SHENG YVEALVYLS LTOZ
60LETVLYT

TVLLSSEDT

BSBERBEO0T

SIdND €T11Z-866E-TH00
SZ¥00000

LOdad EDIJJ0 AEHOX
0%%00026T€5dSN
0%%000Z61E SdASN
10ddAd FWOH ZITddS
ATIIHEO -YILIAAAS
L0dHd EWOH -VILII¥AS
NOZYWY T13SsSny

# EDIOANI IdEC-aNnd AOANIA ATEWON
od

L1/92/%0 : 23eQ Uny

1S08%58d :ON 3zoday



abed

$$ aood

NOILAI¥DSHA

YINOISSIWWOD

JILVa NOILVZIYOHLNY ONV MAIATEY J0 INAWIDIITMONMOY

00°T1IT TYLOL SYMOFHO QIJAL

LT/LT/% 00 TITIT
SSY¥IO dISYL LNAYD 00°TTIT

#IDIOANI 2LYa TYLOL LNOOWY
MDHEHD  MDHHD
YALSIDIY SADHHD dHJAL
ALNNOD AHIOLS

TAINVA ‘LINOVD 60L88
0LL8 LT0C

AWNYN MOONIA #QHODEM VIR  MAEWAN
TYISIA MDTHO

LT/T0/S0 : ©3®Q UNY

06€THS 0N Zmodey



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report
Meeting date: | Estimate of Time Required: 0 -5
Agenda: Consent [x] ] Regular agenda [] ] Public hearing required []

1. Title: For possible action: Approval of the Treasurer's Report for April 2017.
2. Recommended motion: Approve as part of the Consent Agenda.
3. Prepared by: VANESSA

Department: MANAGER Telephone: 847-1111

4. Staff Summary: Report is attached.

5. Supporting Materials: See attached

6. Fiscal Impact: 0

7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by:

_@ Department Head Department Name: MANAGER

County Manager Other Agency Review:

9. Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




Y7 L0S'L86 $ PSOT8S €00 § bS6bb'ZS 68°S8TFS VIEOZ'EST $ [LB8ESZTS L9PITP S T6'608°TS vRYOZ'Y $ 00'8SO'PT § €6°TOLOP § SLP860TZ § 9S8LI'TT $ 90°SLZ'/8¥ $  TVIOLANVHD
- $ = $ = S = § = S = s 1510 2d
- $ 1510 Xd
B $§ & § = s - g = $ = $ 1510 XW
¢RTIST'EP8 § - S - S - 5 L $ G8'RESGET & O00EST'T S PEEP8'E S €TC9ST S STTISTT $ ZPSL0°LE S 8699T'T6T S L8000'VSY $ 1510 Jd’Xd
JSIN
86'00T'T $ ©S9T8S 2 S PSEPP'TS M'SLZ S LL0TE'S § w8k $ 19791 § LT'B0T § pO'SHS'T § T9eSs  § OwOLS'T 5§ ETOYI'E  § 9TL9L $ GYE'BT §  DISNNIVIOL
JuawAedianp
66'TV9'0r $ 0V'808 S PI'STV'Z $ SO'SZTT $ €8TIS8S S ST8F  $ ETIOT S THLOT $ v99T8T § TTLES  $ 8LYSST S 768S0'8  § 97L9L S 96TLTST $ £107/910T
66°85Y s v $ ovvz ¢ wes $ ve'8s $ 60 S 8yT $ SL0 $ 0v'8T $ IS $ 29'stT $ 1718 $ ) $ ELTET $  dORdIviOoL
L0°8TE $ 995§ 969T § IrSE  § T60P S vE0 S EIT S SL0 $ 8Lt $ SL't $ v8°0T $ 0v'9s S CIEET $ 9T0Z/S10¢
6°00T $ sz $ L $ 00ZT ¢ 208T $ ST $ S€0 s - $ T9's $ 99T S 8Lb $ 18'%T $ 19'8S $ |e3oigns
6°0rT S 8vz §$ L $ 004T S TOST $ STO $ SE0 $ 9's S 991 $ 8LY $ I8¢ $ 19°8S S STOZ/Y10T
- $ $T0Z/ET0T
£T0Z/2102
= S T10Z/110C
‘ S 1T02/010T
. S 0102/600C
< $ 6002/8002
C S 8002/L00T
= $ £002/900¢
VOSSISSY
vo'rST'Es  $ - § €00 § - § THOTO'rS 20VSLZ S €179 S 21807 $ TS6ET $ O8GIv'Z § SZPOL  § IU9S0'Z S v94L90T § OETITHOT $ OSOIS'PT § SIVIOL 1¥Od3d
- $ paJnJag punyay
vrysz'ss ¢ - § €00  $ ] ¢ 2WOTO'P$ CObSLL $ ETT9 $ T80T $ ZS6ET $ 086IVT $ STPOL  $ TT9S0T § v9LL9'0T § OETITYOT $ OSOI8PT $ AIWNIISTVLIOL
£2'8L5'08 $ -8 - $ 0S6ZV'ES OSbZP'L $ tveS $ €S00Z $ PEZET $ 9TVIET $ 86'EL9 $ 09'896'T $ bLTEZOT $ OETIVOT § bVLOPLST $  LT/9T1VIOL
- $ ssassy [eads
£7°84505S $ 0S6ZY'ES 08VZVL $ vF6S S €500T $ PETZET $ 9TVIET $ 86EL9  § 09896T $ vLTZTOT S OSTIVOL $ vLOPLET S £10Z/9T0C
81949  § % $ = § = $ 7608 § eCTeZE $ 69C $ 618 $ 81ZL $ vS'SOT  § LTOE § 1548 $ 06'vSt $ - $ 9L'690°'T $ HONdIVIOL
oS’ S = s - $ - $ 20707 S TOS6T S 0971 S 0SY $ 09¢ $ 99°€9 $ 16T A drd<] $ 910LZ $ s $ 8EVE9 $ 9102/5107
£0'6 $ 100 $ Szo $ LTOo s 8T ] S ore S vrer S LE'6T §  ssassy [eads
0702 $ 66'S8T S €ST $ STY $ €re S v809 $ 80T $ LL6eb S TLLST S 10°509 S 9102/510¢
9T TET'T $ 06’88 $§ OTVET $ 60T $ 69 $ 8s€ S 88'TP $ 9gzr § pe'se S vLveT $ - $ BESEY $ |eloagng
9T TE6 $ €7°69C $ TTVOT $ 580 $ 187 $ 6T $ T§TE S 656 S 8eLT S SPErT s - $ v68EE $ ST02/47T02
s53ssy |e1ads
£¥'697 $ TTHOT $ 580 $ 18T $ 6T $ T8TE S 656 $ 8ELT S SYEPT S ¥6'8EE $ ST0Z/1107
. S - s - S : s = S - $ - S = S - S ] s - < B $  vToZ/ETOZ =01
ssassy |eads
¥T0Z/£T07T
i S €102/T10T
; S 2T0Z/TT0T
2 $ TT0Z/010T
0000€ S LY'60T $ 6667 4] $ 80 $ 99T S 9£6 S LLT $ 96 S 6TY S v'96 S 0102/6002
= $ 6002/800C
- S 800¢/£00T
- $ £002/900¢
= S 9002/5002
V1oL %ZY¥/V  LNMYAO  %9d/v  SAILTYNId  ¥IW3I/3YH HLNOA DOV ANl Q3w ani aLvis NOV dv2 4a HDS dO HOS amm 1SNAani TVHINID YIUNSYIUL
69T  90S9€-T00 POTYE-TOO 100 0se 100 S8T 010 oLt 090 091 0sT 00S-T00 100

L102 [udy



00" 00"

00-° oo”"
00" oo”
-00°000°000°T oo*®
-$6°TIE'6LS oo’
-€8°0%T L0T 00"
-85°008°¥%¥T0 ‘€ 00"
-68°596‘TLT 00~
-15°628'SE8 00~
-E0°8TE 00°
T8°LTEB9 00"
-LZ TIT 'TE9 2 [lvhe
-S%¥"9%0 ‘61T o0°
00" 00"
-LE°STL SE 00~
-$6°58% 6 00~
-99°95Z ‘9% 00"
-0T°TET LTS 00°
-%%°668°L0T 00"
-Z0 SLY ‘8E 00"
-S€°%26°002 00"
-00°0TT 00"
-€6°TZ98BT'E oo*
-L9°%S% ‘9T% oo*®
00° 00"
-00°099 00"
-00°000°000°T 00"
-6% %T0‘699'T 00"
-BE'685'2ZL T 00"
-LLTTLB ¥E0°T 00~
-€%"8%L 'S8V 00"
LT 9TE’6E 00"
-LT°9L8'P8 00~
00" oo~
[ 00~
¥S 697966 00"
-S0° €S 00"
-S% 8ER €68 00"
00" 00"
-SE°9€8 L8 00"
-6€ 19V ISR ‘ST [eJoly
00-00Z 00"
00°000°2 00"
00°00T'T 00"
0E"BEY 00"
0L P68 '8LT '8 00"
0S°20Z°6ST'L 00"
TI1°S86°668°'T€ 00"
00" 0o0°
0o- 00
0L EZT’S 0o’
€9°5%6°8 00"
00" oo”

00" 00" 00"
‘
20" 00° 00"
0o- 00" 00"
00" 00°000°000°T 00"
00" 00" TE €ZE'E
ag” 00" 00°
00" -€B"SPT'L66 99 €2E9€E
o0 8T " 88S S8 6L58Z
06" 00° [l
[ 00" 00"
0g" 00~ oo
00- 00° 00"
06" 00" 0o
06" [lvhe 00°
0o0- oo” 00~
oo’ 00~ 00"
oo” oo 00"
00" 00" 00~
(] 00" 00"
-] 00~ 00"
oo’ 00" 00"
Q0" 00" 00-
00° 00° 00"
00" oo’ SS°08% 0T
00" 00” 00
oo 00" 00°
1] 00" 00~
oo” 00" S6°EE6'6T
00 00" 00"
{1110 00" 00"
(1110 00" 00"
Q0° 00" 00-
00 00" 00"
90" 00" 00"
oo” 00" 00~
Go° 00" 00"
00” 00* 00"
00" €€°€80°C S9°€£80°6
0g” 00° 00°
00" 00" vl
oo’ -8L°525'S ¥y 6Z%‘€E9
00" 00" 00"
(] 3 oo* 00"
0o 00" 00"
(1] 0 00" 00"
oo 00" 00~
oo’ 00" 00"
oo’ 00" =Z¥ PST T¥0‘T
oo’ 00" 00"
oo* 00" 00"
oo’ 00’ 00"
0o’ 00" 00"
0o 00" 00"

FONYIYH DNIANE LNO SATISNYAL NI SYIASNVIL

T obea

SYIHONOA NINOL  STIOAXYd

LTO0Z/%0 dod

00" 0o°*

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"
S5°LS9 T -z9 8sz"’
00" 00"
67°8£6°9TT -LL"¥S0’
¥9°9LZ LT -SS"TLT’
007564 °T% 00"

00" 00°

08 E%6°9 00"

00" 00"

00" -00° 008
00° 00"
¥6°5LT -z9' €95’
L8205 ¥ -L9'v1Z’
007 L0Z -00"S6€E"°
T6°5%2'L82 -gEtTLE”
00" -5 9TS”
S6°¥LT 16 -€6°TOL"
6% TTS‘ELY -SL"69%
00709 -00°08
00°L95‘S% -92° 961"
60°80L'% -€z 01z’
00" 00"

00" 00"

00° 00"
75728971 -92°%8T"
00" -9% 68"
LE"9LB'SET 00"
sTTLLT -00°850 "'
00°5Z8°€T 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"
00002 00"
09°%56°8 -80°986 "
00" 00"
¥5'8L0°9 -Z67608°
€Y T6Z ‘695 -85°962°
00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"
-¥%'050°T88°'T 29 ¥%E6’
00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

00" 00"

SLNAWASINGSIA SILITIOINR

LIFHS DNIDNVTVE ATHLNOW
DNILNNOZOY SwATANSYIAL
UIANSTILL ALNNOD ATAOLS

6o’

00~
00"
-00°000'000°2
€5 -6T %E0'TES
-€8°0%T°L0T
062 -€1°298°061°C
99 -TT°6€2°29T
-TS ¥Z9'LL8
-€0°8TE
T0 PLETY
-Lz TIT'1€9°2
-S%°9%5'8TT
00"
T -69'LZ¥ %€
¥ -PT HLL 6T
T -99°890'S¥
78T -€9°SOT 0EL
T -06°Z8E‘90T
0¥ -%0°'8%6 ‘88
(444 -60°996 ‘T9%
-00°06
®0T -L5°266 62T E
it -80° €€V '00F
00"
-00°099
-00°000‘000T
0% -0L'9%F€99°T
62 -26'%69'269'1
-FT 8PL0LT 2
T -89°L96‘TLY
LI T6%°ST
-Lz 9L ‘vE
00"
00"
YS'6¥9 66
-S0"€ST
LS -S6°€L5"558
00"
z -L6'FOT 6%
S8T'S -06°6SE'€98°0Z
007002
0070002
00°00T'T
DE"6EF
0L*768°8LT 8
0S'20Z‘6ST L
SE'SST 005 LT
00"
00"
0L €ZT'S
€9°576°8
00"

TZE'L

QITMIOT " TWE

SaNNg TTY TELOL

ONICIOH SIXVL dIANDIS 006
ONITIOH SIXvI JI¥NDIASNA 008
JYId IDIr0o¥d TYLIAYD 0BT
aIv TYOLOW 0LZ

AONIOYIAWE FAIL 09T
IDIWLSIA FAIL 08T
NOISSTIWWOD WSIXNOL DA 0tC
LOEL0¥d IIWE DA 02T

aNNd 918 TIIVL S\, 3ITAFHS 0TT
SLNVED TY¥Iqdd 902

MOYEAVYd I¥L 00C

aNad A¥vd 061

IAN T4l 68T

aNAd LANCD HOILSNL LBT
INZAIDOY INIDIANI S8T
L1¥N0D IOIWLSIA 08T

FIVIS 0LT

aNNd AHOTONHOIL S9T

Lg3d TOOHDS 09T

TOOHDS 0ST

300D DN¥d 0%T

oD¥Yd STTIM ANO€E ¥dSn StET
VIMAS JATAIA VINIDITA OET
ALID WINIDEIA A0 NMOL 0ZT
TITH JI09 40 NMOL OTT
NOILVZITIEVYLS 00T

WALSAS JIILYM 060

aANNE FAOIDNALSTIINT 080
SIDOAL0¥d TYLIJYO 0L0O
NOIIISINOOVY INIWGINDE 090
FDIA¥AS 0S50

QI¥ TENLOW S%0

ADI¥LSIq F¥Id 0%0
ADNIDYEWI HJId SED

Z¥Id 00

NOILOALILSEE %ZT0

Savoyd 0<o

XYL- FONYISISSY INIDIANI STO
TIOTIAIN INIDIANT 0TO
THHINID T00

YOSSHESSY HSVYD ALLIA S06
JdTITHS HSYO ALLId Y06
HSYD ALLId E0E

SNIQOD 4710 T06

INOQOOY dI9T HIVLS 96T
LAMIYA AENOW 0O¥Wd STIEM T6T
INNODOY 20 0D¥Yd STTaM 661
SATYS ALIII0Ed ¥ 40 H 86T
STEYOD MNYd SSINISNG L6T
MNVE NI HSYD S6T

ONICTIOH LIN0D IOIALSIA ¥6T
HSYD YOSl ODY¥Yd STTEM €61

NOILATIOSEA I1D¥

90:6%:0T LI/60/S0 :unyi
00TZdL :oN 3zodey



SG LT LT/8C/%
00" TO0T LT/82Z/%
BLE6S LT/8C/¥%
08°G%% LT/8C/%
ST LT LT/8Z/%
0G5 L8L'T LT1/82/%
00°86C'% L1/82/%
98 %211 LTI/%T/%
00°0ST’'T LT/PT/%
00°0%L"T LT/%T/¥%
00 "%CT LT/%T/¥%
00°002 LT/%T1/¥
00°00¢ LT/YT/¥
6T L LT/%T/%
00°01¢€ LT/YT/%
828 LT/ %1/%
00°%9¢ LT/V1/%
00 6L¥'Z8T LT/%1/%
00°00S'% LT/PT/%
0Z°9S LT/%T/¥
00°%%0°T LT/LT/SE
L6°89T°T LT/€0/€
80°%28'T LT/€0/¢€
SV LT LT/€0/T
£V voc'c 9T1/¢cz/Ct
L8 0% 91/60/CT
00°6Z 91/60/21
z28°502°T 91/60/2T
69°%29 9T/60/CT
00°89L'T 9T/LZ/0T
LY 8¥E’'C 9T/%T/0T
98°Z6T'0T 91/0¢/6
00 9% 9T1/91/6
00" %1 9T1/91/6
00°%¥€’'c 91/20/6
€% 8 91/20/6
00°9% 9T1/20/6
00°9% 9T1/61T/8
29°6C 9T/6T/8
€6°671 ot1/ze/L
6T ST 9T/80/L
00 00T 91/80/L
00°6€ 91/vz/9
AR T4 9T/01/9
00°T08 9T/8T/€
80 %I S1/81/6
00°GL S1/%0/6
00°8L St/¥e/L
81°06 ST1/92/9
S0°98 ST/21/9
00°06 ST/2T/9
SL 6€E ST/LT/%
16°9T ST/LT/¥
00°09 ST/LT/¥
Junouy 23rd Io=[Uup

ONILINNODOY SwJdHINSVHIL

1 obeg

LT/0E/% - 00/00/0
666666 Ubnoaul T

s3o2YD burpueasino

IAYES HONIIFANODHATHL IBLY
ONI ONIINGIYLSIA WHASY

DONI ONIHSITHNd YIAYO¥Y
DONI ODSTIVY

DNI D07 HANIATY

dLT ‘HIZNHMOVW ‘NOSITIY

¥ ONINIVAL HdId IVITIO TIY
AGES MOINHAS ALNNOD HOHSYM
ddn SANYTIHOIH YVINIDJIIA
MAVW ‘' qE044AVYLS

d OTHONY ‘INIYLAd

YINYW ¥NIL ‘SNIMJI3d

NSSY SAHIHD d¥YIA YAVAIN
XATIVS ¥0 AFISHEM 'JTOOMAVH
YO4ID

SHNYL ‘HONIHLIYA

DNI SWHLSAS HIIA ¥ITdd
ATIWNYA JIOIHANHODH NYVYA
NOOTY¥S aooTd 40 I3MDNd
difl INIWdOTAAHA SAY

0d ADYIVYD AYHHIHAO NASNYH
AMAS YOINHS AILNNOD HOHSYM
d0D HONIMDNEL HALITIHANID
TIAYWYL ‘NYDIRW

DT HDINOS TLI

NOSY[ ‘THAVHNYA

DTT HOILON LSHL

III HONH ‘YIHOVIIVD
HSYFAAWIN HTYSHTOHM ODLSOD
SASTHAYHALNA M¥dAd NAS
¥SIT 3 ILIODS ‘NOSIAVKW

0D ¥AMOd DIAIDYd VIddIS
SNOISSHIAWI HAILYAONNI
NYHd ‘' HIONAVH

SHSTAJIALNA MYHd NAS
ALSHTHD % NNATO ‘NOILHDIAT
SNOISSHIAWI HAILYAONNI
IDIYLSIA TOOHDS 0D IS

or AIdd0od ‘1sind

NOSY[ ‘SNIMMYH

adv0d ONIZYID YAYAAN
YANOL ‘MOTIVH

DONI 999 FAFIHL

HIYYHL ‘HONAT

ONI DIDOTHIOD

NOOYIY HIYUVW NNV ‘AVIANNW
YHIISVYL ‘NOSHOH

ONI 99D HHAIHL

HOQNH ‘1¥0D4A4HL

XAIYd ® YANIT ‘dHdId
NHOL ‘ANSITIANA

NHOL ‘AVHS

a¥HD 'SNYAHA

HYJ09H3d ‘JAHANHI

sweN 9sAoTdwd/I0pUSA
wox g

#3{09YD woxq

§5:9%:01

ALNNOD AHYIOLS

6T9E0¥
T92€0V
0Cv¥0¥
SECTI00T
S6LEOY
T8%00%
TL866

600€0T
€TLEOY
8%820%
S568€0¥
T6L%0V
0€0te0T
£€9050%
818Z0T
Z90S0¥%
LTLOOT
7S8€0¥
9S¥TO0Y
S8C00T
€20507
600€0T
¥S900T
6C9t0%
7e8€0¥
S0050%
81I8%0%
Z80€0¥
L%CEOT
268¢0%
£€99%07
0€9T0T
O%€e0T
LL800T
z68E0%
£56%0%
0P€E0T
LTLTOT
9€6V0¥
806V0%
9GCTOT
S68%07
8€6€0¥
€LB8Y0V
LLIE0Y
LESTOY
9¢LY0Y
8E£6€07
9L9%0¥
0L9Y0%
z8ee0¥
6T9% 0%
TZ9%0%
656£0%

# uosisg

SUWTI unyg

00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
bss ueg
LT/60/S0
Z9LTIg

9,588 p:te)
SL588 D
$LG88 D
£LG88 D
zLS88 D
TLS88 D
0LG88 D
£9588 D
09588 D
9¥588 D
0ZS88 D
61588 D
TIS88 D
T8¥88 D
¥L¥88 D
0L¥88 D
S9¥88 D
£9%88 D
0S¥88 D
S¥¥88 O
05§z88 D
T0Z88 D
6TT88 D
SE6LS8 AD
€6SL8 D
0¥SL8  MD
$€SL8 MDD
8¥¥L8 0
6EVLE MDD
SPTILS A0
L9698 MDD
68898 D
€%L98 D
8€L98 D
9L998 D
$7998 D
TI998 D
8€598 D
6%%98 D
S6T98 2D
€L098 D
I2098 D
£56S8 D
T9LG8 10
66678 D
06€€8 D
05Z€8 D
LT6Z8 D
16528 MO
SLYZ8 .
¥0¥Z8 D
CL6TS 210
L€6T8 D
ZZ6T8 D
# >osud di
Io9jrg uny

:oN a3xodsy



4

sbedg

00°5Z¢ L1/82/%
00°G82‘% LI/82/%
LO"TEV'T L1/82/%
0€°€1 LT/82/%
TL7L98'T LT/82/%
29 92 LT/82/%
60 €9T LT/82/%
00 95T L1/82/%
¥y ¥20°T L1/82/%
T9°%89°Z1 L1/82/%
007009 LT1/8C/%
€ ec1T’€ L1/82/%
00°08< LT/8C/%
TG 9TT €T LT/8C/%
91°52 LT/8C/%
00" TLI LT/82/%
00 0%T L1/82/%
6L°5LE'T L1/82/%
86°L09 L1/82/%
88 ¥IL‘T LT/82/%
00°0¥%C L1/82/%
00 0%¢ LT/82/%
00°0€9 L1/82/%
zs'cic LTI/8C/%
65°%80°¢€ LT/8C/%
00 0€T L1/82/%
06 " T¥%T LT/82/%
6L°CTHT'T LT/82/%
6€°89L L1/82/%
00°6¥%T L1/82/%
00°082 L1/82/%
$9°16 LI/82/%
ZL 8IC'T L1/82/%
00°9ST L1/82/%
€0°28 LT/8C/%
00°GET LT/8T/¥
00°0CT L1/82/%
T0°S6T LI/82/%
00°9¢€T LI/82/%
8L ¥¥CT'VT LT/82/%
02 %8¢ LT/82/%
£0° 826 LT/82/%
00°20C LI/82/%
00 S6LTH LI/82/%
8E " 8VL'T L1/82/%
8T TIST LI/8C/%
8¢ 0Z% L1/82/%
007699 LT/82/%
00°SET LT/82/%
00°89T L1/82/%
00 0€T L1/82/%
96 "¥TT L1/82/%
65" %Y L1/82/%
00°SCZ LT/82/%
aunowuy 23rd H{O=yD
LT/0E/% - 00/00/0

666666 Uybnoayrl T

syoaUD burtpueisino

ONILNNODDY S.dHINSYHEIL
AILNNOD AHIOLS

DOSSY SHHDUYNVW AOCD TVDO1
D11 SINIAH =HNTE dINOIT
DT SINAIAE dENTH aINOIT

HAIT TYNOILVN NTODNIT

ONI LSISSVY-HAIT

NI SHDIA¥HS HNIT HDVNDNY'I
LSHAMATIN TIVINIA

T YAOVT CdTIONEA

NOSNHOL ¥ Qd¥Mdd HDANL
O ddr

OdaW NYNNITOW O SHWYL

DT HO¥NOS TLI

ONI SIHDIN LSNDNVY LOH
HLTYEH NMOLHWOH

HOIAYAS IIdE¥D LOdHd HWOH
OHDS a¥Y¥M HIINOA DI¥YOLSIH
HANHY NIFATHLIVA ‘AHIDIH
SSEANISNG VIIHIS HDIH

arT INIVW TIDVA ATddNs dH
al1 ‘IvH

H QIAYd ' L¥YVH

SHd 3 HLIWJIL NISVE LVYHED
WOL ‘AdHISNVED

AIONIVID

‘Y QIYMdE ONIAAVID

¥ dSINIQ ‘NOITIH dATINA
HHIL-DNI AHN 40 HIOLS ODVYId
dT SYDTTHIIHA

ANYAWOD TYNHLSYA

ONI SSYID LS4
ONITYHINIDNE LSHEM dIVA

0D S0dd JFANWIVA

ONI ZA71ddNs OILNY LIOITTH
NOYVHS ‘NOXIA

NOILVJI0dJd0D sdd HSIA

NNV HLEEGVZITH ‘AYd
HSYHAIWHW HIVSHTOHM ODLSO0D
SNOIILNTOS 509 OdSH OODLS0D
LYANNOA AJHLIWHD ADO0LSWOD
ONI ISHHD ALINOWWOD

AHN 40 HDIAYHS NOILDHATTIOO
dIHSYANLEYd ODTTHD

ONI HTTIHESYD

dd0D ALIVEY dYSWYL

SI¥VYd OLNY ALID TVIIAVYD
NYI¥d ‘MVHS

TYNOISSHAOEd ® SSHNISNG
STIMET ILLODS ’TIEddNd

ENND HYYVYS ‘1IANdNd

ATTEN  TTAMNMOYL

QII€ VIVHS "JITIANOH

ALIVd ‘HEESIL

SHSTA4AUILNE AddHI

DNI ‘DI¥IDETHE MDN¥EL 3 OLNY

sweN 93AoTdulg/Iopusn
wox g

#302UD WOIA

G§5:9%:01

9VLEOT
ZOT¥O0¥
COT¥O¥
LTSV 0¥
0€0TOT
9S€EV0Y
68%€0T
0PTEOY
LS0€E0T
LTECEOT
£€8570¥
E8e0¥
TS6¢€0¥
99¢%0¥
68800T
92800T
LB6TVOY
086%0%
€86C0T
8LLYOY
8TSE0Y
O0L¥%€0T
80S¥0¥
668T0T
0¥9%v0%
YI670¥
65620%
SL6E0Y
60S70¥
CTLEOY
9TZE0d
SLLOOT
LYSYO0V
S8ETOV
S06207
9C9¢0¥
L¥ZTE0T
0Z000T
066€0%
S5900T
zZ8¢0¥
89CZ¢0¥
02L66

269¢80¥%
SLY00T
¥L0S0%
£97%00T
TL9EO0Y
690507%
ZO9TI0¥
89050%
LLETOY
SO9TOT
€L000T

# uosiod

SWIL uny

00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 6671
00 66T
00 66T
00 6671
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
bes yueg
LT/60/50
2oLTadg

T€988 AD
0€988 p:te}
62988 A0
82988 D
L7988 D
9988 MD
5Z988 MD
¥Z988 D
€2988 D
zZ988 M0
12988 D
02988 D
61988 D
81988 D
LT988 D
9TS88 D
STS88 pite)
¥1988 a0
£T988 D
ZT988 D
TTOo88 AD
0T988 D
60988 D
80988 D
0988 pite)
90988 D
50988 D
%0988 D
£0988 D
z0988 D
10988 D
00988 D
66588 D
86G88 D
L6S88 D
96G88 D
$6S88 D
$6588 D
z6S88 D
T6588 O
06588 D
68588 D
88588 D
L8588 D
98588 D
§8588 D
¥8688 D
£8588 D
8588 D
T8588 D
08688 MO
6L588 D
8,588 D
L1988 pre)

# >o9ud di
- 23rJ unyg

:ON a3xodey



€

abeg

0§ LT L1/82/%
9T "TOL'6 L1/82/%
00°SL LT/8z/%
00°9TT LT/82/%
00°0G€’'2 LT/8TC/%
69°%1Z'T L1/82/%
06°6T L1/82/%
00°5LZ LT1/82/%
00°GL8 LTI/8C/%
¥0 %6 LT/82/%
00°8 LT/82/%
62 6LT LT/82/%
69° €9 L1/82/%
$6°622'1 LT/82/%
00 €L¢E LT/8C/%
00°00T L1/82/%
25769 LT/8C/%
00°002 L1/82/%
L0°02T LT/8C/%
00" 0€T L1/82/%
00°006°T L1/82/%
0% "9T9 LT/8Z/%
86°88G5’'¢ L1/8z/%
9L°T1S8'%CT LT/82/%
8€ 9¢€g LT/82/%
85°08L LT/8C/%
00°09 LT/82/%
00 %8T L1/82/%
00 0€T LT1/82/%
00°09T‘Z LT/8C/%
00° 95 LT/8C/%
9T 8TI¢ LT/8Z/%
T9°LL LT/82/)%
00°SLT L1/82/%
00°0S LI/82/%
89°08% L1/82/%
OL"€ESL'S LT/82/%
6G5°298°'% LT/82/%
00°00C'T LT/82/%
8% 92 LT/8C/%
00°0%T L1/82/%v
00°89T LT/8C/%
00°9ST LT/8Z/%
9€° VL LT/8Z/%
00°2S LT/82/%
00°29T L1/82/%
¥8°GTIZ'% Lt/82/%
¥6°99 Li/82/%
6T 602 LI/8c/%
L6 0% L1/8C/%
L9°999°T L1/82/%
LY 8%E€’C L1/8C/%
TT €9¢€‘1T L1/82/%
05°0€6°9 L1/82/%
Junowy 23ed 3o=:3Ud
LT/0€/% - 00/00/0

666666 UbnoIyul T
ONILNAODDY SuwIdHANSYHAL

syoayd burtpueisainp

vda D711 SHINLSNANI MDITS
0D ¥AMOd DIAIDYd VIIHAIS
ATIM SSANISNG AN NIHHLION
T NOILOHLOYd HIIA VIJIHAIS
SWHALSAS TOIILNOD VIJHAIS
ANVANOD TYDIWHHD VIJIHIS
NATIV NYIdd ‘AYOHS

AYd ‘YIWSHS

‘L NILSNA ‘TI3dIdS

dT NI SADIAYHAS IVdOTID DdS
ONI dHINIDILIV SAYVW INIVS
DONI 0Dddnd

ONI HYIAWIA

ONI ‘SWALSAS HNILYOdHT

NI OSNIJVYDSANYT NHINO ONIA
IdHd NOILYONdH YSWIA

DNI ‘dsSnNdzd

SHIANYD S.dHyd

(¥D) DNI 0D NUYDIOW AV
‘0 ONAYHIVY ‘AATOIND

dAMOd HSYHOUNA

0D ¥HEENY ¥ HITL TIHEDINA
INHWNASILAY ATANH DITdNd
OILYSNAJWOD ADNIDY DITdNd
NYIdd3AMOd

ONI SNOILOWO¥d HAILISO4d
DONI TOYINOD OISAHA

d OTHEODNY ‘INIdIHd

YSHIHHL ‘YIHIZNYd

DT ONILIASNOD 4 % d

IS ® SOIHAVYD HAIS HHIL NO
DTT ‘1OdHEd ¥IV¥d ALISAJ0
DT ONILIASNOD NOILJON
YdaN

(ONY) QL7 dN7T9 YAYAEN
TASNNOD HAILYISIOHT AHN
NYWNH-HITYIH 40 AIQ AHN
SANNOYD ® DUTd NIWAY AHN
ATIFGNIN ‘TYEN

HNTYA dNdL HSNOH ANNOW
NOAH VANOW ‘HIOOW

HYIOFAd ‘HdIO0W

T VHAHIVYNNY ‘HIOOW

OTT XdIVA THAOW

WIOJAINN ® SLAMOVL SHHTIINW
Y HATINAN ‘MITIINW
NOILDNJLSNOD SHTIINW

0D dYOLOW THOH TAVHOIW

NI SNOILQTIOS HDIAA0 OALHW
NOL ‘' AIVHIIDDN

YLD ALINNWWOD NIVML MIVKW
¥SIT % LIODS ‘NOSIAVK
WNASNKW NOISNVW AWMOYNW
HATTIOILANOD 0D NOAT

swey =3AoTdwyg/I0pUsA
woxd

#309UD woIq

S95:9%:01

ALNNOD AHYOLS

08%€0¥
0€9TO0T
£69¢€07
086¢C0T
T9%Z0T
S691I0T
LBTVOY
€L0S07
S86V0¥
T¥Z€0T
S6¢£00C
92¢00T

9Z0S0%
08L%0Y
6eLe0d
€LTEOQT
£98%0%
800€0T
LEGTOY
888%0%
90€€0T
8%¢00T
TZZEOT
685201
[AN RN
TZ%€0T
6€920T
S68E0Y
0€9€0¥
TS0S0¥
02ZZ€0T
92620V
£9TV0¥%
068Z0T
ZE9EQY
9C0T0T
CCLEOY
8CCZTOT
886¥%0¥%
TLP00T
6707v0¥
LSTTOV
0Z2SE0¥
6TO0S0¥
vCLYOY
9%¥ 0¥
TL7EO0Y
LS8ZO0T
880%07%
996%07¥
169707
£99¥0%
69L%0%
TSLZOT

# uosisg

swtl uny

00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
(o8} 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 661
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
00 66T
besg jueg
L1/60/S0
zcoLTag

98988 D
58988 D
8988 D
£8988 D
28988 2D
18988 D
08988 2D
6L988 D
8988 D
LL988 D
94988 D
5L988 2D
».988 D
£4988 D
2.988 D
TL988 D
0,988 D
69988 D
89988 D
L9988 D
99988 D
59988 D
79988 D
£9988 2O
29988 XD
19988 D
09988 2D
65988 2D
85988 D
L5988 D
96988 2D
55988 D
5988 D
£5988 MO
26988 MDD
15988 MO
05988 D
67988 MO
g§%¥988 2D
L¥988 XD
9%988 D
S¥988 2D
%988 D
£€¥988 MO
c¥988 D
1v988 2D
0%988 2D
8£988 2D
L€988 D
9€988 D
5€988 2D
€988 2D
£€988 2D
z2€988 D
# soeyp dg
23eJ unyg

tON 1xodsy



2€°929°C18
Z€°979'C18

00 TTT'LS
00"TTT
00°000°LS

68 166 91C
ST L8V 'TL
80 €SL¥ET
ZZ €101
00°09¢€’T
ZTZ ETO'T
2T EI0'T
00°0TV'T
£€6°9¢L

€S E€PT'T
€L°0S

TL 0T

€Y €25'8¢€S
§8°89¢
00°56¢
70" E€8L
¥0°LZE'T
00°82T% ‘T
v9°5¢c
00°260°T
0% SST
80 8ET'T
00°"¥86
06°"2LL
S§5°82¢
00°S9T
08 "%0S'¢€
00°S¥%T
¥0°S
00°0L8
¥6°68

00 ¢St
00°00%
0L°CT¥%
06789

UNoOWY
LT/0E/%
666666 Ubnoayur T

:Te30L
:Tejol uegd

:Te30L odAL

LT/ LZ/% TIINYA ‘INOYD
LT/LT/® adgod LSHEM SENOL
:7e301 =dAL

LTI/8C/% 6LLS9G56STH/IIIHT IS AHN
LT/82/% 6LLS9S6STH/IIIHE IS AIN
LT/1Z/% L 2H99 'SSHEH
LTI/TE/% LZZPH# DOSSY ¥HILHOHIA HAIA
LT/LO/% L 59D 'SSHH
LT/%2/E L Da¥YD ‘SSHEH
L1/LE/T LZZY# DOSSY ¥ALHOIA HIIdA
S1/80/% ADNYINSNI H4TIT
S1/60/0T dNANd HFAOTAWH/TVOIUHEN
si/v1/8 SZT “SNI H4IT TYINOTOD
y1/S1/8 ¥ /NOILDHATION HAdA AAIIHHS
:Te30L odAL

LT/8C/% ONI ALEIONOD dg
LT1/82/% v TYINIWNOIIANT NIHLSHM
L1/82/% DONI 0ODQEM
LT/82/% A¥HES YOINAS ALNNOD HOHSVYM
L1/82/% SHLYIDOSSY ¥ dAITYM
LT/82/% DONI ‘NVId dDIAYHS NOISIA
LT/82/% DNI S¥NOL ALID VINIDIIA
LT/8C/% DIOA
LT/82/% DNI “MD09 I ® A
LT/82/% 0D SNI HYYDOHIIVAHAHLINO
LT/8C/% IYINISNANT dONYNIA QHIINQ
L1/82/% OTI YAYAEAN A0 ALIWIOJINN
LT/8C/% HSINFQA ‘ANTAOLOIA-JAMOAHL
LT/82/% DT1 WNHTOIIHAd SYWOHL
LT/8C/% dASNOH ONIILSYOd FHL
L1/82/% SIDoAdo¥d 1004 JOI¥IANS
L1/82/% SHSTAIYALNA AYId NNS
L1/82/% dATYIAHS 0D IS
LT/8C/% IDTYLSIA TOOHDS 0D LS
LT/8C/% ONI SHDIA¥HES ALITILN 9d4S
LT/82/% S % ENIM SYEZVID NIHHINOS
L1/82/% JEINID 50¥d 3 d00dA SHLIWS
93ed o=UD sweN o24o0T7dug/IOPUsSp
- 00/00/0 woxa

#30°UD woxd

syoayp bBurpueisino

DNIINNODOY SwdddNSYHIL
AINNOD ZAHIOLS

4 abeg

SS:9%:0T

I8ETO0% 00 66T 60L88 di
G6600T 00 66T 69588 dA
0S0006 00 66T ¥855¢€ ¥4
050006 00 66T £€865¢ ¥d
Z1T 00 66T z85s¢c dd
105006 00 66T T855¢ dd
ZIT 00 66T 99G55¢ ¥d
ZTIT 00 66T €955 ¥d
T0S006 00 661 S9%SE  ¥d
£€TT006 00 66T €T0SE€ dd
LOTOO06 00 66T YLLYE dd
102006 00 66T S0L¥YE A4
ST9006 00 66T TEZvE ¥4
9ZTI¥0¥% 00 66T 80488 D
LETEOT 00 66T L0L88 D
608TOT 00 66T 90488 D
600£0T 00 66T 50L88 D
0Z820% 00 66T ¥0.88 D
TEP70¥% 00 66T €088 D
£68€0¥ 00 66T z0L88 D
£86€0% 00 66T T0L88 D
8Z8%0% 00 66T 00L88 D
9.0S0% 00 66T 66988 D
Z90%0% 00 66T 86988 D
796201 00 66T L6988 MD
LZ9E0¥ 00 66T 96988 D
SP8T0¥ 00 66T 56988 D
98L¥0% 00 66T 76988 D
SLO9Y0¥ 00 66T €6988 D
Z68€0¥ 00 66T z6988 D
T%%20T 00 661 16988 D
LTILTIOT 00 66T 06988 D
859101 00 66T 68988 MD
S6T¥0¥ 00 661 88988 D
¥8€C0¥ 00 66T L8988 D

# uocsiI=d Umm ued # HOo=2UD Q.H_

: WL und (LI/60/S0 : @3 unyd

Z9LTad :oN 3xodayg



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 16, 2017 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ X | Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ]

J—

. Title: Approval of the Intrastate Interlocal Contract between DMV and the Storey County Assessor, the
contract term effective upon approval to June 30, 2019.

2. Recommended motion: Approve
3. Prepared by:
Department: Telephone:
4. Staff summary: The current Intrastate Interlocal Contract between the State of Nevada/Department of
Motor Vehicles and the Storey County Assessor for providing DMV services expires June 30, 2017. In

order to avoid an interruption of DMV services provided by the Storey County Assessor’s Office, the
new contract must be approved and signed before the expiration of the current contract.

5. Supporting materials: Amendment to and original contract attached.

6. Fiscal impact: Unknown

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Ref wed by:
- S~ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
——) County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[ Approved

] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied

Continued

A
—_

Agenda Item No. 7-I%



INTRASTATE INTERLOCAL CONTRACT BETWEEN PUBLIC AGENCIES

A Contract Between the State of Nevada
Acting By and Through Its
Department of Motor Vehicles
(“Department™)

555 Wright Way
Carson City, NV 89711
and
Storey County Assessor
(“County”)

P.O. Box 494
Virginia City, NV 89440
(775) 847-0961 / (775) 847-0904

WHEREAS, NRS 277.180 authorizes any one or more public agencies to contract with any one or more other
public agencies to perform any governmental service, activity or undertaking which any of the public agencies
entering into the contract is authorized by law to perform; and

WHEREAS, it is deemed that the services hereinafter set forth are both necessary and in the best interests of the
State of Nevada;

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the aforesaid premises, the parties mutually agree as follows:

1. REQUIRED APPROVAL. This Contract shall not become effective until and unless approved by appropriate
official action of the governing body of each party.

2. DEFINITIONS. “State” means the State of Nevada and any state agency identified herein, its officers,
employees and immune contractors as defined in NRS 41.0307. -

3. CONTRACT TERM. This Contract shall be effective upon approval to June 30, 2019, unless sooner terminated
by either party as set forth in this Contract.

4. TERMINATION. This Contract may be terminated by either party prior to the date set forth in paragraph (3),
provided that a termination shall not be effective until 30 days after a party has served written notice upon the other
party. This Contract may be terminated by mutual consent of both parties or unilaterally by either party without
cause. The parties expressly agree that this Contract shall be terminated immediately if for any reason State and/or
federal funding ability to satisfy this Contract is withdrawn, limited, or impaired.

5. NOTICE. All notices or other communications required or periitted to be given under this Contract shall be in
writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally in hand, by telephonic facsimile with
simultaneous regular mail, or mailed certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid on the date posted, and
addressed to the other party at the address set forth above.

6. INCORPORATED DOCUMENTS. The parties agree that the services to be performed shall be specifically
described; this Contract incorporates the following attachments in descending order of constructive precedence:

ATTACHMENT AA: SCOPE OF WORK

Page 10f5 Rev. 12/2015



7. CONSIDERATION. The County agrees to provide the services set forth in paragraph (6) at a cost of two dollars
($2.00) per registration transaction with the total Contract or installments payable not to exceed fifty thousand
doltars and no/100 ($50,000.00) per fiscal year, with the total not to exceed one hundred thousand dollars and
no/100 ($100,000.00). In addition NRS 482.180 (6) states in pertinent part: “From the amount of governmental
service tax collected by a County Assessor the State Controller shall credit 1 percent to the Department as a
commission and remit 5 percent to the County for credit to its general fund as commission for the services of the
County Assessor.” Any intervening end to an annual or biennial appropriation period shall be deemed an automatic
renewal (not changing the overall Contract term) or a termination as the results of legislative appropriation may
require.

8. ASSENT. The parties agree that the terms and conditions listed on incorporated attachments of this Contract are
also specifically a part of this Contract and are limited only by their respective order of precedence and any
limitations expressly provided.

9. INSPECTION & AUDIT.
a. Books and Records. Each party agrees to keep and maintain under general accepted accounting principles full,
true and complete records, agreements, books, and documents as are necessary to fully disclose to the other party,
the State or United States Govemment, or their authorized representatives, upon audits or reviews, sufficient
information to determine compliance with any applicable regulations and statutes.
b. Inspection & Audit. Each party agrees that the relevant books, records (written, electronic, computer related or
otherwise), including but not limited to relevant accounting procedures and practices of the party, financial
statements and supporting documentation, and documentation related to the work product shall be subject, at any
reasonable time, to inspection, examination, review, audit, and copying at any office or location where such
records may be found, with or without notice by the other party, the State Auditor, Employment Security, the
Department of Administration, Budget Division, the Nevada State Attorney General's Oftfice or its Fraud Control
Units, the State Legislative Auditor, and with regard to any federal funding, the relevant federal agency, the
Comptroller General, the General Accounting Office, the Office of the Inspector General, or any of their
authorized representatives.
c¢. Period of Retention. All books, records, reports, and statements relevant to this Contract must be retained by
each party for a minimum of three years and for five years if any federal funds are used in this Contract. The
retention period runs from the date of termination of this Contract. Retention time shall be extended when an audit
is scheduled or in progress for a period reasonably necessary to complete an audit and/or to complete any
administrative and judicial litigation which may ensue.

10. BREACH:; REMEDIES. Failure of either party to perform any obligation of this Contract shall be deemed a
breach. Except as otherwise provided for by law or this Contract, the rights and remedies of the parties shall not be
exclusive and are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law or equity, including but not limited to
actual damages, and to a prevailing party reasonable attoreys' fees and costs.

11. LIMITED LIABILITY. The parties will not waive and intend to assert available NRS chapter 41 liability
limitations in all cases. Contract liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive damages. To the extent
applicable, actual contract damages for any breach shall be limited by NRS 353.260 and NRS 354.626.

12. FORCE MAJEURE. Neither party shall be deemed to be in violation of this Contract if it is prevented from
performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public transportation, civil or military authority,
act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts of God, including, without limitation, earthquakes, floods,
winds, or storms. In such an event the intervening cause must not be through the fault of the party asserting such an
excuse, and the excused party is obligated to promptly perform in accordance with the terms of the Contract after the
intervening cause ceases.

13. INDEMNIFICATION. Neither party waives any right or defense to indemnification that may exist in law or
equity.

Page 2 of 5 Rev. 12/2015



14. INDEPENDENT PUBLIC AGENCIES. The parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and to
the extent set forth in this Contract, and in respect to performance of services pursuant to this Contract, each party is
and shall be a public agency separate and distinct from the other party and, subject only to the terms of this Contract,
shall have the sole right to supervise, manage, operate, control, and direct performance of the details incident to its
duties under this Contract. Nothing contained in this Contract shall be deemed or construed to create a partnership
or joint venture, to create relationships of an employer-employee or principal-agent, or to otherwise create any
liability for one agency whatsoever with respect to the indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of the other agency
or any other party.

15. WAIVER OF BREACH. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of the
Contract or its material or nonmaterial terms by either party shall not operate as a waiver by such party of any of its
rights or remedies as to any other breach.

16. SEVERABILITY. If any provision contained in this Contract is held to be unenforceable by a court of law or
equity, this Contract shall be construed as if such provision did not exist and the nonenforceability of such provision
shall not be held to render any other provision or provisions of this Contract unenforceable.

17. ASSIGNMENT. Neither party shall assign, transfer or delegate any rights, obligations or duties under this
Contract without the prior written consent of the other party.

18. OWNERSHIP OF PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. Unless otherwise provided by law or this Contract, any
reports, histories, studies, tests, manuals, instructions, photographs, negatives, blue prints, plans, maps, data, system
designs, computer code (which is intended to be consideration under this Contract), or any other documents or
drawings, prepared or in the course of preparation by either party in performance of its obligations under this
Contract shall be the joint property of both parties.

19. PUBLIC RECORDS. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents may be open to public inspection
and copying. The parties will have the duty to disclose unless a particular record is made confidential by law or a
common law balancing of interests.

20. CONFIDENTIALITY. Each party shall keep confidential all information, in whatever form, produced,
prepared, observed or received by that party to the extent that such information is confidential by law or otherwise
required by this Contract. To the extent the Contractor observes, receives or possesses “personal information”
from the files and records of the Department of Motor Vehicles, the Contractor shall keep this information
confidential and shall not disclose or use this information except as permitted by law. It is unlawful to
knowingly obtain or disclose any “personal information” from the files and records of the Department of Motor
Vehicles for a use not permitted by NRS 481.063. There are criminal and civil penalties attached to the unlawful
use and/or disclosure of this information. “Personal information” is information that reveals the identity of a
person, including, without limitation, a photograph, social security number, individual taxpayer identification
number, driver’s license number, identification card number, name, address, telephone number or information
regarding a medical condition or disability. Each party shall keep confidential all information, in whatever form,
produced, prepared, observed or received by that party to the extent that such information is confidential by law or
otherwise required by this Contract.

21. PROPER AUTHORITY. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this Contract on
behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this Contract and that the parties are authorized by law
to perform the services set forth in paragraph (6).

22. GOVERNING LAW: JURISDICTION. This Contract and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall
be governed by, and construed according to, the laws of the State of Nevada. The parties consent to the jurisdiction
of the Nevada district courts for enforcement of this Contract.

Page 3of 5 Rev. 12/2015



23. ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND MODIFICATION. This Contract and its integrated attachment(s) constitute the
entire agreement of the parties and such are intended as a complete and exclusive statement of the promises,
representations, negotiations, discussions, and other agreements that may have been made in connection with the
subject matter hereof. Unless an integrated attachment to this Contract specifically displays a mutual intent to
amend a particular part of this Contract, general conflicts in language between any such attachment and this Contract
shall be construed consistent with the terms of this Contract. Unless otherwise expressly authorized by the terms of
this Contract, no modification or amendment to this Contract shall be binding upon the parties unless the same is in
writing and signed by the respective parties hereto, approved by the State of Nevada Office of the Attorney General.

This space is intentionally blank.

Page 4 of &§ Rev. 12/2015



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Contract to be signed and intend to be legally
bound thereby.

STATE OF NEVADA
DEPARTMENT OF MOTOR VEHICLES

By:
Date

Title:

STOREY COUNTY AS§,E,SSOI>Z

By: ‘ //’\ 5/ 5 / / 7
Date

Title: (= e4

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS,
STOREY COUNTY

By:

Date

Title:

APPROVED BY BOARD OF EXAMINERS

Signature — Nevada State Board of Examiners

Date

Approved as to form by:

On
Deputy Attomey General for Attorney General, State of Nevada Date

Page 5of 5 Rev. 12/2015



ATTACHMENT AA

SCOPE OF WORK

PROVIDED SERVICES. The County Assessor, County Recorder, or County Clerk
hereinafter referred to as “County” agree to provide all services relating to the
registration and titling of motor vehicles, with the exception of vehicle appraisals, for
the Department of Motor Vehicles hereinafter referred to as “Department”. This
includes but is not limited to the registration and titling of motor vehicles, offering of
all Department issued license plates, personalized license plate ordering, vehicle
movement permits, insurance verification, and vehicle identification inspections,
pursuant to NRS 482.160.

. PUBLIC FACILITY. The County will provide a suitable facility and suitable hours
of operation in the County Seat or such other locations within the County as deemed
necessary to carry out registration functions.

. TRAINING. The Department will provide such technical training in Reno and/or Las
Vegas, Nevada and administrative support as needed. The travel expense for the
County staff to travel to Reno or Las Vegas for training will be the sole responsibility
of the County.

EQUIPMENT & SUPPLIES. The Department will provide all forms, decals,
computer hardware, computer software, and printers necessary to conduct Department
transaction processing. This will include all scheduled maintenance and replacement.
At the discretion of the Department on a limited basis; copy paper, staples, and
customer pens may be supplied. All supplies must be ordered through the Reno office
manager or designated representative.

. METHOD OF PAYMENT. The County shall agree to accept all forms of payment
types accepted by the Department, as applicable. Such forms include but are not
limited to cash, check, credit card, debit card, etc.

DMV POLICIES AND PROCEDURES. The Department will provide the County
with shared global drive access to ensure that all standardized procedures are followed.
Notice of amendments and updates will be issued as necessary. It is the responsibility
of the County to ensure their respective staff receives notification of the policies,
procedures, and updates in a timely manner, as they are held accountable for following
said policies and procedures in the manner proscribed.

CHANGE FUND AND OPERATING BANKS. The County is responsible for
providing an adequate change fund, of not less than $100.00 and have at least one
operating fund of not less than $30.00 available for each staff member performing
Department services. More information regarding the change fund and operating banks
is located on the DMV shared global drive under Procedures and Programs-
Administrative Services-Chapter ASD J-17.

Page 1 of 3



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

ATTACHMENT AA

SEPARATION AND SECURITY OF FUNDS. The County is responsible for the
security of all state funds. State funds must be kept separate from any other funds and
deposited to an established state account, as per contract. If possible, state funds should
be deposited daily. When this is not possible, all monies and negotiable instruments
must be secured in a safe, vault or other safekeeping device intended for cash or
valuable documents. State funds are not to be exchanged for personal checks, or other
negotiable instruments. State funds are to remain secure at all times during daily
operations.

DAILY RECONCILLIATION OF FUNDS. State funds are to be reconciled daily.
The County is required to notify the Department immediately in writing, via facsimile
or e-mail, of any shortages, overages, missing or unexplained accounting errors.

DECALS. The County is responsible for the security of new and used decal ribbons.
Used printer ribbons should be kept in a secured location awaiting pickup from ITL. All
decal reprints should be logged, and a monthly copy e-mailed to the Reno office
manager or designee. More information on decal accountability is located on the DMV
shared global drive under Procedures and Programs Chapter VP-B35.05 and ASD M-
1.01 Decal Accountability.

RECORD RETENTION. The County is required to adhere to all Department policies
and procedures regarding retention of records located on the DMV shared global drive
under Policies DMV-New-Chapter 2 Management Practices DMV 2.41.1.

NOTIFICATION OF CHANGE IN STAFFING. The County is required to notify the
Department immediately of any staffing changes relating to Department processing
authorization. This notification must be in writing, via facsimile or e-mail, and contain
the user/id of the staff, as well as the date of separation.

E-MAIL NOTIFICATION AND USAGE. The Department readily utilizes e-mail as a
means of formal notification to all staff, including the County. The Department
provides such access to all County locations, and the e-mail account should be checked
no less than once daily for every standard operating day. The e-mail is to be utilized
strictly for Department business, and violations can result in the revocation of said
access.

DMV APPLICATION ACCESS AND AUTHORIZATION. The County is issued an
individual DMV network and application identification for each approved Department
processing staff member. These individual identification accounts are not to be shared
by staff for any reason. Such sharing can result in the revocation of said accounts
immediately upon knowledge of said sharing. At no time is any screen shot of DMV
information to be released to a customer.

SITE INSPECTION. The County shall afford the Department immediate and

unscheduled access to all records, supplies, equipment, and funds which are deemed

property of the Department, during normal operating hours. The County shall have at

least one Department processing approved staff available during said inspections.
Page 2 of 3




16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

ATTACHMENT AA

The Department maintains personal identifying information of a sensitive nature as
stated in NRS 481.063. The Department staff are required to pass a security check
for purposes of fulfilling their duties. Therefore all county personnel authorized to
access and use the same information must pass the same security check. Any other
use or access by someone not having passed the authorized security check is strictly
prohibited.

The County agrees to implement policies and procedures to protect all information
obtained through the Department from unauthorized access. County agrees to limit the
use of all information obtained through the Department to the authorized use for which
it was intended and to securely destroy the information when it is no longer needed.
County agrees that it will not disclose any data to a third party unless provided for by
statute and necessary to carry out a County function required of County by law.

Misuse of any information obtained via the Department may be grounds for the
imposition of sanctions including, but not limited to, discontinuance of service through
the Department upon confirmation of misuse.

County shall ensure that a thorough background screening of County personnel is
conducted prior to initial employment or assignment for all personnel having
access to information from the Department. The background/security check should
at a minimum include a check of the Nevada Records of Criminal History and a
National Federal Bureau of Investigation fingerprint based criminal history record
check. The County shall be responsible for maintaining these records, which must
be available for Department audit. Records must be maintained from one
Department audit until the next Department audit. If the applicant is found to have
any felony conviction within the last five (5) years or any felony or gross
misdemeanor conviction of a financial nature contained in NRS Chapter 205
within the last five (5) years, the applicant shall not be considered for employment
in a position that has any dealing with the contract between the Department and
the County. Any felony conviction for non-financial offenses within seven (7)
years of hire or any felony conviction within ten (10) or more years of hire shall be
evaluated and weighed by the County based upon the age of the conviction and on
behavior relative to arrests and convictions.

Background checks are the responsibility of those county offices or individuals
involved and do not guarantee access to Department information.

Disclaimer: While all attempts are made to provide accurate, current and reliable
information we recognize the possibility of human and/or mechanical error.
Therefore, the Department, its employees, officers and divisions expressly deny any
warranty of the accuracy; reliability or timeliness of any information provided by
this system and shall not be held liable for any losses caused by reliance upon the
accuracy, reliability or timeliness of such information. Any person who relies upon
such information obtained from this system does so at their own risk.

Page 3 of 3



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5-16-17 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ]| Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License First Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) [ move to
approve all first readings (if removed from consent agenda by request).

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966
4. Staff summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally

approved on the consent agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioners’ meeting for approval.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund; Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
x  Departm¢

Department Name:

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [ ] Continued

Agenda Item N0.7— __LY



Storey County Community Bevelopment

Busginess ) Licenging
P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 « Fax (775) 847-0935 + buslic@storeycounty.org
To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office May 8,2017
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Stacey Bucchianeri
Please add the following item(s) to the May 16,2017, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

ALL THINGS ELECTRIC - Contractor / 4632 Sommerville Way ~ Reno (Contractor)
TUFF WRAP INSTALLATIONS, INC. — Contractor / 2080 Detwiler Road ~ Harleysville, PA (Contractor)
SUPREME CONCRETE, LLC - Contractor / 5295 Coggins Road ~ Reno (Contractor)
SOUTH ATLANTIC CONTROLS, INC. — Contractor / 10226 Governor Blvd ~ Williamsport, MD (Cont.)
ROCKWELL AUTOMATION - Contractor / 3000 Executive Pkwy ~ San Ramon, CA (Professional)
PRO-BEAM USA, INC. — Contractor / 3909 75" Strect ~ Aurora, IL (Contractor)
HAS CONSULTING, LLC — Professional / 3450 Madison Road ~ Cincinnati, OH (Software Developer)
ROSENBERGER HFT GMBH & CO KG - Contractor / PO Box 1260 Tittmoning, Germany (Contractor)
LJS SOLUTIONS — Contractor / PO Box 969 ~ Sumter, SC (Contractor)
CC CLEANING SERVICE, LLC — General / 9115 Hummer Drive ~ Reno (General)
MEMORY LANE JEWELRY - Home Business / 340 Cartwright Rd ~ Reno (online sales)
PALETTI USA, LLC — Contractor / 145 Keystone Drive ~ Montgomeryville, PA (Contractor)
. BAYSIDE INTERIORS, INC. — Contractor / 3220 Darby Common ~ Fremont, CA (Contractor)
JAPAN SYSTEMS CO., LTD — Professional / 1-5-17 Dojima, Kita-ku, Osaka JAPAN (Professional)
HERO CO., LTD — Professional / 6-6-6 Nishinakajima Yodogawa-ku, Osaka JAPAN (Professional)
PROMTEC INDUSTRIEMONTAGE GMBH - Contractor / Benzstrasse 2, GERMANY (installer)
GO GREEN CONSTRUCTION, INC. — Contractor / PO Box 956 ~ Crystal Bay, NV (roofing contractor)
TK SYSTEMS, INC. — Contractor / 6949 Buckeye Street ~ Chino, CA (Contractor-pallet racking)
BBS AUTOMATION PENANG SDN.BHD — Contractor / Plot 313 Pulau Pinang, Malaysia (Contractor)
STERICYCLE ENVIRONMENTAL SOLUTIONS, INC. — General / 28161 N Keith ~ Lake Forest, [L (labor)
CENTIMARK CORPORATION - Contractor / 5380 South Watt ~ Sacramento (roofing contractor)
BRIDGE CRANE SPECIALISTS, LLC — Contractor / PO Box 940 ~ Kiefer, OK (Contractor)
. PLAN B CONSULTANCY, INC. — Professional / 696 McVey Avenue ~ Lake Oswego, OR (consultant)
AUTOMATION NTH, LLC — Professional / 491 Waldron ~ Lavergne, TN (Engineer)
EATON CORPORATION - Professional / 1000 Moon Township, PA (Engineer)
AMADOR STATELINES, INC. — Transportation / 1331 C Street ~ Sacramento, CA (bus transportation)
ATS ASSEMBLY AND TEST, INC. — Contractor / One ATS Drive ~ Nixom, MI (Contractor)
KYZEN CORPORATION - Contractor / 430 Harding Industries ~ Nashville, TN (Contractor)
MEI RIGGING & CRATING, LLC - Contractor / 3838 Western Way NE ~ Albany, OR (Contractor)
INNOVATIVE MANAGEMENT SOLUTIONS, INC. — Professional / 825 Watters Creek ~ Allen, TX (prof)

=
B NN E<CNNEOTNOZI N RN TIOREEAR R

=X
SHe

ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Assessor’s Office Fire Department Commissioners’ Office
Tourism Office Comptroller’s Office Dispatch



Storey County Board of County Commaissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date:

| Estimate of Time Required: 0 -5

Agenda: Consent [X] ] Regular agenda [] | Public hearing required []

1. Title: Discussion and direction to staff regarding legislation or legislative issues
proposed by legislators or by other entities permitted by the Nevada State Legislature to
submit bill draft requests, or such legislative issues as may be deemed by the Chairman or
the Board to be of critical significance to Storey County. Specific bills will include SB
57 which staff has expressed full support and bills SB176, SB244, SB314, AB289,
SB271, AB290, SB356, SB469 AND AB384.

2. Recommended motion: None

3. Prepared by: VANESSA

Department: CommissionersTelephone: 847-1111

4. Staff Summary: None

S. Supporting Materials: See attached

6. Fiscal Impact: 0

7. Legal review required: No

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Commissioners

County Manager Other Agency Review:

9. Board Action:

[ ] Approved

[ ] Denied

[ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Continued




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 16, 2017 Estimate of time required: 10 min.

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Authorize the County Manager to execute contract(s) as needed with Jba Consultlng
Engineers to provide engineering, general consulting and 3™ party review services in an
amount not to exceed $50,000.00.

2. Recommended motion: [ move to approve and authorize the County Manager to execute
contract(s) with jba C onsulting Engineers to provide engincering, general consulting and
3" party review services in an amount not to exceed $50,000.00.

3. Prepared by: Pat Whitten
Department: Commissioner’s Office Telephone: 847-0968

4. Staff summary: In most cases, proposed industrial projects within the County fall well within
the expertlse and certifications of our internal team. However, on occasion we experience
projects which have more complex processes that, in the interests of public safety and
responsible governance dictate that we need to engage outside experts to assist and guide
us. We are currently working with a small number of proposed projects where such
expertise may substantially help staff make informed recommendations to the Planning
Commission and/or the County Commission. (see below for continued comments)

5. Supporting materials: Draft Contract and Non-Disclosure Agreement

6. Fiscal impact: Yes up to $50,000. See staff summary comments regarding reimbursement
possibilities.

Funds Available: Yes if necessary  Fund: TBD _ Comptroller
7. Legal review required: Yes
__ District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
___ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
< :;U‘L_-/G)unty Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved

[ Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [

Continued

— —

Agenda Item No.



Staff summary (continued): In this specific request for professional services, jba Consulting
would provide expertise and consultation in the areas of:

e Fire Protection Engineering

e Industrial Hygienist

e Chemical Engineering
jba Consulting is the company staff is recommending after evaluating 3 RFQ’s (Request for
Qualifications) Wthh were submitted. Based on initial utilization results, we may also choose to
engage them as a 3" party service during peak overload periods. It is 1mportant to note that while
we have structured contract costs to not exceed $50,000, staff is currently in discussions with one
potential applicant regarding a provision in International Fire Code (IFC [A] 104.7.2) which
requires the owners (project proponents) to provide a technical opinion and report prepared by a
qualified specialty organization that is acceptable to the fire code official. It is staff’s intent that the
contract will only be executed conditioned upon written confirmation acknowledging that the
applicants agree to reimburse our costs.




APRIL 13, 2017

STOREY COUNTY - GENERAL CONSULTING & 3RD PARTY REVIEW
P17.0252.000

Prepared for:

STOREY COUNTY

Pat Whitten, County Manager
26.S.BSt.

PO Box 176

Virginia City, NV 89440
775.847.0968

WORLDWIDE TRUSTED ADVISORS™

JBACE.COM

an N V 5 company




an N V 5 company

April 11, 2017
Storey County
26.S.BSt.
PO Box 176
Virginia City, NV 89440
Attention: Mr. Pat Whitten, County Manager
Subject: Storey County - General Consulting & 3rd Party Review
Fire Protection Engineering Services
JBA Proposal No. P17.0252.000
Mr. Whitten:
We are pleased to provide the following proposal for engineering and consulting services for the Storey County - General
Consulting & 3rd Party Review project. In accordance with our conversation on April 11, 2017, this proposal is intended to

cover not only the new development adjacent to the Tahoe Reno Industrial Park (TRI), but also for as needed consulting on
other projects within the district.

Project Scape
Our understanding of the project scope is as follows:

Proposed Scope of Engineering and Consulting Services

Following is a summary of our proposed fire/life safety engineering services:

Fire Protection Services

1. Perform a one day site visit to the site to gain an understanding of the building and surrounding area, as well as to
determine the location and amounts of hazardous materials within the building.

2. Review documents regarding the hazardous materials proposed to be stored and used on the facility. This includes any
Material Safety Data Sheets (MSDS) and drawings of the facility.

3. Classify hazardous materials in accordance with the 2012 International Fire Code. Based on information provided, we
have budgeted for approximately 25 material classifications.

4, Review applicable Building and Fire Codes for determination of code requirements for storage and use of the
hazardous materials.

Industrial Hygienist Services

1. Perform a one day site visit to the site to gain an understanding of the building and surrounding area, as well as to
determine the location and amounts of hazardous materials within the building.

2, Plum madeling for chemical release.

3. Chemical compatibility assessment.

JBA Proposal No. P17.0252.000
Page 2 of 11



an N V 5 company

4. Emergency response actions and drill support.
Excluded Services

The following are not a part of our scope of services:

1. Alternate Methods of Construction.
2. Preparation of Master Egress Plans.
3. Printing of bid and building department submittal documents. Qur services do not include printing of review

documents for coordination between disciplines.

4. Plotting of architectural drawings from electronic media. We will require full size drawings (prints or reproducibles)
from each discipline throughout the design phase for use in the design process. We require an electronic background
of the project in AutoCAD format in addition to an electronic set of drawings in PDF format.

5. Travel outside of Las Vegas will be considered as a direct reimbursable expense with no mark-up.

6. Our services do not include full time on-site representation.

SUMMARY OF PROPOSED FEES

The Time and Materials fee for services is estimated as follows:

$ 50,000.00

Consulting and Engineering Services

TOTAL (USD) $ 50,000.00

Please note that these fees are based upon providing the engineering services noted and having the necessary design
information available for completing documents. Should we approach the above estimated fee, we will request a budget
modification to complete the assessment. Fees do not account for multiple submissions based upon redesign during permit
review or construction, nor do they include unforeseen existing conditions which result in redesign or reconfiguration of the
original design concept. Please refer to the Standard Terms and Conditions.

This proposal is valid for 30 days. Fees accepted after this time are subject to review and/or adjustment. If the project does
not start within 60 days from authorization, the proposal is subject to review and/or adjustment. In the event that the project
is delayed after commencement of services, and the project is reinstated, JBA reserves the right to secure remobilization fees
as necessary due to an extension of the project schedule.

1BA Proposal No. P17.0252.000
Page 3 of 11



an N V 5 company

If all is in order please indicate your approval in the space provided below.

The terms and conditions within this proposal will remain in effect until an executed contract has been mutually negotiated
between IBA and the Client. Payment for work will not be withheld due to the lack of an executed contract.

Should there be any questions regarding the above, or if additional clarification regarding our anticipated scope of services and
associated fee is desired, please do not hesitate to call.

Regards,

jba consulting engineers, an NV5 company

7"{ ALK

Nicholas A Moriarty, PE
Executive Director of Fire Protection

Accepted by:

Pat Whitten Date
Storey County

Attachments: 2017 Hourly Rate Schedule
Standard Terms and Conditions

NAM\Imf
J:\17.0252\Contract-Fees\Proposal\2017-04-13 P17 0252 000 Storey Caunty - General Consulting & 3rd Party Review_nam.docx

JBA Proposal No. P17.0252.000
Page 4 of 11



an N v 5 company

2017 HOURLY RATE SCHEDULE

For Acoustical, Audiovisual, Electrical, Fire Protection, Mechanical, Plumbing, Security and Surveillance, and
Telecommunication consulting engineering services.

Effective January 1, 2017

Sr. Principals $300.00
Principals/Director $250.00
Associate Director/Sr. Manager $200.00
Sr. Engineer/Manager $175.00
Senior Project Manager/Sr. Consultant $160.00
Project Manager / Engineer/Consultant $130.00
Sr. Designer/Sr. Engineer Assistant $100.00
Designers / Engineer Assistant $ 90.00
Sr. Drafter / CADD Operator S 85.00
Drafter/CADD Operator $ 65.00
Administrative S 65.00

** The above rates are applicable to the 2017 calendar year. Rates may be adjusted for escalation beyond 2017.

JBA Proposal No. P17.0252.000
Page 5 of 11



an N V 5 company

STANDARD TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. JBA Consulting Engineers (hereinafter “Consultant”) will provide services for this Part of the Project as defined in the
attached proposal. Consultant shall not have any duties or responsibilities for any other part of the Project. The
attached proposal and these terms and conditions together shall be referred to as the “Agreement.” Acceptance of
Consultant’s services as outlined under this Agreement, coupled with payment by Client therefore, shall constitute the
Client’s acceptance of these Standard Terms and Conditions.

2. Consultant shall not be responsible for the acts or omissions of the Client, Client’'s other consuitants, Contractor,
subcontractors, their agents or employees, or other persons performing any other portion of the Project.

3. Consultant shall recommend to Client that appropriate investigations, surveys, tests, analyses and reports be obtained
as necessary for the proper execution of the Consultant’s services.

4, Additional Services of the Consultant, not specifically included as part of the Scope of Services defined in the attached
proposal, and compensation for requested Additional Services, shall be mutually agreed upon in writing by the Client
and Consultant prior to commencement of such Additional Services. If any of the following circumstances affect
Consultant’s services, Consultant shall be entitled to an appropriate adjustment in Consultant’s schedule and
compensation:

a, Investigation of existing conditions or facilities and provision of field verification of existing components
related to the Project to be used in the preparation of measured drawings; verification of the accuracy of
existing drawings furnished by Client; and detailed quantity surveys.

b. Services relative to future facilities, systems and equipment; planning surveys, site evaluations or comparative
studies of prospective sites.

C Making revision in drawings, specifications or other documents when such revisions are:

1) Inconsistent with approvals or instructions previously given by the Client, including revisions made
necessary by adjustments in the Client’s program, budget or schedule.

2) Required by the enactment, interpretation or revisions of codes, laws or regulations subsequent to
the preparation of such documents.

3) Due to changes required as a result of the Client’s failure to render decisions in a timely manner.

4) Required due to changes in the Project, including but not limited to, construction budget, size,
quality, complexity, schedule, or the method of bidding or negotiating and contracting for
construction.

5) Required to prepare drawings, specifications and other documentation for value engineering
recommendations or providing other services in connection with Change Orders and Construction
Change Directives.

6) Required to provide services in connection with evaluating substitutions and making subsequent
revisions to Instruments of Service and other documentation therefrom.

1BA Proposal No. P17,0252.000
Page 6 of 11



an N V 5 campany

7) Required to provide consultation concerning replacement of Work damaged by fire or other cause
during construction, and furnishing services required in connection with the replacement of such
Work.

8) Required to provide services made necessary by the default or termination of the Contractor, by
defects or deficiencies in the Wark of the Contractor, or by the failure of performance of the Client,
Contractor or others performing services on the Project.

9) Required to provide services in connection with claims submitted by the Contractor or others.

10) Required to provide services in connection with an arbitration proceeding or legal proceeding.

11) Required to provide documents for alternate, fast track, separate or sequential bids and permits or
providing services in connection with bidding, negotiation or construction prior to the completion of
the Construction Documents Phase.

12) Due to a change in the Client’s authorized representative.

13) Contract Administration Service provided 60 days after the date of Substantial Completion.

d. Preparing a set of reproducible record drawings showing significant changes in the Work made during

construction based on marked-up prints, drawings and Owner data furnished by the Contractor or Client. The
following disclaimer will be placed on each sheet of such record drawings and on the cover page of any
corrected specifications: “These record documents (or corrected specifications) have been prepared based
on information submitted in part by others. Although this information is believed to be reliable, neither the
Client nor the Consultant is responsible for their accuracy, nor for errors or omissions that may have been
incorporated into these documents as a result.”

Consultant shall perform services in a manner consistent with the level of care and skill ordinarily exercised by
members of Consultant’s profession currently practicing in the same locality under similar conditions standard of care.

Consistent with the Consultant’s standard of care, the Consultant’s services shall respond to applicable laws, rules,
codes, regulations and orders of applicable governmental or public authority having jurisdiction over the Project in
force at time of issuance of the Construction Documents for building permit. Furthermore, Client and Consultant are
aware that many factors outside Consultant’s control may affect Consultant’s ability to complete the services to be
provided under this Agreement. Consultant will perform these services with reasonable diligence and expediency
consistent with sound professional practices.

Irrespective of any other provision in any Agreement, nothing contained herein shall be construed:

a. to constitute a guarantee, warranty or assurance, either express or implied, that the Consultant’s services will
yield or accomplish a perfect outcome for the Project; or

b. to obligate the Consultant to exercise professional skill or judgment greater than that which can reasonably
be expected from other consultants under similar conditions; or

(o as an assumption by the Consultant of the liability of any other party.

JBA Proposal No. P17.0252.000
Page 7 of 11



10.

11.

12.

an N V 5 company

On the Consultant’s request, if reasonably necessary for the performance of Consultant’s services, the Client shall
furnish services of other consultants, information, surveys and reports required by law or the Construction Documents.
The services, information, surveys, and reports requested shall be furnished at no expense to the Consultant and
Consultant shall be entitled to rely upon the accuracy and completeness thereof.

Indemnifications — Consultant and Client agree to indemnify, and hold each other and their officers, employees and
consultants harmless from and against all claims, liabilities, suits, demands, losses, costs and expenses, accruing or
resulting to any and all persons, firms, or any other legal entities, on account of any damages or losses to property or
persons, including injuries or death, or ecanamic losses, caused by the other party’s negligent acts, errors or omissions,
but only to the extent that such party or its officers, employees or consultants are found to be legally liable as
determined by a court or forum of competent jurisdiction. Neither party shall have any duty to defend the other but
shall reimburse reasonably incurred defense fees and costs to the extent of its indemnity obligation herein.

Hazardous Materials - Client hereby acknowledges that Consultant has no experience in and is not being retained for
the purposes of discovery, presence, handling, removal or disposal of, or exposure of persons to any hazardous
materials in any form at the Project site, including but not limited to, asbhestos, asbestos related materials or products,
polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB’s) or other hazardous substances as defined by the Environmental Protection Agency
or any other public authority.

Instruments of Service

a. Drawings, specifications, and other documents, including those in electronic form, prepared by Consultant
are Instruments of Service for use solely with respect to this Project. Consultant shall be deemed the author
and owner of the Consultant’s Instruments of Service and shall retain all common law, statutory and other
reserved rights, including copyrights.

b. Upon execution of this Agreement Consultant grants to Client a nonexclusive license to reproduce the
Consultant’s Instruments of Service for purposes of designing, administering, using and maintaining the
Project, providing the Client shall comply with ali obligations, including prompt payment of all sums when
due, under this Agreement. Such license shall permit the Client to include the Consultant’s Instruments of
Service in a similar nonexclusive license to an Owner in a Prime Agreement, authorizing an Owner or an
Owner's contractors or consultants to reproduce applicable portions of the Consultant’s Instruments of
Service solely for the purposes of constructing, using and maintaining this Project. Any termination of this
Agreement prior to completion of the Project shall terminate this license.

C. Except for the license granted above, no other license or right shall be deemed granted or implied. Client
shall not assign, delegate, sublicense, pledge or otherwise transfer any license granted herein to another party
without the prior written agreement of Consultant.

d. Client shall not use the instruments of Service for future additions or alterations to this Project or for other
projects, unless Client obtains the prior written agreement of the Consultant. Any unauthorized use, reuse
or modifications of the Instruments of Service shall be at the Client’s sole risk and without liability to
Consultant, and Client agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmiess Consultant from all claims and damages
arising out of or purported to arise out of the use, reuse, or modification of the Instruments of Service.

Waiver of Consequential Damages - Notwithstanding any other provision in this Agreement, and to the fullest extent
permitted by law, neither the Consultant nor the Client, their respective officers, directors, partners, employees,
contractors or subconsultants shall be liable to the other for, or shall make, any claim for any incidental, indirect or
consequential damages arising out of or connected in any way to the Project or to this Agreement. This mutual waiver
of consequential damages shall include, but is not limited to, loss of use, ioss of profit, loss of business, loss of income,

IBA Proposal No. P17.0252,000
Page 8 of 11



13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

damage to reputation or any other consequential damages either party may have incurred from any cause of action
including negligence, strict liability, breach of contract and breach of strict or implied warranty.

Sole Corporate Remedy - It is intended by the parties to this Agreement that the Consultant’s services in connection
with the Project shall not subject the Consultant’s individual shareholders, officers, directors, members, managers or
employees to any personal legal exposure for the risks associated with this Project. Therefore, and notwithstanding
anything to the contrary contained herein, the Client agrees that as the Client’s sole and exclusive remedy, any claim,
demand or suit shall be directed and/or asserted only against Consultant and not against any of the individual
shareholders, officers, directors, members, managers or employees.

Limitation of Liability - In recognition of the relative risks and benefits of the Project to both the Client and the
Consultant relating to Consultant’s provision of services in accordance with this Agreement, the risks have been
allocated such that the Client agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to limit the liability of the Consultant to
the Client for any and all claims, losses, costs, damage of any nature whatsoever or claims expenses from any cause or
causes, including attorneys’ fees and costs and expert witness fees and costs, so that the total aggregate liability of the
Consultant to the Client shall not exceed the sum of Consultant’s available insurance coverage at the time of settlement
or judgment regardless of theories of liability or causes of action asserted against Consultant unless otherwise
prohibited by law.

Payment - Payments on account of services rendered and for Reimbursable Expenses shall be made monthly upon
presentation of the Consultant’s statement of services. Payments are due within thirty (30) days of receipt of
Consultant’s statement of services. No deductions shall be made from the Consultant’s compensation on account of
penalty, liquidated damages or other sums withheld from payments to contractors, or on account of the cost of
changes in the Work other than those for which the Consultant has been adjudged to be liable. Inquiries and questions
regarding any statement of services shall be made within ten (10) working days of receipt of the statement of services.
Failure to notify Consultant within the specified period will constitute a waiver to any claim with respect to the content
or accuracy of the statement of services, as well as acceptance of the services provided.

Termination - This Agreement may be terminated by the Client upon not less than seven {7) days’ written notice to
Consultant for the Client’s convenience and withaut cause. This Agreement may be terminated by either party upon
not less than seven (7) days’ written notice should the other party fail substantially to perform in accordance with the
terms of this Agreement through no fault of the party initiating the termination. In addition, if the Client fails to make
payments when due or otherwise is in breach of this Agreement, Consultant may, at its option, terminate this
Agreement for material breach or suspend performance of services upon five (5) calendar days’ notice to the Client.
Consultant shall have no liability whatsaever to the Client for any costs or damages as a result of such suspension
caused by any breach of this Agreement by the Client. Upon payment in full by the Client under a suspension,
Consultant shall resume services under this Agreement, and the time schedule and compensation shall be equitably
adjusted to compensate for the period of suspension. If the Client still fails to make payment or otherwise cure the
breach following a suspension of services, Consultant may terminate this Agreement upon an additional seven (7} days'
notice.

The Client shall not transfer, subject, or assign the rights under or interest in this Agreement {including but not limited
to payments that are due or that may be due) to any other party without the prior written consent of Consultant.

Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual relationship with or a cause of action in favor of a third
party against either the Client or the Consultant.

Consultant shall have the right to include photographic or artistic representations of the Project among the
Consultant’s promotional and professional materials, including but not limited to its website and tradeshow booths.
The Consultant shall be given reasonable access to the completed Project to make such representations. Consultant’s
materials shall not include the Client’s or Owner’s confidential or proprietary information if the Client has previously

JBA Proposal No. P17.0252.000
Page 9 of 11



20.

21,

22.

an N V 5 campany

advised the Consultant in writing of the specific information considered by the Client or Owner to be confidential or
proprietary.

Dispute Resolution - The parties agree to first try in good faith to settle any dispute arising out of or related to this
Agreement by mediation pursuant to the Construction Industry Mediation Rules of the American Arbitration
Association. If the claim or controversy is not settled by mediation, the claim or controversy may be resolved by final
and binding arbitration, if the parties so agree, or by civil litigation.

This Agreement shall be venued in the State of Nevada and otherwise governed by the law of the State of Nevada.

This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between Client and Consultant and supersedes all
prior negotiations, representations or agreements, either written or oral. This Agreement may be amended or
modified only by written instrument signed by both Client and Consultant. If any term, condition, or covenant of this
Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void or unenforceable, the remaining provisions
of this Agreement shall be valid and binding on Client and Consultant.

By executing this Agreement both parties acknowledge and agree that this Agreement has been freely negotiated by both
parties, and that, in any dispute over the meaning, interpretation, validity or enforceability of this Agreement or any of its terms
or conditions, there shall be no presumption whatsoever against either party by virtue of that party having drafted this
Agreement or any portion thereof.

This Agreement entered into by:

|

/(M i,

Consultant {signature) Client (signature)

Allyn J Vaughn, PE, FSFPE, LEED AP

President
(Printed name and title) (Printed name and title)
(Date) (Date)

1BA Proposal No. P17.0252.000
Page 10 of 11



CONTACT INFORMATION

DOMESTIC

BOSTON NEW ORLEANS
225 Foxborough Boulevard 2450 Severn Avenue
Suite 103 Suite 505

Foxborough, MA 02035
P 508.216.2494

IRVINE

36 Technology Drive
Suite 200

Irvine, CA 92618

P 949.419.3030

LOS ANGELES

888 Figueroa Street
Suite 2020

Los Angeles, CA 90017
P 213.406.0650

LAS VEGAS

5155 W. Patrick Lane
Las Vegas, NV 89118
P 702.362.9200

Metairie, LA 70001
P 504.830.0139

NEW YORK

32 Old Slip. Suite 401
New York, NY 10005
P 212.330.7640

PHOENIX

16425 N. Pima Road
Bldg. A, Suite 160
Scottsdale, AZ 85260
P 480.214.5823

INTERNATIONAL

HO CHI MINH CITY

Centec Tower, Level 4, Unit 0178

72-74 Nguyen Thi Minh Khai Street
Ward 6, District 3, Ho Chi Minh City, VN
P 84.8629.99425

HONG KONG

Unit 2905-08 Pacific Plaza
410 Des Voeux Road West
Hong Kong, CN

P 852.2161.1328

MACAU

Alm, Dr. Carlos D' Assumpcao No. 180

Tong Nam Ah Central Comercio, 13 Andar D.
Macau, CN

P 853.2875.7330

SHANGHAI

Unit 1740, 17 F, Shanghai CCIG
International Plaza, No. 331 North Caoxi
Road, Shanghai Xuhui, China 200030

P 86.21.2422.5340

1BA Propasal No. P17.0252.000
Page 11 of 11






an N V 5 company

MUTUAL CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT

THIS MUTUAL CONFIDENTIALITY AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is entered into as of this __ day of
, 2017, by and between JBA Consulting Engineers, located at 5155 W. Patrick Lane, Las Vegas, NV
89118 (“JBA”) and Storey County, 26 S. B St., PO Box 176, Virginia City, NV 89440, (all parties hereto being individually
referred to herein as a "Party" and collectively referred to herein as the "Parties").

RECITALS

WHEREAS, JBA is considering entering into a business- professional relationship with Storey County, whereby Sterey
County JBA would provide certain professional services and/or products (the “Services"); and

WHEREAS, in connection with exploring the possibility of entering into such business-a relationship_and during the
course of the relationship if one is entered into, the Parties intend to divulge to one another information that is
canfidential and/or proprietary to the disclosing Party ("Confidential Information"); and

WHEREAS, the Parties intend that this Agreement shall protect each Party's interest in its respective Confidential
information, and any and all other services or information of whatsoever nature which might have value.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the assertions, promises and covenants herein set forth, the acts and the
deeds performed pursuant hereto, and for other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is
hereby acknowledged, the Parties intending to be legally bound agree as follows:

ARTICLE |
CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

1.1 Confidentiality

(a) From and after the date hereof, each Party shall hold in strict confidence, and shall not discuss, communicate,
transmit, disclose or permit the disclosure, directly or indirectly, of any Confidential Information, divulged or
delivered to it by the other Party unless required by applicable law or as agreed to in writing between the
Parties. It is understood that the Parties may disclose Confidential Information to its employees, legal-counsek
accountants—and-business—advisors—{collectively,—the—Representatives'}-who (i) require the material for the
purpose of evaluating-the-possible-business-relationship-and/ferperforming the Services, and (i) are informed by
the receiving Party of the confidential nature of the Confidential Information and the obligations of this
Agreement. The Parties further agree that they will aet-use any-ef-the Confidential information te-engage-in

unfair-competition—identify-and-recruit-key-employees—orfor-any reason-or-purpese-otherthan-evaluating-a
possible-business-relationship-andfersolely for the purpose -providing Services as referenced above.

(b) For purposes of this Agreement, the term "Confidential Information" shall include trade secrets; client lists and
related data; fee schedules and pricing practices; contracts; financial information and tax returns; marketing
plans or proposals; strategic and business plans; staff and compensation data; information concerning services
presently offered by the Parties; plans, photographs, and drawings; research and development; work product;
and—any and all proprietary materials, tools, methodologies, processes and technologies, or

WORLDWIDE TRUSTED ADVISORS™ | JBACE.COM




an N V 5 company

analytical/information systems; and all discussions and information conveyed or exchanged preliminary to
Storey County making a final decision as to how to proceed once it has received services from JBA .

{c) The Parties further agree that if either Party receives a request or demand by any person, or by any judicial or
administrative proceedings for access to trade secrets or other Confidential information disclosed by the other
Party, the Party receiving the request or demand shall promptly notify the other Party so that the other Party
may, at its own expense, exercise any rights as it may have under law to prevent or limit disclosure of its trade
secrets or other Confidential Information and to obtain assurance that compelled disclosures will receive
confidential treatment.

1.2 Exceptions

The obligations contained above shall not apply to any Confidential Information including, but not limited to, ideas,
know-how, concepts, plans and methodologies, which:

(a) is public knowledge at the time of disclosure;

(b) is approved for release by written authorization of the disclosing Party;

(c) is independently developed by or for a Party hereto without the aid, application, or use of the Confidential
Information;

(d) is disclosed by a Party hereto with the other Party's prior written approval; or

(e) is disclosed to a Party from a source other than one which such Party knows to be bound by a confidentiality
agreement with the other Party.

ARTICLE 1l
GENERAL MATTERS
2.1 Remedies

This Agreement shall not be construed to grant either Party any licenses or similar rights to Confidential Information
disclosed or delivered to it by the other Party. The Parties acknowledge that the restrictions contained in this

| Agreement are reasonable and necessary to protect the legitimate business and/or governmental interests of the
Parties, and that any breach by a receiving Party of its obligation under this Agreement would result in irreparable injury
to the disclosing Party for which monetary damages may be inadequate. In seeking enforcement of any of these

| obligations, the disclosing Party shall be entitled to temporary and permanent injunctions and any other equitable relief
to prevent or restrain the breach of this Agreement, as well as any other relief provided at law or in equity, under this
Agreement or otherwise.

2.2 Governing Law; Severability

This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada, disregarding
any rules relating to choice or conflict of laws, and any dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be
adjudicated exclusively in state or federal court in Las Vegas, Nevada. If any provision or part of this Agreement or any
provision or part of any modification to this Agreement is found to be illegal or unenforceable in any respect, the
illegality or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision or part hereof, but this Agreement shall be construed as

WORLDWIDE TRUSTED ADVISORS™ | JBACE.COM




an N V 5 company

if the provision had never been contained herein, or in the alternative, the provision or part hereof shall be modified to
correct any illegality or unenforceability consistent with the intent and meaning of this Agreement.

Principal-parties-and-advisors-ofJBA-and Storey-County-shall-keep-the-existence-of this-Agreement-and-its-contents,and
memwnmmm%mmmﬁmmmmmmmwmmm
either-Party-to-comply-with-applicable-laws-afterreasonable-notice-to-the other-Party:

| 2.34 Return of Confidential Information

At the conclusion of the Services being performed on the Project, or if it is determined that one of the Parties does not

| wish to proceed with a business-relationship, then each Party will promptly deliver all Confidential Information furnished
by the other party, together with all copies and summaries thereof in its possession or under its control, without
retaining a copy of any such material.

2.5 No Obligation to Execute a Definitive Services Agreement

] Nothing in this Agreement requires either Party or-its-respective-shareholders-to enter into a business-relationship or to
negotiate or execute a definitive agreement setting forth the terms and conditions governing the provision of Services.

2.6 Binding Effect

The terms, provisions, covenants and conditions contained in this Agreement shall apply to and inure to the benefit of,
and be binding upon the respective Parties hereto, and their respective successors in interest, legal representatives,
agents and assigns, except as otherwise herein expressly provided.

2.7 Assignment

This Agreement is personal to the Parties, and may not be assigned to any other parties without express prior written
consent of all the Parties.

2.8 Entire Agreement

This Agreement contains all the promises of the Parties and cannot be amended or modified except by another
agreement in writing signed by the Party sought to be charged therewith or by its duly authorized agent. All prior
understandings between the Parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement are hereby rescinded. No waiver
of any clause or provision shall constitute a continuing waiver. No waiver shall be binding unless executed in writing by
the Party making the waiver.

29 Term

This Agreement shall be effective as of the date first written above, and shall continue in force and effect for as long as
either Party is in possession of Confidential Information of the other Party.

WORLDWIDE TRUSTED ADVISORS™ | JBACE.COM




an N V 5 company

2.10 Disclaimer of Warranty

Neither the disclosing Party nor its Representatives has made or makes any representation or warranty regarding the
accuracy or completeness of the Confidential Information. The Parties agree that neither the disclosing Party nor its
Representatives shall have any liability to the receiving Party or any of its Representatives resulting from the receiving
Party’s use of the Confidential Information, except as may be expressly set forth in a definitive written agreement

| between the Parties hereto with respect to a business-relationship for the provision of Services, in accordance with the
terms thereof.

2.11 No License

Nothing contained herein shall be construed as granting a license or any other right under any patent, copyright, trade
secret or other intellectual property right. This Agreement shall not grant either Party any rights in or to the Confidential
Information of the other Party except as expressly set forth herein.

2.12 Attorneys’ Fees

In the event of any action or proceeding to compel compliance with, or with respect to any breach of this Agreement,
the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in connection therewith
regardless of whether such fees and costs are incurred at or in connection with trial or appellate proceedings.

2.12 Counterparts

This Agreement may be executed in two or more counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, but all of
which together shall constitute one and the same Agreement. A facsimile version will be considered as an original.

The Parties acknowledge that this Agreement is being made voluntarily by each Party and without inducement offered
in any way to that Party other than that expressly stated in this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have entered into this Agreement as of the date first set forth above.

JBA CONSULTING ENGINEERS Storey County

By: By:

Name: Allyn Vaughn Name: Pat Whitten
Title: President Title: County Manager
Date: Date:

WORLDWIDE TRUSTED ADVISORS™ | JBACE.COM




Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: April 16, 2017 Estimate of time required: 1 hours

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Review and possible approval of the 2017-2018 General Fund Final Budget for
submission to the Department of Taxation

2. Recommended motion: I approve the filing of the 2017-2018 General Fund Final Budget to
the Department of Taxation

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher and Staff
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006

4. Staff summary: Annual approval of all Funds and Department Budget Requests
S. Supporting materials: Budget Package — Requested Revenue and Expense Reports

6. Fiscal impact: Yes
Funds Available: Fund: ALL ﬁ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office

(}%@ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [ ] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. Vo~



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: April 16, 2017 Estimate of time required: 1 hours

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Review and possible approval of the 2017-2018 Water-Sewer Final Budget for
submission to the Department of Taxation

2. Recommended motion: I approve the filing of the 2017-2018 Water-Sewer Final Budget to
the Department of Taxation

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher and Staff
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006

4. Staff summary: Annual approval of all Funds and Department Budget Requests

5. Supporting materials: Budget Package — Requested Revenue and Expense Reports

6. Fiscal impact: Yes

Funds Available: Fund: ALL _7{2 Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
CM County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved

Approved with Modifications
[1 Denied '

Continued

oy
JR—

Agenda Item No. | H



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: April 16, 2017 Estimate of time required: 1 hour

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Review and possible approval of the 2017-2018 474 Fire District Final Budget for
submission to the Department of Taxation

2. Recommended motion: I approve the filing of the 2017-2018 474 Fire District Final Budget
to the Department of Taxation

3. Prepared by: Hugh Gallagher and Staff
Department: Comptroller Telephone: 775-847-1006

4. Staff summary: Annual approval of all Funds and Department Budget Requests
S. Supporting materials: Budget Package — Requested Revenue and Expense Reports

6. Fiscal impact: Yes
Funds Available: Fund: ALL % Comptroller

7. Legal review required:
District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
/M Manager Other agency review:

9. lioafd action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

s N e |
[N

Agenda Item No. ¥



Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Agenda Action Report
LIQUOR BOARD
Slie/i7 Q
Meeting date: 52717 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [ ]

l.

Title: Amendment to the Liquor License for Lance Gilman, from Mustang Ranch Steakhouse
and Red Light Lounge to Virginia City Bar & Grill.

Recommended motion: None.

. Prepared by: Brandy Gavenda, Admin. Asst. %&‘\

Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959

. Staff summary: Motion to approve an amendment to the Liquor License for Lance Gilman, 5

C St., Virginia City, NV, from Mustang Ranch Steakhouse and Red Light Lounge to
Virginia City Bar & Grill.

. Supporting materials:
. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

. Legal review required:

____ District Attorney

. Reviewed by:

X Department Head

County Manager Other agency review:

. Board action:

Approved with Modifications
Continued

[] Approved
[] Denied

—r—
e —

Agenda Item No. Q).



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 16,2017 Estimate of time required: 20 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [x] Public hearing required [x]

1, Title: Discussion/Possible Action: Parcel Map 2017-011 by Nancy Krushke. The Applicant requests
approval of a Parcel Map dividing one parcel into two parcels located at 20 South N Street, Virginia City,
Storey County, Nevada, Assessor Parcel Number (APN): 001-246-11).

2. Recommended motion: In accordance with the recommendation by Staff, the Findings under section
6.1 of this Staff Report and other Findings deemed appropriate by the Board of County Commissioners, and
in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, I [commissioner] hereby motion to approve with conditions
for Parcel Map Application Number 2017-011 to approve the Applicant’s request to create a Parcel Map
dividing one parcel into two parcels located at 20 South N Street, Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada
(Assessor Parcel Number: 001-246-11),

3. Prepared by; Kathy Canfield
4, Department: Planning Telephone: 775.847.1144
5. Staff summary: See enclosed Staff Report No. 2017-011

6. Supporting materials: Enclosed Staff Report No. 2017-011

7. Fiscal impact: None on local government.

Funds Available: Fund: _____ Comptroller
8. Legal review required: District Attorney
9. Reviewed by:

) 2 _. Department Head Department Name: Planning
County Manager Other agency review:

10. Board action:

[] Approved [1] Approved with Modifications

[] Denied {1 Continued

Agenda Item No. &‘{



Storey County
Board of County Commissioners
Staff Report

Storey County Board of County Commissioners

From: Storey County Planning Department

Meeting Date: May 16,2017 at 10:00 a.m.

Meeting Location: Storey County Courthouse, 26 S. B Street, Virginia City, Nevada 89440
Staff Contact: Kathy Canfield

File: 2017-011

Applicant: Nancy Kruschke

Property Owner: Nancy Kruschke

Property Location: 20 South N Street, Virginia City, Nevada, 89440, APN 001-246-11

Figures: Figure 1: Vicinity Map; Figure 2: Parcel Map; Figure 3: Proposed
Parcel Configuration; Figure 4: Abutting Land Use Compatibility

Appendix: Appendix 1: Proposed Record of Survey; Appendix 2: NRS 278.461-
469

Guiding Documents:  Storey County Code Section 17.16 R-1 Residential Zones; Storey
County Master Plan and Nevada Revised Statues 278.461 through
278.469

Request: The Applicant requests approval of a Parcel Map dividing one parcel
into two parcels located at 20 South N Street, Virginia City, Storey
County, Nevada (Assessor Parcel Number: 001-246-11).

Summary of Planning Commission Action:
The Planning Commission at its April 20, 2017, meeting heard
testimony from the applicant, county staff and the public regarding the
subject Parcel Map. Questions were raised about how proposed
development on the newly created parcel configurations would be
placed on the parcels and if addresses from the parcels would be
changed from N Street to Union Street. There was also a discussion
on building setbacks for the parcels. The Planning Commission voted
unanimously 4 to 0, with three absent, to recommend approval of the
Parcel Map, with no changes to the conditions of approval with the
exception of a typographical error being corrected as noted in the
project presentation.

Staff Report — 2017-011



1. Background & Analysis

1.1 Site Location and Characteristics

The subject property is located at the south east corner of N Street and Union
Street in Virginia City. The corner lot property consists of Lots 1 and 2 of Block
114 as shown on the Official Map of Virginia City and a portion of abandoned
right-of-way associated with M Street. The subject property is approximately
14,300 square feet and is owned by Nancy Kruschke. The subject property is
zoned R-1, Single Family Residential.

The applicant has received a building permit to construct a single family residence
on the parcel. The construction of the residence has commenced with excavation
of the site and the installation of a foundation. The proposed residence will
occupy the proposed eastern corner lot, shown as Parcel B on the proposed Parcel
Map.

The parcel is located at the corner of N and Union Street. N Street is undeveloped
at this time. M Street adjacent to this parcel was approved to be abandoned in
2002 by the County Commission. The east half of the M Street abandonment area
has been incorporated into this parcel.

20f 17



STOREY COUNTY

Figure 2 - Parcel Map

1.2 Proposed Action

The applicant wishes to subdivide the subject parcel into two separate parcels.
Where historically the former parcels faced N Street, the new configured parcels
will face Union Street. Both parcels will be of equal size and be approximately

7,150 square feet, which is consistent with the R-1 zoning for parcel size.

o SO =

L5 v LoaT

E
k &3t RN T L RO
i
4 o
ey —— - o | T L L | I =
] o :---.. = FT= 4 _1_ ]
. ) . R '|
L ¢ e I:|, ']
?‘l z Y %% 1
54 - 5 ‘
A e
. o epe e e 1
! l'. .. VIO st (3 , l_" s =
5 en @ T PSRRI - r“'é p | =
. :,", ® el
Dashed lines 2 8 eww
indicated original S . ==
parcel configurations !
e |
i
]
1
j—-—"-—s-w—w-——- -""|__—_~--
]
& L e -' 5T
& G i b L B
J —_ -
W s e — i — — Y — ::’:. - i

Figure 3 - Proposed Parcel Configuration

—

[T 508 T - sy Lo

L

3 of 17



1.3 Application for a Parcel Map

NRS 278.461 defines a “Parcel Map” as a division of land into four or less
parcels. The proposed Parcel Map complies with NRS 278.461 through 278.469
regulating the division of land into four or less parcels.

Storey County Code (SCC) does not specifically require an Application for a
Parcel Map. However, NRS does require a Parcel Map to go through the
Application process.

NRS 278.464 Action on a Parcel Map by the Planning Commission to the
governing body.

The Planning Commission shall:
In a county whose population is less than 700,000, within 60 days, after
accepting a complete application for a Parcel Map, recommend approval,
conditional approval or disapproval of the map in a written report. The
Planning Commission shall submit the Parcel Map and the written report to
the governing body.

The Applicant requests dividing one parce] of land into two parcels of land.
Consequently, this request is within the perimeters of a Parcel Map per the NRS
definition. Therefore, the Storey County Planning Department (the Planning
Department) requested the Applicant submit an application for a Parcel Map.

(See Appendix 2: Nevada Revised Statues 278.461 - 278.469)

1.4  Adjacent Properties Existing Land Uses
Surrounding land uses to this property include an existing residence to the west,
an existing residence with accessory structures (garage, barn, corrals) to the north,

and vacant land to the south and east. The property and all of the surrounding
properties are zoned R-1.

4 of 17



2.  General Compliance with Storey County’s Guiding Documents

The following table shows land uses, Storey County Master Plan (Master Plan)

designations and zoning for the land surrounding the subject property. There appears to
be no conflict between the proposed and the surrounding land use and Master Plan.

Figure 4: Abutting Land Use Compatibility
Land Existing Land Use Master Plan |Zonin
i : . Single Famil
Applicant's Land Vacarllztg:{r;iljif]amlly l;gesid;?tli;ly R-1
Land to the north Single Family Smgl'e FarTuly Rl
Residential Residential =
Land to the west Single Family Si“glf’« Far?ily
Residential Residential R-1
Land to the south S Bcant Single Family Rl
Residential =
Land to the east Vacant S'”gl_e Fan.’llly R
Residential -1

3. Compliance with the Storey County Code

The subject parcel is located within land zoned as R-1 within Virginia City.

3.1 Storey County Code 17.16 R-1 Residential Zones
The following standards apply to the R-1 Zone:

3.1.1 Storey County Code 17.16.050 Minimum Parcel Area
The minimum parcel areas required in the R-1 zone is as follows:

5of 17



Minimum Width
Minimum Lot Area From Street

Zone and Suffix (square feet) (feet)

R1-5 5,000 50

R1-6 6,000 50

R1-8 8,000 | 60

R1-10 10,000 60

R1-15 15,000 80

R1-20 20,000 100

3.1.2

The proposed parcel map identifies two parcels of equal area,
approximately 7,150 square feet, and widths of 65 linear feet each along
Union Street, which is consistent with the above requirements.

Store County Code 17.16.060 Setback Requirements

The required distance between the building and the property line is shown
in the following table. Setback requirements for accessory structures must
comply with section 17.12.045.

Zone and Suffix and Lot Front Setback | Side Setback Rear Setback
Configuration
R1-5, R1-6, and R1-8 20 feet 8 feet 20 feet
R1-10 and R1-15 30 feet 8 feet 20 feet
R1-20 40 feet 8 feet 20 feet
Corner lot facing two Same as above 10 feet street Same as above
streets side; 8 feet
non-street side

The parcel configurations are of adequate size to construct residences on
the property while meeting the required setbacks. The eastern parcel is a
corner lot and requires a 10-foot setback along N Street. The eastern
parcel has a residential foundation footprint. The original building permit
documented a 17-foot setback from the property line along N Street. As
constructed, the foundation appears to be closer to N Street than the stated
setback on the plans. As construction has been halted on the project, a
new permit will be needed to continue construction activities on the
parcel. As a part of the new permit, a revised site plan documenting that
the residence meets the required setbacks will be required. It should be
noted that this setback is required even if the parcel map project does not
get approved or is no longer desired/pursued, as the original unsubdivided
parcel is also a corner lot and subject to a 10-foot N Street setback..

3.1.3 Storey County Code 17.16.065 Height of Buildings and Structures

6 of 17



Buildings, manufactured homes or structures may not exceed a height of 3
stories or 35 feet, whichever is higher, except as may be allowed by a
variance.

The proposed Parcel Map does not include authorization to construct any
buildings on the parcels. The Building Department would review plans
for any structures proposed on the property for consistency with this
height requirement.

3.1.4 Storey County Code 17.16.070 Home Enterprises
Home enterprises are regulated under Chapter 17.12, General Provisions.

This proposed Parcel Map does not include authorization for any Home
Enterprise, therefore, the Application conforms to this standard.

3.1.5 Storey County Code 17.16.080 Distance Between Buildings on the
Same Lot

There must be a minimum distance of 10 feet between a building used for
a dwelling purposes and an accessory building. There must be a minimum
distance of 6 feet between accessory buildings.

The proposed Parcel Map does not authorize any construction on the
property. All setbacks shall be reviewed and approved by the Building
Department upon application for construction on the parcels.

Compliance with the Storey County Master Plan

The proposed Parcel Map conforms to the goals and objectives of the Storey County
Master Plan including “allowing moderate growth enhances access to housing for diverse
populations while also promoting economic vitality in the community” (Chapter 3,
Section 3.4.2), “direct and manage orderly, efficient, and sustainable development”
(Chapter 3, Goal 1),” maintaining compact communities by encouraging infill residential
development within existing population centers in the county” and “ensuring that land
use permits are compatible with the zoning map, master plan, and previous planning
decisions” (Chapter 9, Goal 1, Objective 1.1).

Public Comment

As of posting date, Staff had not received any written public comment for this file. A
neighboring property owner spoke at the Planning Commission meeting with a question
about placement of the residences and setbacks.

Findings

7 of 17



6.1 Motion for Approval

The following Findings are evident with regard to the requested Parcel Map when
the recommended conditions in Section 7: Recommended Conditions of
Approval, are applied:

6.1.1 The Parcel Map must comply with NRS 278.461 through 278.469 relating
to the division of land into four or less parcels; and

6.1.2 The Parcel Map complies with all Federal, Nevada State, and County
regulations pertaining to Parcel Maps and allowed land uses; and

6.1.3 The Parcel Map will not impose substantial adverse impacts or safety
hazards on the abutting properties or the surrounding vicinity; and

6.1.4 The conditions under this Parcel Map do not conflict with the minimum
requirements in Storey County Code Chapters 17.16 R-1 Residential
Zones or any other Federal, Nevada State, or County regulations.

6.1.5 The Parcel Map conforms to the 2016 Storey County Master Plan for the
Virginia City planning area in which the subject property is located. A discussion
supporting this finding for the special use permit is provided in Section 2 of this
staff report.

6.2 Motion for Denial

Should a motion be made to deny the Parcel Map request, the following Findings
with explanation of why should be included in that motion,

6.2.1 Substantial evidence shows that the Parcel Map conflicts with the purpose,
intent, and other specific requirement of Storey County Code Chapter
17.16 R-1 Zoning or any other Federal, Nevada State, or County
regulations.

6.2.2 The conditions under the Parcel Map do not adequately mitigate potential

adverse impacts on surrounding uses or protect against potential safety
hazards for surrounding uses.

7. Recommended Conditions of Approval

All conditions must be met to the satisfaction of each applicable Storey County
Department.

8 of 17



General requirements. The Parcel Map must comply with Nevada Revised
Statues (NRS) 278.461 through 278.469 relating to the division of land into four
or less parcels. The Parcel Map must comply with Federal, State, and County
regulations pertaining to Parcel Maps and allowed land uses.

Record of Survey. The Applicant must submit to the Storey County Planning
Department a Record of Survey within six months. The Final Map must show all
parcel boundaries, easements, and right-of-ways and be recorded with the Storey
County Recorder’s Office.

Access and Easements. All existing streets, easements, and utility easements,
whether public or private, must remain in effect and be delineated clearly on the
Final Map. No existing easements will be affected by the approval of this Parcel
Map.

Taxes Paid. Prior to the recording of the proposed Parcel Map, the Applicant
shall show valid evidence to the Planning Department that all property taxes on
the land have been paid for the fiscal year.

Payment of Tax Imposed. Prior to the recording of the Final Map, the Applicant
shall submit to the Planning Department an affidavit stating that the Applicant
will make provision for the payment of the tax imposed by NRS Chapter 375 and
for compliance with the disclosure and recording requirements of NRS 598.0923
subsection (5), if applicable, by the person who proposes to divide the land or any
successor in interest.

Will Serve Letter. The Applicant shall submit a copy of a will-serve letter from
the Storey County Public Works Department (Public Works) for the proposed
parcels.

Separate Water and Sewer Connections for Each Parcel. The property owner
is required to obtain a will-serve letter from Public Works and separate water and
sewer connections for each parcel. Connections must be paid in-full prior to any
building permits being issued.

Requirements by the County. Pursuant to NRS 278.462, the County may
require street grading, drainage provisions and lot designs that are reasonably
necessary. The Storey County Fire Protection District (SCFPD) and the Storey
County Building Department (Building Department) may require off-site access,
street alignment, surfacing and width, water quality, water supply and sewerage
provisions only as reasonably necessary and consistent with the existing use of a
land zoned for similar use which is within 660 feet of the proposed parcel. If the
proposed parcels are less than one acre, the governing body or, if authorized by
the governing body, the Planning Commission or other authorized person may
require additional improvements which are reasonably necessary and consistent
with the use of the land if it is developed as proposed.

9 of 17



9. Setbacks and Improvements. All proposed development shall be consistent
with the required setbacks. No improvements, such as, but not limited to,
retaining walls, driveway access or cut/fill or grading of public land, shall be
constructed within the right-of-way of N Street and/or Union Street without
Storey County approval.

10. Minimum Parcel Area. No parcel created by this Parcel Map will be less than
5,000 square feet in size or have less than 50-foot street frontage width as
required by Storey County Code Section 17.16.050 Minimum Parcel Area and
Width Requirements for the applicable R-1 Residential Zones.

11. Duties of the Parcel Map Preparer. The preparer of the proposed Parcel Map
shall meet all requirements pursuant to NRS 278.468 through 278.469.

12. Final Map. The Final Parcel Map must meet the form and contents pursuant to
NRS 278.466.

13.  Null and Void. The Final Parcel Map must be recorded with the Recorder within
12 months of the Board’s approval. If the Final Parcel Map is not recorded by that
time, this approval will become null and void.

14. Indemnify. The Applicant agrees to hold Storey County, its officers, and
representatives harmless from the costs and responsibilities associated with any
damage or liability, and any/all other claims now existing or which may occur as
a result of this Parcel Map.

Power of the Board

At the conclusion of the hearing, the Board of County Commissioners must take such
action thereon as it deems warranted under the circumstances and announce and record
its action by formal resolution, and such resolution must recite the Findings of the Board
of County Commissioners upon which it bases its decision.

Proposed Motions

This section contains two options from which to choose. The motion for approval with
the Conditions of Approval is recommended by Staff in accordance with the Findings
under Section 6.1 of the Staff Report. These Findings should be made part of that motion.
A motion to deny the Parcel Map may be made and that motion should cite one or more
of the Findings shown in section 6.2. Other Findings determined appropriate by the
Planning Commission should be made part of either motion.

10 of 17



9.1

9.2

Recommended Motion (motion for approval)

In accordance with the recommendation by Staff, the Findings under section 6.1
of this Staff Report and other Findings deemed appropriate by the Board of
County Commissioners, and in compliance with all Conditions of Approval, 1
[commissioner] hereby motion to approve with conditions for Parcel Map
Application Number 2017-011 to approve the Applicant’s request to create a
Parcel Map dividing one parcel into two parcels located at 20 South N Street,
Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada (Assessor Parcel Number: 001-246-11),

Summary.: Approval parcel map with conditions.
Alternative Motion (motion for denial)

Not in accordance with recommendation by staff and the Storey County Planning
Commission, but in accordance with the Findings under Section 6.2 of the Staff
Report and other Findings deemed appropriate by the Board of County
Commissioners, | [commissioner] hereby recommend denial for Parcel Map
Application Number 2017-011 and to deny the Applicant’s request to create a
Parcel Map dividing one parcel into two parcels located at 20 South N Street,
Virginia City, Storey County, Nevada (Assessor Parcel Number: 001-246-11).

Summary: Denial of parcel map.

11 of 17



APPENDIX 1

Record of Survey

D TS TAA) ) A ok

alhais =m0 L0 A

wT

[
& RAW

oo

wi wm\ Qw K rfwvz L ST, PEA) Nad 'r-ﬂ
W QMY SN BT TR R WA

N e Do WL

e AATTA x| b8 IR

e

Ci s
P at
e eI
N A 7 R

L5}

530

o

e o = R————

She 3 onera

e

|

b TR & S (0T gy

T AL WY 4 W S B

2 RIW 7wl
Mo 5 S

[0
ar
Ao
Ziry

4 >
1 2
3 |
i ;
M
1N
P DO I Ao 1 ) L0 AN g
s =2
i | i L TR 4
b | 3
<

[t LR

4 fey MU G SR b o BRI BT AL U a8 aedae a0 M T3 o 4 ML 8
Y RO Y, aneals

Ryt e

B YoNapem KB AL ve s WORL P ALY My Axwtk in
R AL R QPR MCITA B LTI K

3 wE O R W pr e T
Wt

SO m BET U W
THRA WCCRK BT DN st panh

oy ey

B eEEACE e e syt Usks en ten
N et A v P 0 S 18 AL FAA £ B E AN
e L S e ]
AT W B e PRl e bk D

o oaE g

T RN AT T L

B ORI e ) A S
TR B W

B

' - —— e — PR e
S Y A et W R
. B a e s s

G, W Y G duL

L i T AT S
W SR

L R

oMl T P

§ B b ke EIER, ) PRAI SO, UM AT UL B

T VAL W kb ®) HIAE CumTer

BN ey VA BIRASE S U R Na'aliTh  mas
MG TASeTS & VL WIACE 3 AL

BT WK ST £ s § s T A 3 3 e
oo WE R U e RAIE BEE A€ W 6 AN WC N,
TIm e NS R sy M, P 20

Wi

108 KA ARKY W RS S e e
LSHE o8 L e e e

e 2 o A

4P Gl BHEEI O [ T AN W Daaiste
fufeginpclopid iR Lcnt L L GF STLRL
Ban B L b

R MARIE R T YR

FAELLL HAP
e d

PR BT WAL

LKA dF

A2 RGN ) el

/;il.‘\ MEFERSURVLYING

AT ST o T

12 of 17




APPENDIX 2

NRS 278.461-469

13 of 17



Parcel Maps

NRS 278461 General requirements; exemptions.
1. Except as otherwise provided in this scetion, o person who proposes to divide any land lor transfer or development
into fourlots or less shall:
(a) Prepare a parcel map and file (he number ol copics, as iequired by local ordinance, of the parcel map wilh the
planning commission orits designaled representalive or, il there is no planning commmission, with the cletk of the goveming

body; and
(b) Pay afiling fee in an amount determined by the goveming bady,

= unless those requirements are waived or the provisions of MRS 278471 (0 2784725 inclusive, apply. The map must be
accompanicd by a wrillen statement signed by the treasurer of (he county in which the land to be divided s Tocated
indicating that all propenty taxes on the land for the fiseal vear have been paid, and by the aflidavit of the pesson who
proposes to divide (he land stating that the person will make provision [or the payment of the tax imposed by chapler 375 ol
NS and for compliance with the disclosure and reconding requirements of subscction 3 of NI S98.0923, it applicable, by
the person who proposes 1o divide the land or any suceessor in inlerest,

2. In addition to any other requirciment set forth in this section. a person who is required to prepare a parcel map
pursuan( lo subsection 1 shall pravide a copy of (he parcel map 1o the Division of Water Resources of the State Department
of Conservation and Natural Resonrces and obtain a certificate from the Division indicating that the parcel map is approved
as Lo the quantity of water available for use ift

(a) Any parcel included in the parcel map:
(1) Is within or pattially svithin a basin designated by the State Engineer pursuan( (oNIUS 334 120 for which the State
Engincerhas issucd an order requiting the appoval of the parcel nwap by the State Engincer; and
(2) Will be served by a domestic well; and

(b) The dedicalion of a 1ight (o appropriate water 1o ensure a suflicient supply of waler is nol required by an applicable
local ordinance.

3. Il the parcel map is submilted Lo the cletk of the govermning body, the clerk shall submit the parcel map Lo the
goveming body atils nex( regularmeeting.

4, A common-interes( communily consisting of four unils or less shall be deemed 1o be a division of land within the
meaning of this section, bul nced only comply with this scction andNRS 278371, 278373 (o 278378,
inclusive, 278,462, 278464 and 278 4006,

5. A parcel map is not required when the division is [or the express puipose of:
(a) The crcation or realignment of a public nght-of-way by a public ageney.
(b) The creation or realignment of an easemenl,

(¢) An adjustment of the boundary line between two abutting parcels or the transfer of land between two owners of
abutting pareels, which does nol result in the creation of any additional parcels, il such an adjustment is approved pursuant
to NRS278.5692 and is made in compliance with the provisions of NILS 278 5693,

(d) The purchase, transfer or development of space within an apaiment building or an industial or commercial building,
(&) Canrying out an ordder of any court or dividing land as a vesult ofan operation of law,

6. A parcel map is not required for any of the following transactions involving land:

(a) The ereation ofa lien, modgage, deed of trust or any othersecunty instrument.

{b) The creation ol a secwrity or unit of interest in any investment tst regulated under the laws ol this State or any other
interest in an investinenl cntity.

(¢} Conveying an interesl in oil, gas, mincrals or building malerials, which is severed from (he surface ownership of real
property.

(d) Conveying an inlerest inland acquired by the Department of Transportation pussuant toglapier 108 o /NRS.
(¢) Filing 3 certificate ol amendment pussuant to NJUS 278175

7. When lwo or moe separale lots, parcels, sites, units or plots of land are purchased. they remain separate for the
puposes of (his section and NRS 278468, 278,590 and 278.630, When the lots, pareels, sites, unils or plolsan resold or
conveved they areexempt from (he provisions of NIES 278010 to 278,630 inclusive, until further divided.

8. Unless a method ol dividing land is adopied lor the puipose or would have the elleet of evading this chapler, the
provisions for the division of land by a parcel map do not apply o tion exempted by patagraph (¢) of subsection |
NS 278.320.

9. As used in this section, “domestic well” has the meaning aseribed to i in

127,1:110:1941; added 1947, 834; 1943 NCIL, § 3063.26a]—(NRS A 1973,
1499; 1983, 251; 1985, 700; 1989, 501; 1991, 583.71383, 1387; 1993, 2569; 2007 $49; 2009, 1114)

RS $34.350.
53, 1338 1075, 1564; 1977, 1508; 1979,

NRS 278.462  Requirements which may be imposed by governing body. ‘The goveming body or. if autherized by
the goveming body, the planning commission or other authorized person:
T, May require street grading, drainage provisions and lot designs as ae reasonably necessary.

2. IF it anticipates, based upon duly adopied ordinances and plans. that the parcels will be used for residential,
commercial or industiial purposes, may require ofFsite aceess, sireet alignment, surfacing and width, waler quality, water
supply and sewerage provisions only as necessary and consistent with the existing use of any land zoned for similar use
which is within 660 feet of he proposed parcel. I the proposed parcels are less than 1 acre, (he goveming body or. il
authorized by the goveming body, the planning commission or other autharized pesen may require additional
improvements which arc reasonably necessary and consistent with the use of the land ifit is developed as proposed.

3. Torasccond orsubscquent parcel map with respect (o:
() A single pmeel: or
(b)Y A conliguous tract of Tand underthe same ownership,
= may require any reasonable improvement, bul nol more than would be required ifthe parcel were a subdivision.

14 of 17



(Added to NRS by 1977, 1509; A 1991, 624; 1993, 2570; |995. 710: 2003, 636)

NRS 2784625  Minimum size of mobile home lot.  The goveming body of a ¢ily or counly may not require the
minimum size of a mobile home tot that is individually owned to be larger than the minimum size of a mobile home lot Lhat
is leased to a tenant,

(Added 1o NRS by 1993, 1470)

NRS 278.463  Survey required; exception.  Tixcepl as olhenvise provided in 1his scetion, a parcel map must be based
on a survey made for thal purpose. The county sunveyor, city surveyor or professional land survevor appointed by the
goveming body, may pumsuant (o NRS 278,464 waive the requirement of a survey il in his o her judgment, a survey is nol
required to accomplish the purposes of NI&S 278,010 1o 278630, inclusive.

(Added 10 NRS by 1975, 1562; A 1993, 2571)

NRRS 278.464  Action on parcel map by planning commission, governing body or other authorized person or
agency; waiver of requirement for map and survey; consideration of certain criteria authorized in determining
approval of certain parcel mapsy appeals; certiicate ol approval of pureel map.

1. Lxecept as othenwise provided in subsection 2, iFthere is a planning commission, it shall:

@) Inacounty whose population is 700,000 or more, within 45 days; or

(1) [n a county whose population is less than 700,000, within 60 days,
= afier accepling as a complete application a parcel map, recommend approval, conditional approval or disapproval of the
map in a written report. The planning conmmission shall submit the parcel map mnd the wiitlen report to the goveming bady.

2. Ifthe govermning body has authonized the planning commission to take final action on a parcel map, the planning
commission shall:

(a) In a county whose population is 700,000 or more. within 435 davs; or

(b) In a county whose population is less than 700,000, within 60 days,
= alter accepling as a complote application the parcel map. approve. condilionally approve or disapprove the map. The
plinning commission shall file its writien decision with the goveming body. Unless the time is extended by mulual
agreement, if the planning commission is authorized to take linal action and it fails to take action within the period speeilicd
in (his subsection, the parcel map shall be deemed approved.

3. Ifthere is no planning commission or il the goveming body has not authorized the planning commission 1o (ake [ina)
action, the goveming body or, by authonization el the goveming body, (he dircelor of planning or other authorized person or
agency shall:

(a) Inacounty whase population is 700,000 or more, within 43 davs; o

(b) In o county whose population is less than 700,000, within 60 days,
= after acceptance of the parcel map as a complete application by the goveming body pursuant 1o subsection 1 or pursuant
to subsection 3 of MRS 278461, review and approve, conditionally approve or disapprove the parcel map. Unless the lime is
extended by mutual agreement. it the goveming hody, the director of planning or other authenzed peson or agency fails to
take action within the period specificd in thissubscetion, the parcel map shall be deemed approved.

4. The planning commission and the governing body or ditector of planning or other authorized person or agency shall

not approve the parcel map unless the peson proposing to divide the land has submitted an afidavit stating that the person
will make provision for the payment of the tax imposed by chapler 375 of NRS and for compliance wilh the disclosure and
reconding requirements of subsection 5 of NIZS $98,0923, il applicable, by the petson proposing to divide the land or any
successorin inlorest.
5, Except as othenvise provided in MRS 278463, i( unusual circumstances exist, a goveming body or, ilauthotized by
the goveming body, the planning commission may waive the requirement for a pareel map. Before waiving the requirement
[ora parcel map, a determination must be made by 1he county surveyor. eity surveyor or professional land surveyor appointed
by the govemning body that a survey is nol required. Unless the fime is extended by mulual agreement, a request fora waiver
must be acted upon:

(@) Inacowny whose population is 700,000 or more, within 45 days; or

(b) Ina county whose population is less than 700,000, within 60 days,
= after the date of the request for the waiver or, in the absence of action, the waiver shall be deemed appoved.

6. A goveming body may consider or may, by ordinance, puthorize the consideration of the erileria sct forth in
subscetion 3 of NRS 278 349 in detemnining whether to approve, conditionally approve or disapprove a scecond or
stbsequent parcel map for Tand that has been divided by a parcel map which was recorded within the 5 years immediately
preceding the aceeptance ol the second or subsequent parcel map as a complete application,

An applicant or ather person agarieved by a decision of the goveming body s authorized representative or by a final
act of the planning commission may appeal the decision in accordance wilh (he ordinance adopted pwsuant 1o NES
278.3195.

8. I a parcel map and the associated division of Land are approved or desmed approved pursuant (o (his seetion, the
approval must be noted on the map in the form of a certificate attached thereto and executed by the clerk of the goveming
body, the goveming body's designated representative or the chair of the planning commission. A cerfificate attached to a
parcel map pursuant to this subscetion must indicite, il applicable, that the goveming body or planning commission
determined that a public strecl, casement or utility casement which will not remain in effect afler a merger and resubdivision
ol parcels conducted pursuant (o NRS 278 4925 s been vacated or abandoned in accordance with NRS 278,480,

(Added 1o NRS by 1977, 1510; A 1989, 792; 1993, 2571; 1997, 2427; 1999, 788, 893;2001. 64, 1969, 2811; 2007
850: 2009 1116: 2011, [197)

NRS 278466  Form and contents ol pireel map; relerence to parcel number and recording,

1. The parcel map must be legibly dwmwn in permanent black ink on tracing cloth or produced by the use ol other
materials o & penmanent nature generally used for (hat purpese in the engineering profession. Aflidavils, cetlificates and

156 of 17



acknowledgments must be legibly stamped or printed upon the map with penmnent black ink. The size of each sheel must
be 24 by 32 inches: A manginal line must be drawn completely around cach sheet, leaving an entirely blank margin o1 inch
at the tap, bottom and right edges, and of 2 inches at the Il edge along the 24-inch dimension.
| 2. A parcel map must indicale the owner of any adjoining land, orany nght-ofway if owned by the person dividing the
and.
3. A parcel map must show:
(a) The area of cach parcel orlot and the total arca of the land to be divided in the following manner:
(1) In acres, caleulated (o the nearest one-hundredth ofan acre, il (he area is 2 acres or more; 01
(2) Insquare feet ifthe area is less than 2 acres.
(1) All monuments found, set, reset, replaced or removed, describing their kind, size and ocation and giving other dala
relating thereto.
(¢) Bearing or witness monuments, the basis of bearings, bearing and length of lines and the scale of the map,
() “The name and legal designation of the tadt or grant in which the sunvey is located and any ties Lo adjoining racts.
(¢) Any easements granled or dedications made.
(f) Any other data necessary lor the intelligent interpretation of the various items and locations ol the points, lines and
arca shown.
4. A parcel map must include:
(1) The memorandum ol oaths described in NILS 625,320,
(b) The centilicate ol the survevor required pursuant 1o NIRRE 278 375,
(¢) The cerilicate of the Division of Water Resources of the State Department of Conservation and Natural Resourees
issued pursnant (o NS 278 461 ilany.
(d) "The signature of each owneral the land to be divided.
5. A goveming body may by local ordinance require a pareel map Lo include:
(a) A report from a title company wiich lists the naumes of:
(1) Each ownerof record of the land te be divided; and
(2) Each holder of record ofa sceunty interest in the land to be divided,
= il the seounty interest was created by amorigage or a deed of ust.
() The written consent of cach holder of wecord of o seewity interest listed pursuant to subparagraph (2) of paragraph (a)
to the preparmtion and recordation of the parcel map. A holderof teeord of a security inlerest may consenl by signing:
(1) 'The parcel map; or
(2) A separate document (hat is recorded with the parcel map and declares his or her consent to the division ol land, il
the map contains a notation that a separte document has been recorded to this effect,
6. I the requirement for a parcel map is waived, the goveming body may specily by local ordinance the fype and extent
olinformation or mapping necessary for the division ol land,
7. Reference to the parcel nimber and recording data ol o reeorded parcel map is a complete legal description of the
land contained in the parcel.
[Pant 27.2:110:1941; added 1947, 834; 1943 NCL § 5063.26b }—(NRS A 1960, 138; 1973, 1338; 1975, 1566; 1977
1514 1985, 897%; 1989, 793; 1993, 2572: 1995, 198, 2007, §32)

NRS 278,467 Preparation, recordation and contents of document ywhich may be required if parcel map waived;
statement indicating that properly taxes have been paid; county recarder to provide copy ol document or access to
digital document o county assessior,

1. Ifthe requirement fora pamcel map is waived, the authority which granted the waiver may require the preparation and
reeondation of a document which contains:

(@) Alegal deseription ofall parts based on a system ol rectangular surveys;
(b) A provision Tor the dedication or reservation of any road nght-of-way or casement; and
(¢) The approval of the authorty which granted rthe waiver.
2. If a desciiption by metes and bounds is necessary in desctibing the parcel division, it must be prepared by a
professional land survevor and hear his or her signature and stamp.
3. The peson prepaning the document may include the following stitement:

‘This document was prepired from existling information (identifying it and stating where filed and recorded), and
the undersiened assumes no responsibility for the existence ol monuments or cotreetness of other information shown
on or copied from any such prior documents.

4. A document reeorded pursuant to (his section must be accompanicd by a wiillen slatemenl signed by the treasurer off
the county in which the land Lo be divided is located indicating (hat all propedy 1axes on the land [or (he fiscal year have
been paid,

5. A counly recorder who records a document pursuant Lo this section shall, within 7 working days afler he or she
records (he document, provide 1o the counly assessor al no charge:

(a) A duplicale copy of the document; or

(b) Access 1o the digital document. The document must be in a [om that is acceptable to the county recorder and the
counly ass¢ssor.

(Added to NRS by 1977, 1511; A 1989, 301, 794; 1991, 1384; 1993, 2573; 2001. 1560;2003. 2786)

NRS 278468  Duties of preparer of parcel map upon approval; duties of county recorder.
1. Ifa pareel map is approved or deemed approved pursuant 1o NRS 278 464 the preparer of the map shall:
{0) Except as otherwise provided in subscetion 2. cause e approved map o be recorded in the office of the county
recorder within 1 vear afer the date the map was approved or deemed approved, unless the goveming body cstablishes by
ordinance a longer period, not Lo exceed 2 vems, for recording the map. The map must be accompanied by a writien stalement

16 of 17



signed by Lhe treasurer of the county in which (he land lo be divided is Jocated indicaling that all property laxes on the land
forthe fiscal year have been paid.

- (b) Pay afec of $17 for the first sheet of the map plus $10 for each additional sheet lo (he county recorder for filing and
indexing.

2. Inacounty whose population is fess than 100,000, if the parcel map shows an area tolaling 50 acres ormore that is
subject 10 a conservalion easement, the preparer of the map shall cause the approved map to be reconded in the office ol the
county recarder within 3 years after the date the map was approved or deemed approved, unless the goveming body grants an
extension of time for recording (he map, which may nol exceed 1 year. As used in this subsection, “conservation casement”
means an casement that permanently preserves or protects open space, a lloadplain or agricultwial land from being parceled,
subdivided or otherwisc developed in a manner incompatible with the preservation or protection ol 1he open space,
floodplain or agricultural Land.

Upon receipt of a parcel map, the cowty recorder shall file the map in a suitable place. The county recorder shall
keep properindexes ol parcel maps by the name olgran, tragt, subdivision or United States subdivision.

4. A county recorder who recordds a parcel map pursuant fo this section shall, within 7 working days afler he or she
reconds the parcel map, provide 1o the county assessorat no charge:

(a) A duplicate copy of the parcel map and any supporting documents; or

(b) Access (o the digital parcel map and any digital supporting documents. The map and supporting documents must be
ina fom thal is aceeptable (o the county recorder and the counly assessor.

[Padt 27.2:110:1941; added 1947, 834; 1943 NCL § 5063.26b]—(NRS A 1969, 255; 1973, 1339; 1975, 757; 1981,
214: 1993, 1357, 2374; 1995, 710; 1997, 2424; 1999, 895; 2001, 1560.3217; 2003, 2786, 201 1. 6Y3)

NRS 278469 Map to indicate record ol'survey notin conflict with planning and zoning requirements. I a weeord
of survey canlains two or more lots or parcels, the survevor or a person for whom the record of survey is made shall place
upon the map thereof a statement of the facts which will clearly show thal such record of survey is not in conflict with the
IEF|=.IiR.'I‘l‘lGTII5 of NRS 278010 to 278.630. inclusive, and the regulations of iansactions peraining thereto shall be complied
with,

[Part 27.2:110:1941; added 1947, 834; 1943 NCI, § 5063.26b]—NRS A 1973, 1339; 1977, 1511) {Substituted in
revision for NRS 278.540)

17 of 17



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5-16-17 Estimate of time required: 0 - 5

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: Business License Second Readings -- Approval

2. Recommended motion: Approval

3. Prepared by: Stacey Bucchianeri
Department: Community Development Telephone: 847-0966

4. Staff summary: Second readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next meeting. A
follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted prior to the
Commission Meeting. The business licenses are then printed and mailed to the new
business license holder.

5. Supporting materials: See attached Agenda Letter

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

_District Attorney

Department Name:

County Manager Other agency review:

0. Board action:
[1] Approved
(1 Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

il R
et ad

Agenda Item No. s~



Storey County Community Bebvelopment

Business @ Licensing

P O Box 526 + Virginia City NV 89440 « (775) 847-0966 « Fax (775) 847-0935 - buslic@storeycounty.org

To: Vanessa Stephens, Clerk’s Office April 24,2017
Pat Whitten, County Manager Via email

Fr: Stacey Bucchianeri
Please add the following item(s) to the May 2, 2017, COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:

LICENSING BOARD
FIRST READINGS:

SUNBELT RENTALS, INC. — General / 2341 Deertield Dr ~ Fort Mill, SC (courier)
MBP ENTERPRISES — General / 631 Dunn Circle ~ Sparks (party rentals)
JOANNE PANTALEO - Professional / 16002 Legacy Rd ~ Tustin, CA (consulting)
SIR AMERICA, LLC — Contractor / 1300 Triad Blvd ~ Saginaw, TX (contractor)
INDUSTRIAS REVIRIEGO — Contractor / Torrejon de Ardoz SPAIN (contractor)
BARN DOOR, LLC — Home Business / 1910 Empire Road ~ Reno (handyman)
ACCENT FOOD SERVICES, LLC — General / 16209 Central Commerce ~ Pflugerville, TX (vending mach)
BLACKBURN AND SON, LLC — Contractor / 2301 West 4™ Street ~ Reno (contractor)
KRATOS PUBLIC SAFETY & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC. — Contractor / 4820 Eastgate Mall ~ San
Diego, CA (contractor)
MCKINSTRY ESSENTION, LLC - Contractor / 5005 3™ Ave ~ Seattle, WA (contractor)
DYNAMIC CONTROLS SOLUTIONS, INC. — Contractor / 46998 Magellan ~ Wixom, MI (contractor)
WINSUPPLY RENO NV - Contractor / 755 Timber Way ~ Reno (contractor)
. JABIL — Contractor / 6375 San Ignacia Avenue ~ San Jose, CA (electronics manufacturing)
EXECUTIVE TOWING AND RECOVERY, LLC — Transportation / 20 Hwy 341 ~ Moundhouse (transp)
DMG MORI USA, INC. - Contractor / 2400 Huntington ~ Hoffman Estates, IL (contractor)
VISTA SOLUTIONS (US), INC. — Contractor / 440 Burroughs St ~ Detroit, MI (quality control)
PENINGTON PAINTING COMPANY, LLC — Contractor / 6313 W Commonwealth ~ Chandler, AZ (contr)
BATTLE BORN CONSULTING SERVICES — Home Business / 166 S Q St ~ VC (consulting)
3S, SAFFLE SERVICE SUPPORT AB - Contractor / 5421 Kietzke Lane ~ Reno (contractor)
JANSSONS ELEKTRO AKTIEBOLAG - Contractor / Boxholm SWEDEN (contractor)
SWISSLOG-ACCALON AB - Contractor / Boxholm SWEDEN (contractor)
. ENZELBERGER INDUSTRIEMONTAGEN GMBH - Contractor / Treuchtlingen GERMANY (contractor)
W ECLIPSE AUTOMATION SOUTHEAST, LLC — Contractor / 401 Ryland ~ Reno (contractor)
X. AKAL CONSTRUCTION, INC. dba Ace Design, LLC — Cont. / 7455 Arroyo Crossing ~ Las Vegas (const)

STEQEEPDORER

<EHPRPOTOZENA S

Inspection Required
ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office

Assessor’s Office Fire Department Commissioners’ Office
Tourism Office Comptroller’s Office Dispatch



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 05/16/17 Estimate of time required: 60 min.

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ ] (x Closed Session)

1. Title: Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the
Storey County Firefighters Association IAFF Local 4227 and Storey County Sheriff’s Office
Employees Association NAPSO Local 9110. This meeting will commence immediately
following the regular commission meeting.

2. Recommended motion. No action

3. Prepared by: Austin Osborne
Department: Human Resources Telephone: 775.847.0968

4. Staff summary: Pursuant to NRS 288 and the existing 2014-2017 bargaining agreements
between the Storey County Firefighters Association and the Storey County Board of Fire
Commissioners, and the Storey County Sheriff’s Office Employees Association and the
Storey County Board of County Commissioners, the bargaining agreements are proposed to
be modified separately as tentatively agreed between the parties.

5. Supporting materials: Provided at meeting.

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: . n/a Fund: Comptroller
7. Legal review required:
District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:
@’ Department Head Department Name: Commissioner’s Office
County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e

Agenda Item No. Q.?



